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Corporate Information
rEEH
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Corporate Information (continuea)
REEH ®

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan
(appointed on 6 April 2023)
Mr. Tung Tat Chiu Michael
Mr. Deng Zhonglin
(resigned on 6 April 2023)

AUDITOR
HLM CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Tung & Co. Solicitors

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 903, 9/F
Wings Building
110-116 Queen'’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong
(effective from 25 October 2023)

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D
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Gardenia Court
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Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
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Tricor Investor Services Limited
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Financial Highlights
MFHE

Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
H=E HE HE
—E-=H B —E—F
~NB=+H NE=+H NA=+H
IEEE IEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAETT FET
Results E§ -
Revenue U zm
Exhibitions and events REEKEE) - - 122
Cultural and entertainment A R iR 4t 9,918 56,832 175,325
Financing ME 31,301 55,329 52,622
41,219 112,161 228,069
Gross profit el 35,591 78,934 120,960
Operating (loss)/profit & (B518) /5 F) (486,091) (116,815) 56,745
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (518) wf] (506,497) (122,867) (5,447)

consolidated Statement FERBKRE
of Financial Position

Total assets BEEMAE

Total liabilities BE4EEE

Net assets BEFE

At 30 June
2023
i

—— =

—_———

~NA=+H
HK$'000
FAET

183,121

(58,121)

125,000

At 30 June
2022

i
—ECF
NE=+H
HK$'000
FHBT

703,583
(57,665)
645,918

At 30 June
2021

iy
B
NB=+8
HK$'000
FHBT

882,122
(99,205)
782,917
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Management Discussion and Analysis

S ERECY S

BUSINESS REVIEW

NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is principally engaged
in the organisation and sponsorship of exhibitions and events,
the operation of cultural and entertainment comprehensive
services platform and provision of loan and financing
services.

Revenue and segment results of the Group for year ended
30 June 2023 (the “Reporting Year”) and for the year ended
30 June 2022 (the “Prior Year” or “2022") are set out as
follows:

F 5[0l B8

HEERERARAR (TRQE)) KEMK
BAT (i AEE) TE2XEENRE
REEREH KEEXERREG SR
B¥aURRHERMKBERS

REBNBE_SE_=FA=+HLEE
(REFE) RBE-ZTE""FXA=+

AIEFE (EFI 282 2F)) Bl
KD EREAEEHIT ¢

2023
—EC=H
HK$'000
FET
Revenue g &
Exhibitions and events BREZREE — -
Cultural and entertainment AL B i 44 9,918 56,832
Financing B 31,301 55,329
41,219 112,161
Segment (loss)/profit from DEF (B518) ]
Exhibitions and events BREEREE (371) (1,242)
Cultural and entertainment AL R iR 4 (155,675) (113,398)
Financing e (315,626) 16,192
(471,672) (98,448)
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From 2021 to 2022, the Group had not launched any
exhibition as the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
pandemic and the travel restriction measures had been
implemented throughout those years, resulting in that the
segment of exhibitions and events business recorded nil
revenue in those years. Following the relaxation of social
distancing measures in February 2023, the Group continues
to suspend operation of such business segment, and after
taking serious consideration regarding the prospect of such
business segment, we have decided to discontinue operation
of such business segment during the Reporting Year.

No revenue from the exhibitions and events business was
recorded for the Reporting Year (2022: HK$NIl). It represented
0% (2022: 0%) of the total revenue.

During the Reporting Year, the Group had focused its brand
management through its sole brand “DrOscar”. In prior
years, we had several brand management on “PHEBE”,
“MT” and “U.CLUB", but we had ceased operations of those
brands since last year due to the impact brought by the
COVID-19 pandemic starting from 2020, in particular, the
implementation of lock-down measures in Shanghai during
the period from March 2022 to June 2022, as well as the
weakening of business economies in the Mainland China,
which affected most of our customers operating restaurants
and entertainment stores, with their business temporarily
closed for a period longer than initially expected and being
forced to cease operations. This had eventually led to a drop
in the number of our members year-by-year.

Prior to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the business
in BT S (transliterated as “NOD Union Platform”
or “NOD Union") was one of our core business segments.
As at the date of this annual report, we are exploring more
different brands and we expect that the joining of new brands
to our platform will attract other new local or overseas
members to strengthen our member base. On the other
hand, we will put more effort on negotiating with other
local or overseas brands to build-up a cooperative alliance,
and expect that it will bring a positive energy to our brand
management, as well as boost the number of our members.

RIBZ—FZEZ T 4> AR2019E 4k
Jm5m (TCOVID-19 ) B IERZEFEEE
HITRGENR FEBRTERRTIANREE
T ENREERENERDBNEES
EHRESRE R_ T _=—F_ABAKEx
REHEEE AERBETECERE
Bof MEBEZRZEEDBNASR
BOBRMAERENRREEERIELCEZRE
FOER o

B REMERNREFEHEREFW
m(CEZ2F EEIT) HEWER0%
(CEBEZZF 10%)

RREFE AEEETHHEE— FRE
IDrOoscar 1 EFETRIEEE -NBEF
FE > BAIG#EITTPHEBE ) ~ TMT & MU.CLUB
EHERENERE - BEEFEURKEME
RIEREZERE RRRE S ZHF
FECOVID- 19 IBFT A 2R R 2 LEHERC
ST THE-_RE_E " _H#AHBELE
BRI EFE A 0 DA P B PO 3 2 A R
B AL U EBERIREPENER
THRE HEEEXNRERIBRER
£ UI#BEFELEEE RRENHMANSTE
BEZET &

FRCOVID- 19 1BIRE 2 Al shEa M B T &
EBRERBAHEP—EZOEFDE I
AEHRBE RMEZREZS A E @A L
HASZ T qn iR 0 A & 1R BE IR 5 | L A B9 3th
HEBIINEGE  KEMINBREEER -5—75
| AR ERE MM TS 308 R
EBLGEY SFHE  WIRMER AR
RITmMEEE RESg8#E-
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)

BIEEswmBRaIT @

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

As for our trading business (mainly trading of wine and
liquors), we had over a hundred customers, among which
most of the revenue came from our existing or previous NOD
Union members and customers in brand management. The
Group discussed and negotiated the cost with distributors
during the contract period, and we determined the selling
price ourselves in a range of suggested selling prices offered
by the distributors. Since the outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic, most of our NOD Union members, customers in
brand management and/or long-term relationship customers
had temporarily suspended or even closed-down their
operations. This atmosphere shadowed throughout the whole
Mainland China, the impact had not merely been brought
to the catering and/or entertainment industry, but had also
affected other industries. We also expect that our existing
NOD Union members, customers in brand management and/
or other customers may take a longer period than expected
for recovery from the post-pandemic COVID-19 era. In
these circumstances, the ability for recovering the existing
outstanding receivables may take a longer period of time
than the normal credit period.

Revenue from the cultural and entertainment business
has decreased by approximately HK$46.91 million, or
approximately 82.54%, from approximately HK$56.83 million
for the Prior Year to approximately HK$9.92 million for the
Reporting Year. It represented approximately 24.06% (2022:
approximately 50.67%) of the total revenue.

## MR @

MEARBEZES (EBEFBEBEE
)Mz ZAEEBE—BSRER HA
R BB 73 W e 2k B 3% P33R B 2048 1 AU 56 B B
BYag8URRBREERER KAEER
BRI B ) 81 P 5 o B BE 7 AR AS 0 TS
EoEBRENEREEHERNBETERE
BB BCOVID- 19 BRI LUK > KRS &k
EHMRETEEE RMEEBRERKEHE
HRAGREREEFEE BEEFLEE -Z
SERETEETEAM NMEXETE
MR,/ HIRBITE M HMITEERF
E-RfITE RAREHBETEES
mBEEER K,/ SHHEME R HECOVID-19
B REARNERERRE P SERTAR
R RZEBERT  WEIRAREZEKR
ENRE D EREREEMR.

AL B IR 44 2 55 B UR 25 AR 25 €5 4956,830,000
BT £946,910,00078 708 4982.54% F
REFEE#9,920,0005 7T c HIE4RU L
24.06% (ZZ = Z4F : £950.67%) ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
EEENmRDT @

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continuead)

Cultural and Entertainment Business (Continued)

The cultural and entertainment comprehensive services
platform we offer are currently divided into the following
components:

¥¥ElE @

XAERIRGEETS ()

BRPRENERBREGERBFEED
7 yEER -

For the year ended 30 June
BEANAB=THILLFE

A0
.S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFAT
Brand management and oh bR B 1R R AR R AR 75
related services 1,699 4,932
Promotion and consulting W& S B RaAR TS i
services 2,498 17,053
Trading of goods EmE5S ii 5,721 34,847
9,918 56,832
Notes: st :
i Brand management and related services i b 18 T AH BR AR 7S

8

Providing brand management and related services under the brand
name of “DrOscar”.

Promotion and consulting services

Providing product promotion services, systematic entertainment
solution and advisory services, including entertainment management
consulting, event planning, online marketing; and other ad hoc
consultancy services.

Trading of goods

Trading of wine and liquor, e-cigarettes and daily supplies to
entertainment stores and NOD Union members, among which
revenue generated from the selling of wine and liquors represented
approximately 100% of the trading business during the Reporting Year.

LATDroscar 17 fa kAR i b e B 12 R AR RA AR TS

ii.  HEEREARE
RMERBEERY  RRMERER RS RZRES
BB BIRIRRE IR EBRE R LEH
R B RSB AR

i. BWmES
MR EEPIE K s R T & § B R T BERE
R BTENRAEARES HPREFERS
B BB ARG G B 5 2 #549100% °
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Due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
ensuing implementation of lock-down measures in Shanghai
for a period of about four months in 2022 and the subsequent
weakening of economics in the People’'s Republic of China
(the "PRC"), and in light that our head office for conducting
financing business is located in Shanghai, our business has
been negatively affected. In the meantime, our customers
are also suffering from ripple effect, such as default loan
principals and interests, serious financial difficulties, lack
of workforce, payment/payroll overdue, etc. Not merely
ourselves, most of the enterprises, shops or restaurants are
facing the same challenges.

Notwithstanding the above challenges which have not
been resolved, our Company keeps a professional manner
in recovering our debts, such as communicating with our
existing customers periodically via telecommunications
means, sending letters to/physically visited customers to
update the status of the customers’ outstanding loans.
But unfortunately, their responses are negative, indicating
that they are unable to make repayment in such difficult
circumstances. During the second half of the Reporting Year,
we collected less proceeds from the repayment of default
interest and/or loan principal from our customers. Such
amount of repayment was not sufficient for sustaining our
operations. During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded
an impairment loss of expected credit loss, net of reversal of
approximately HK$359.5 million, which represented that the
ability of recovering the amount was relatively lower than that
during the expected credit period.

The Group has a credit policy and loan approval process
to minimise credit risks. The interest rate range has been
adjusted during the Reporting Year due to the market
changes. Compared with the other two segments, the result
from our financing business has led to more adverse impact,
and going forward, the Group will take a more prudent and
conservative approach in considering approval of each new
loan case(s) in the future.

HRCOVID- 19 BB E KBRS -
FLEBERIIEERAMONER kT E
ARHME (THRE)) SBRR > MEREA
SRR EXZFHABAUN L& I
FHERIGaEFE MR TRIFEE
BHERE HIERERETRAEBE
MHEEE AFRER IR FHEARS-
MEERAAE REHEFE EHNER
I E PR AR E ke o

BE LB KRR BEAATEEBK
BHEAERFEERE  fINBBRETFE
AAHNERAEERERER OFEP X
R85 B R H R EE B RRAYIK
e BERNZE  BRFELHBREIE &R
HEEANZERBERBETER - NREE
BN+ RAREREEEINE R
HEMA T WERIRIER D - BRAEMRT
RUMERARABDEF NREFE > A&EH
RERMEEHEREN T ZRERE 0k
#[8]) 49359,500,00078 7t > FRBAULEI T EERY
Pl AEMEAR RIS TRERE B/ -

FEERBEEEBRAERBREFUR
EREEERR REBESEE  MXLECS
R EEEMELRE - BHEMMmED S
B MEXBNEEELEEZSAFEE
WAEEN BRE B ESSHEMREK
REERBERRTHEE
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In such circumstances, the board (the “Board”) of directors
(“Directors”) of the Company has established a credit
recovery committee of the Board (the “CRC") in March
2023 for the purpose of closely monitoring the status of
debts recovery, taking necessary action in order to recover
unpaid debts, including sending out notices, negotiating
and managing reasonable debt repayment plans with the
debtors, liaising with the lawyer(s) to assist in the recovery
of debts and/or obtain necessary court order to auction
debtor(s) assets for recovery of the debts, or if necessary,
engage financial advisor(s) to provide professional advice
for its decision making, etc. The above-mentioned roles and
responsibilities can assist the Group to take appropriate
action at the material time in order to recover the debts, and
assist in providing safeguard to the Group's assets.

Revenue from financing business decreased, by
approximately HK$24.03 million, or approximately 43.43%,
from approximately HK$55.33 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$31.30 million for the Reporting Year. It
represented approximately 75.94% (2022 approximately
49.33%) of the total revenue.

The financing business is currently divided into the following
components:

Credit factoring EERE
Finance leasing MENRE
Money lending W&

REZFERT ~A8E% ((BEF) & ((E
$ﬁj)ﬁ’f:§:_¢ BRIEEEEE
BUWEZEE ((EREEWREZEY)) UEE
REFHEBWIE RN KL BITHEBWRE
BED SREEEN HEBAERRE
ESERNEGASE B RminEElRE
Bxk,/ NEISHERERESHEERE A
BENBRES NMERE  TEMBE
BRRRREHEERRE  LABBRE
ER BB AER N REZIREBEETE
BWES T REAERSE-

R 22 75 By W e R < B 4955,330,00078 7T iR
1%924,030,0008 78 4943.43% E RS FE
#931,300,00078 7 ° B 48U & 4975.94% (=
T TF 1 #949.33%) ©

T

MEXHRD A 548 -

i 48,295
ii 5,441
iii 1,593

55,329
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)

BIEEswmBRaIT @

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Notes:

i. Credit factoring
Credit factoring allows customers to free up cash tied up in unpaid
invoices. The finance period given to customers ranges from 4 months
to 3 years and the finance services allow customers to release up to
80% of the invoice value.

ii. Finance leasing
The Group focused on expanding its small and medium-sized leasing
from sale and leaseback business and centering on the cultural and
entertainment customers. The financing period given to customers
ranges from 1.25 to 3 years.

jii. Money lending
The Group provides pledged and non-pledged money lending to
individuals to maximise customer value. The financing period given to

customers ranges from 6 to 12 months.

Credit Factoring

For the Group's credit factoring business, the Group provides
financing and accounts receivable management services to
customers in return for interest and management fee income.
The Group's factoring customers would transfer the legal
title of each of their accounts receivables to the Group. After
such transfer, the Group would own the right to receive the
outstanding amount of the accounts receivables from the
buyers of its factoring customers (i.e. debtors of the accounts
receivables). For all factoring transactions, the Group requires
customers to provide additional guarantees from the
customers'’ legal representative and/or shareholder(s) so that
it has better protection against its credit risk.

## MR @

Haz -

i. EERE
EFEREEERAIBORANERHENRE -
BTEPBRMERN FUEAE3F > MEERS
BERARBLZEORNEREE

i. RERE
AEERSIERPNEERRIEAEES I
MSAEMR R R BT e T2 P BIRERRN
J1.25F3%F

ii.  MME
FEEDEAARHEERREDRFRENSEE
FEERAE-BTERHBEHRRNF6E2
V=

FEMRE

MAEENGEEREEBMS  AEED
R RERERWTRIERERRREER
%o DA B R EEBWA - ZEBER R
BRRROAEERFZELARBBGRRE
EEPME# -NAMEEREE  ~EEEAR
HEREZFES BIEUERMRBIETRA) I
BV FEWBR AR B IE RPN - BLFF A R
BXZMs ~7EEERZFFEHREZEA
KRR HRRAERIMELR > LB GF B
HLEERMRE-
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Credit Factoring (Continued)

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had 19 factoring customers,
all of which were corporate customers independent of and
not connected with the Company or any of its connected
persons. The Group's customers in the factoring business are
mainly engaged in finance leasing, wholesale and/or retail
in the PRC. The following table sets forth the gross carrying
amount of the factoring receivables of the Group by industry
sector of the customers as at 30 June 2023:

MATE
RS

Finance leasing
Wholesale and retail

As at 30 June 2023, all of the Group's factoring receivables
were secured by accounts receivables in the aggregate
amount of approximately RMB778.7 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$912.2 million), as well as guarantees from
the customers’ legal representative and/or shareholder(s).
The interest rates ranged from 5% to 15% per annum. Save
for the customers principally engaged in finance leasing who
were granted a loan period ranging from 2 to 3 years with
principal and interest payable quarterly, other customers
were granted a loan period of not more than 12 months
with interest payable quarterly and full principal repayable
on maturity date. After due assessment of the credit risks of
the Group's factoring customers, the Directors believe that
comparable market interest rates were applied and that the
repayment terms of the factoring loans were in line with
normal market practice.

EERE (&

N _EC=ZFRAZFTH AEREBF9
LRERF 2WABULNARBHES
MEABEATBERFBETEMBAENTGESR
FoAEBREBEBNELFIENPEKL
ERMERE MBR REE - TERETN
TECZENAZTERERTEION
AEBREBEWTERBAZE !

20.8 41 5
485.4 95.9 16
506.2 100.0 19

A CE_=ZFAB=ZtH KAEEZE
HREBEBRARBHUBEASARE
778,700,0007T (18 & % £9912,200,0007% 7t)
HEWEERUREE AANRER,TRE
I RIEIRIR o R ZEN FE5%ZE15%  fRrE
ENEREEENEZELRERENT2E3EN
ERfUESsTAAERFIBIN EMEF
FEETIBBNESNERE X
ME S REEBE LT ERE KB ETL
AEBREBEANEERME EFRA
EEBIELERTIFZHE BREERN
BRHRMT & —RTHIHIER o
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Credit Factoring (Continued)

Credit risk assessment policy

After the sales department receives the factoring service
application from a potential customer, the sales department
will arrange interview and collect identification, relevant
corporate and financial documents from the potential
customer. The sales department will, based on the
information collected and any other publicly available
information, conduct due diligence and may request further
information from the potential customer, if necessary, for
an initial assessment of the potential customer. The sales
department. after the initial assessment, will propose a
preliminary credit limit to the risk management department
for review.

For the initial assessment, the sales department would:

(@ identify and assess the background, credit status
of the customer such as their financial status and
shareholders background;

(b) conduct due diligence on the business of the customer
and the collateral account receivables such as their
operating history and business operations; and

(c) conduct due diligence on the financial status of the
customer and the collateral account receivables
offered.

The risk management department will review the initial
assessment made by the sales department together with the
information collected from the customer and may request
further information from the customer. The risk management
department will verify the information collected by
conducting further due diligence on the customer. Customers
are required to pass the credit and risk assessments before
engaging the Group for factoring services.

Once approval from the risk management department
is obtained, recommendation will be made to the risk
management committee including the sales department, the
risk management department, the finance department and
the executive director(s) (collectively, the “Management
Team”) for further approval. Members of the risk
management committee may conduct further due diligence
on the customer as and when appropriate.

EERE (&

15 B A R0 R

HEMWEBES P IRENRIERT FH
BoRZFERXRLEAEEEPWESNE
s R R A F5 XA o SH & BE i IR R PR
WEEHAENEMARAISENMESR
BT BRBEROEREEEFREHEE
—TER UHBEERETD G K
My HhE  HEXFHEREESER
MNP EEIREHEZ

AN STETTS S EERG ©

@ #BARFHEELHNER
MEM BRI RRRER

EERR

b) HEREZRBPBUERRFARER
B MHKEREMEREE &

© HERPHIRRKIEZBIEFEUIR
HFARSBRAE -

JEL B B HE AR R AR I B BB (R BV 4D P T
RAEFRERNER I o ZREFEM
E—TER -RAREEBKEBHEFH
RE—SEHASHRIBFAREER TR
RREBEERERMN ED IREAEEIRE
HARIEARTS ©

ESRREEREME ROoBHER A
[REER MBRRITES (REEER
B AR EEZEIRHESRME
— S EH - BAREEZETNENEEE
BRTRBRE-—TRBHASE -

2022/23F FHR o HEREBERABRAR



Credit Factoring (Continued)

Credit risk assessment policy (Continued)

The Management Team would consider the following factors
during its credit risk assessment before the entering into of
factoring contracts:

(@ the background, credit status and business operations
of the customer,

(b) source of repayment and repayment abilities of the
customer;

(c) the value and nature of the collateral offered and the
underlying purpose of the finance;

(d) credit and other business risks of the factoring service;,
(e) expected rate of return; and
(f)  the loan-to-collateral value ratio.

The Group provides factoring services based on
assessment of the customers’ loan repayment capability
and creditworthiness according to the Group’s analysis of
operational and financial information gathered and whether
the loan-to-collateral value ratio is sufficient to minimise the
Group's credit risk. According to the Group's internal policy,
the loan-to-collateral value ratio is generally required not to
exceed 80% for successful factoring applications. Whereas
guarantee from the legal representative and/or shareholder(s)
of customers for a factoring service application is generally in
place as a supplementary assurance.

Credit limit internal control

The sales department in conducting due diligence on the
potential customer and preparing the initial assessment
report, provides the risk management department with an
initial suggested credit limit for the factoring services. The
risk management department after reviewing the initial
assessment report prepared by the sales department, will
determine the credit limit for the customer prior to granting
approval and submitting to the Management Team for further
approval. Professional judgment is made by the Management
Team on the customer’s credit limit based on the information
gathered from the due diligence and results of the customer’s
credit risk assessment.
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Credit Factoring (Continued)

Credit approval internal control

After obtaining approval from the Management Team, the
sales department will confirm the principal terms of the
factoring agreement with the potential customer. Upon the
potential customer’s confirmation, the sales department
will arrange and collect necessary documents from the
potential customer and submit a document checklist to the
risk management department for approval. If approval is
obtained, recommendation will be made to the Management
Team for final approval. Upon securing the approvals of the
Management Team, the factoring agreement and relevant
document will be prepared based on the negotiated and
approved terms.

All factoring services will be subject to a further approval
by the Board if an applied amount triggers the disclosure
or shareholders’ approval obligation of the Company under
Chapter 13, 14 or 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Collection of receivables

The Group closely monitors its collection of receivables. The
sales department and risk management department are
responsible for monitoring the post-finance status of the
customers. Information collected from credit risk assessment
on the customers are reviewed, updated and documented
on a regular basis to monitor their abilities to make payment
to the Group. The frequency of the review conducted by the
Group depends on the industry the customer operates in, and
seasonality of the customer’s business. The Group generally
conducts a review on its customers on a monthly or quarterly
basis.

Steps the Group would take to monitor collection of
receivables include:

(@ conducting searches in the public domain on the
customer, collaterals and guarantor to obtain updated
public information on them;

(b) obtaining and reviewing updated assets proof and
financial information of the customer, collaterals and
guarantor; and

() understanding any changes in the customers and
collaterals” operation through communication, site visit,
or by reviewing their financial status and other relevant
documents, if necessary.
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Credit Factoring (Continued)

Collection of receivables (Continued)

The Group timely implements appropriate measures in the
event that there is material deterioration in the customer’s
and collaterals’ financial circumstances that affect their
repayment abilities. In such event, the Management Team
will have discussions with the customer to understand the
reason behind the material deterioration in its financial
circumstances.

Once the customer is determined to be facing material
deterioration in its financial circumstances, the Group may
demand the customer to provide further collaterals or
guarantee, and the Group will also conduct frequent site
visit and/or communications with the customer as part of its
monitoring of the collection of receivables. The Group will,
as last resort, commence legal action against all relevant
counterparties (i.e. the customer, the collaterals and the
guarantors) and apply for enforcement and auction sale from
the relevant court thereafter to recover the receivables and/
or to realise the collaterals to satisfy the debt.

Finance Leasing

The finance leasing business of the Group represents sale-
leaseback transactions which involves leasing of new
equipment acquired by its customer from an equipment
supplier prior to the lease transaction. For all finance leasing
transactions, the Group requires its customers to pledge its
leased assets and provide additional guarantees from the
customers’ legal representative or shareholder(s), so that it
has better protection against its credit risk.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had 2 finance leasing
customers, all of which were corporate customers. The
Group's customers in the finance leasing business are mainly
engaged in IT services and real estate related business.

As at 30 June 2023, all of the Group’s loan balance in the
finance leasing business of approximately HK$18.2 million
were secured by collaterals. The interest rates was 10%. After
due assessment of the credit risks of the Group's finance
leasing customers, the Directors believe that comparable
market interest rates were applied.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)

BIEEswmBRaIT @

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Money Lending

The Group's loan financing service in Hong Kong was
provided by a company incorporated in Hong Kong licensed
as a money lender under the Money Lender Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the loan financing
service of the Group includes providing unsecured or secured
loans to its customers, which include both individual and
corporate customers.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had one money lending
individual customer with a principal unsecured loan amount
of HK$8 million.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group’s loan balance in the money
lending business amounted to approximately HK$1.5 million.
The interest was charged at 8% per annum. After due
assessment of the credit risks of the Group’s money lending
customers, the Directors believe that comparable market
interest rates were applied.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Reporting Year, the Group had recorded
approximately HK$41.22 million in revenue, representing a
decrease of approximately 63.25% as compared with that in
the Prior Year of approximately HK$112.16 million. Operating
loss from continuing operations for the Reporting Year was
approximately HK$486.09 million as compared with an
operating loss from continuing operations of approximately
HK$115.57 million for the Prior Year. Net loss for the Reporting
Year was approximately HK$506.50 million, representing
an increase of approximately 4.12 times as compared with
the net loss in the Prior Year of approximately HK$122.87
million. The net loss was mainly attributable to (i) the
recognition of impairment losses under expected credit 10ss
model, net of reversal of approximately HK$359.49 million;
(i) the recognition of impairment losses on goodwill of
approximately HK$129.03 million; and (iii) the decrease in
revenue and gross profit of approximately HK$70.94 million
and HK$43.34 million respectively, as compared to the Prior
Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
EEENmRDT @

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B4 7 [ElRE =)

The following table sets forth a summary of the performance TR AEBMPRBREEE 2 EERE
of the Group for the Reporting Year with comparative figures ERIEAEMLEEHEFNOF :
for the Prior Year as follows:

For the year ended 30 June
BEANA=1tHLEE

2023 2022
== .S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TAT
(RENEIE))
(B2 E5))
Revenue W= 41,219 112,161
Gross profit EF 35,591 78,934
Operating loss RERIE (486,091) (115,573)
Operating loss margin (%) RS ESR (%) (1,179.29)% (103.04)%
Net loss on financial assets at FVTPL ~ RAF ET ABREZ
TMBEZEIBTE (830) (803)
Impairment loss on goodwill e RERE (129,032) (111,418)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets (A EEHERE (970) =
Impairment loss on intangible assets AL & EREEIE (730) -
Impairment losses under ECL BHREERBEXETNZ
model, net of reversal BERE (ARER) (359,493) (45,632)
Loss for the year FERIE (506,497) (122,867)
Revenue U a5

The revenue had decreased by approximately HK$70.94 W zmH AXF49112,160,000%8 TR D4
million, or approximately 63.24%, from approximately  70,940,0007 7t 3l £963.24% E 3R & F E 49
HK$112.16 million for the Prior Year to approximately 41,220,000 Co B/ b TEHNRBESEEX
HK$41.22 million for the Reporting Year. The decrease  {bR iR %453 =B UK &5 8k . 4946,910,00078 75 Kz
was mainly attributable to the decrease in the revenue of  BRE 4 ZBUR &8 L £924,030,00078 7T ©

the cultural and entertainment segment of approximately

HK$46.91 million and the decrease in the revenue of the

financing segment of approximately HK$24.03 million for the

Reporting Year.
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The other losses had decreased by approximately HK$4.20
million, or approximately 54.03%, from net other losses of
approximately HK$7.77 million for the Prior Year to net other
losses of approximately HK$3.57 million for the Reporting
Year.

During the Reporting Year, the Group had not recognised
loss on modification of factoring loans (2022: approximately
HK$4.63 million).

During the Reporting Year, the Group recognised impairment
loss on goodwill of approximately HK$129.03 million, of which
approximately HK$126.51 million was for Cheer Sino Group
cash-generating unit ("CGU(s)"), approximately HK$2.09
million was for Fortune Selection Group CGU, approximately
HK$0.33 million and approximately HK$0.10 million were
for CIS CGU and Hanahal CGU, respectively. The impairment
loss on goodwill increased from approximately HK$111.42
million in the Prior Year to approximately HK$129.03 million
in the Reporting Year was mainly attributable to the operating
environment of the relevant businesses after relaxation of
social distancing measures not having improved during the
second half of the Reporting Year.

The impairment loss on goodwill was mainly represented
by the current market situation surrounding the Group
relating to the deterioration in the cultural and entertainment
business in Mainland China; the cultural and entertainment
business segment comprising Cheer Sino Group CGU and
Fortune Selection Group CGU contributed approximately 99%
of the impairment loss on goodwill. Goodwill is measured as
the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at the date of
acquisition. The details of the acquisition of Cheer Sino Group
CGU and Fortune Selection Group CGU are as follows:
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HEEHtERFERAY3,570,0008 7T
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Fortune Selection Group CGU

On 7 April 2017, the Company (as purchaser) entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party (as vendor), for the acquisition of 100% equity interest
in Fortune Selection Limited and its subsidiaries (“Fortune
Selection Group”) through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Super Team Developments Limited, at a consideration of
HK$48,024,000, which was satisfied by the Company by way
of issue of convertible bonds at zero coupon interest rate.
The acquisition was completed on 13 July 2017. Fortune
Selection Group is principally engaged in the provision of
brand management and related services. Please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 7 April 2017 and the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018
published on 26 October 2018 for further details.

Cheer Sino Group CGU

On 24 November 2017, the Company (as purchaser) entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party (as vendor), for the acquisition of 100% equity
interest in Cheer Sino Investment Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Cheer Sino Group”), at the consideration of
HK$268,000,000, of which HK$168,000,000 shall be settled by
the issue of convertible notes and HK$100,000,000 shall be
settled in cash. The acquisition was completed on 8 March
2018. Cheer Sino Group is principally engaged in the provision
of promotion and consulting services. Please refer to the
Company’s circular dated 19 January 2018 and the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018
published on 26 October 2018 for further details.

As mentioned under the section headed “Cultural and
Entertainment Business” above, many of our NOD Union
members and customers experienced significant reductions
in revenue due to the economic devastation brought by
the COVID-19 pandemic starting from 2020 as well as the
weakening of business economies in Mainland China, which
affected most of our customers operating restaurants and
entertainment stores with their business temporarily closed
and being forced to cease operations. This had eventually led
to a drop in the number of our customers or members year-
by-year. During the Reporting Year, many existing customers
did not renew their contracts or memberships with the Group
as their operations were suspended, which resulted in a
significant decrease in the number of customers and hence
the Group's actual revenue as well as the forecast revenue
for Fortune Selection Group and Cheer Sino Group from the
financial years ending 2024 to the financial years ending 2026
and the period beyond the three financial years ending 2026.
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Cheer Sino Group CGU (Continued)

Valuation

The valuation method of discounted cash flow was adopted
for the calculation of the value-in-use (“VIU") using the
income approach. Such income approach is an appropriate
valuation method that can reflect the value of cash flow
generated by continuous operation of the assets, which
is consistent with the requirements under Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36 — Impairment of Assets (“HKAS
36") in determining the VIU of the CGUs. Under the aforesaid
valuation method, the following elements shall be reflected
in the calculation of the relevant CGU's VIU: (1) an estimate
of the future cash flows the entity expects to derive from the
CGU; (2) expectations of possible variations in the amount
or timing of those future cash flows; and (3) the time value
of money. The recoverable amount of the CGU should be
the higher of (i) the fair value less costs of disposal; and (ii)
the VIU. After assessing both the VIU and the fair value, the
valuation opted for the VIU being the higher between the two
figures.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs were determined based
on a VIU calculation with the assistance of an independent
valuer, Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (the “Valuer”). The
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the Group. Assumptions were used in
the VIU calculation of the CGUs for the Reporting Year and the
Prior Year.

The Group determined budgeted gross margins based on
past performance, existing sales contracts, and expectations
for market development. The discount rates used are post-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUS.
The terminal growth rate used is made with reference to
the long-term average growth rates and expected market
development. The cash flows for both the Fortune Selection
CGU and the Cheer Sino CGU beyond the three financial
years ending 2026 were 0 using the estimated terminal
growth rate of 0% as at 30 June 2023 and 2% in the previous
valuation as at 30 June 2022 with reference to the long-
term inflation rate of the PRC. The Company and the Valuer
had been in active discussion on the valuation of the CGUs
for impairment testing. The Board and the audit committee
of the Board ("Audit Committee”) considered that the
assumptions applied were fair and reasonable in light of the
current status of the contracts on-hand.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)

EEESwmEDT @

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Impairment Loss on Goodwill (Continuea)
Cheer Sino Group CGU (Continued)

Valuation (Continued)

The Group has engaged the Valuer to prepare a valuation (the
“Valuation”) for the purpose of assessing the impairment
loss on goodwill. The following table summarises the
significant inputs of the Valuation on Fortune Selection Group
CGU and Cheer Sino Group CGU:

Bt#5lEE (@

BERERER @
ETEEREELEN (B

1418 (&)

FEBCZBMLEMETHE (IEE)
et mE R ERE - TRMAFortune
SelectionE RS ELE B RKESERR
TELBUZGEERBARE

Fortune Selection Cheer Sino
Fortune Selection =K

2023

—— =
—_—= =

HK$'000
FHET

Average of three-year = HARITF91E :

period:

- Revenue — & 565

Other inputs: H s A % ¢
- Discount rate —AhIR= 13.80%
- Terminal growth rate —R& B EX N/A
(note 1)
RiEFH
GEAD)

2022 2022

== — ==
— T —— — S ——

HK$'000 HK$'000
THBTT THBTT

2,204 - 22,559
13.06% 13.80% 13.06%
2.00% N/A 2.00%

(note 1)

RER

(BfF5E1)

Note 1: Since there was no positive cash flow at terminal year, terminal
growth rate is not applicable.
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Cheer Sino Group CGU (Continued)

Impairment review

The financial performances of Fortune Selection Group CGU
and Cheer Sino Group CGU were unable to achieve the
forecast prepared previously. As a result, the Group revised
the carrying amounts of the Fortune Selection Group CGU
and the Cheer Sino Group CGU downwards based on their
respective cash flow forecasts, and hence recognised an
impairment loss on goodwill.

The Group revised the two forecast projections in the
coming three financial years in accordance with the
historical performance of the CGUs and having taken into
consideration higher degree of estimation uncertainties due
to non-continuance after the expiry of existing contractual
arrangements on most customers in the cultural and
entertainment segment. Please refer to the subsection
headed “Valuation” above for the basis and assumptions
used in the Valuation; the inputs and assumptions used in
the Valuation as at 30 June 2023 had a significant change
in cashflow forecast from those previously adopted. The
major change in circumstances that led to the revision
of the cashflow forecast is attributable to the fact that
our customers had temporarily suspended or even
closed-down their operations since the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic which greatly affected the cultural and
entertainment segment, in which many existing customers
did not renew their contracts or memberships with the Group
which resulted in a significant decrease in the number of
customers and hence the Group’s actual revenue and also
the forecast revenue for Fortune Selection Group CGU and
Cheer Sino Group CGU from the financial years ending 2024
to the financial years ending 2026 and the period beyond the
three financial years ending 2026.

During the Reporting Year, the Group had considered the
rise in inflation rate and the fear of global recession causing
uncertainty in the world economy. Despite the consumption
in the PRC increased slightly more after the ease of COVID-19
pandemic restrictions, the Group's revenue had not been
boosted.
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During the Reporting Year, the Group recognised impairment
losses under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model, net of
reversal of approximately HK$359.49 million. The impairment
assessment under ECL model is performed individually or
based on a provision matrix. The credit risk has increased
significantly as there is a higher risk that a prolonged
pandemic could lead to increased credit default rates.
However, such credit default rates had not dropped after
relaxation of social distancing measures as our customers are
still suffering from ripple effect of the COVID-19 pandemic.
In particular, enterprises, shops and restaurants remain
adversely impacted resulting in temporary suspension or
even close-down of their operations. The ECLS are estimated
based on the probability of default and loss given default
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or
effort.

Factoring Receivables

Among impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal
of approximately HK$359.49 million during the Reporting Year,
approximately HK$327.3 million or approximately 91.0% were
attributable to factoring receivables of the Group.

Factors considered for impairment recognition

As at 30 June 2023, all of the Group's factoring receivables
have defaulted in payment of either interest or principal
and the Group has taken actions to recover the balances.
The Directors considered all factoring receivables are credit-
impaired and provided specific ECL provision for the overdue
factoring receivables. The specific ECL provision has been
arrived at after the Group having considered the indications
of an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
recoverability of the factoring receivables. Some of the
indications that the Group considered are, among others, (i)
the customers’ failure to repay the outstanding interest and/
or principal and request for a roll-over of the balances; and
(i) the customers’ request for a waiver of interest; or the
combined effect of multiple events and may not necessarily
be due to a single event.
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Factoring Receivables (Continued)

Reason for impairment recognition

The Group performed impairment assessment at the end of
the Reporting Year using the ECL model as required by Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards 9 — Financial Instruments
("HKFRS 9"), and the accounting policy, key assumptions
and inputs as stated in Notes 3 and 5(b) to the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Year
(the “Consolidated Financial Statements”).

As mentioned under the subsection headed “Factors
considered for impairment recognition” above, all of the
Group's factoring receivables have defaulted in payments of
either interest or principal and faced severe cash flow issues,
and the Group has taken actions to recover the overdue
balances. ECLs are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls, being the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. As at 30
June 2023, the Group considered the loss rate of the overdue
factoring receivables had significantly increased, the loss rate
for overdue factoring receivables ranged from approximately
28% (i.e. probability of default being 38% and recovery rate
being 28%) which are not yet matured, to approximately 72%
(i.e. probability of default being 100% and recovery rate being
28%) which are already matured, as at 30 June 2023 (2022:
ranged from approximately 0.1% (i.e. probability of default
being 0.2% and recovery rate being 47%) to approximately
10% (i.e. probability of default being 19% and recovery rate
being 47%)) with reference to the valuation performed by a
valuer engaged by the Company. The Directors considered
the recovery rate of the factoring receivables of the Group
had significantly reduced due to the deterioration of the value
of collaterals held, such as the pledged account receivables
from secured factoring receivables. The Group generally
estimated the loss rates based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort as well as the fair value of the collateral
pledged by the customers.
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The Group’s selling expenses had decreased by
approximately HK$3.74 million, or approximately 42.02%,
from approximately HK$8.90 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$5.16 million for the Reporting Year. Such
decrease was primarily affected by the decrease in revenue.

The Group’s adminstrative expenses for the Reporting Year
remained relatively stable at approximately HK$23.68 million
(2022: approximately HK$23.68 million).

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s operating loss
from continuing operations for the Reporting Year was
approximately HK$486.09 million, as compared with an
operating loss from continuing operations of approximately
HK$115.57 million for the Prior Year. The Group had an
operating loss margin of approximately 1,179.29% for the
Reporting Year, as compared with an operating loss margin
of approximately 103.04% for the Prior Year. The significant
increase in operating loss was mainly due to the decrease
in revenue, the increase in impairment loss on goodwill and
impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal led by
the ensuing adverse effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
Group's operations during the Reporting Year.

Operating conditions during the Reporting Year remained
challenging due to mounting macroeconomic and
geopolitical uncertainties and consumption weakness
arising from COVID-19 pandemic outbreaks. In spite of the
gradual relaxation of the anti-COVID-19's social distancing
requirements, such measures did not bring any positive
impact to the Group during the second half of the Reporting
Year.

The Group's finance costs had decreased by approximately
HK$0.82 million, or approximately 16.98%, from
approximately HK$4.83 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$4.01 million for the Reporting Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)

BIEEswmBRaIT @

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

The Group's loss for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company had increased by approximately HK$383.63 million,
or approximately 4.12 times, from approximately HK$122.87
million for the Prior Year to approximately HK$506.50 million
for the Reporting Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not
hold any significant investments during the Reporting Year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2023, the Group's total current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$182.91 million
(2022: approximately HK$559.47 million) and approximately
HK$58.12 million (2022: approximately HK$56.51 million),
respectively, while the current ratio was about 3.15 times
(2022: about 9.90 times).

As at 30 June 2023, the Group maintained cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$2.40 million (2022:
approximately HK$71.76 million). The cash and bank balances
of the Group as at 30 June 2023 were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and Renminbi (“RMB").

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Group had no material
capital commitments contracted but not provided for.

As at 30 June 2023, the Company'’s issued share capital was
approximately HK$4.11 million (2022: approximately HK$3.71
million) with 2,054,153,277 (2022: 1,855,903,277) ordinary
shares of HK$0.002 each in issue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL RESOURCES (continued)

In the foreseeable future, the Group expects to fund its capital
expenditures, working capital and other capital requirements
from the internal resources and other financing means which
the Company may from time to time consider appropriate. As
at 30 June 2023, the Group’s borrowing and corporate bonds
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were approximately HK$43.91 million (2022: approximately — — — £ : £940,510,00078 75) ©
HK$40.51 million).
2023
HK$'000
FHET
Borrowing and corporate bonds (EL/V-YNCIKE=E=S
Within 1 year —FR 43,906 40,507
Over 1 year and within 5 years —FUEREFEUR - -
Total 4azt 43,906 40,507
The Group manages its capital to safeguard the Group's ZHEBEBEHBEAR > UREREBEFEL

ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders of the Company through maintaining
the equity and debt in a balanced position.

As at 30 June 2023, the corporate bonds of approximately
HK$40.67 million were unsecured and fixed rate interest
bearing debt securities. As at 30 June 2023, the borrowing of
RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,235,000)
was interest bearing at interest rate 3.8% per annum,
unsecured, guaranteed by a Director and his spouse.

The gearing ratio is the ratio of total debt divided by
total assets. As at 30 June 2023, the gearing ratio was
approximately 23.98% (2022: approximately 5.76%).

As at 30 June 2023, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital
assets as at 30 June 2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during
the Reporting Year.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Reporting Year (2022: HK$NIil).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

The Group has no significant event after the end of the
Reporting Year up to the date of this annual report.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The past three years were so eventful that most enterprises
experienced unprecedented challenges. Multiple unexpected
factors gave rise to a tough time for the Group to keep a
stable development and its normal operations. Although
the COVID-19 pandemic has subsided and both the PRC
and Hong Kong governments have relaxed anti-pandemic
measures, it still takes time for businesses to resume under
the sluggish global economy.

Faced with such market pressures and challenges, the Group
constantly reviews and consolidates insights. We understand
that remaining stagnant would only lag ourselves behind
our peers. Therefore, after prudent consideration, the Group
and its management decided to discontinue operation of
its exhibitions and events business in order to allocate its
resources more efficiently on existing and potential business
projects.

The Group and its management recognise the importance
of diversity of income streams under the adverse
market condition. Except for seeking various channels
for fund raising, the Group will prudently monitor the
potential business opportunities and make full use of our
existing resources to strive for more diversified business
opportunities, so as to diversify our business risk and income
stream as well as to maximise shareholders’ value as a
whole.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES IN THE PAST
TWELVE MONTHS

Save as disclosed below, there was no other equity fund
raising activity of the Company during the last 12 months
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prior to the date of this annual report:

30 December 2022 and
20 January 2023

Placing of ordinary
shares (the "Placing”)

HK$13.50 million (i) Approximately 22.22% towards the

repayment of debts of the Group;

Fully used as intended

(i) Approximately 18.52% towards
potential investments when
opportunities arise; and

(i) Remaining amount towards
replenishment of working capital of
the Group to support its business
operations
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During the Reporting Year, with view to bringing in additional
capital to the Company and strengthening the cash flow
position of the Group, a total of 198,250,000 ordinary shares
of the Company have been issued under general mandate
through a placing agent to not less than six independent
placees at HK$0.073 per placing share (net price per placing
share: approximately HK$0.068; closing price of shares on 30
December 2022: HK$0.09 per share) pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the placing agreement dated 30 December
2022. For other details of the Placing, please refer to the
announcements of the Company respectively dated 30
December 2022 and 20 January 2023.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE
The Group manages or operates its business in Hong Kong

and the PRC and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
financial instruments for hedging purpose.

RREFE > BRAAB]SIARBEIIERK
MREAEEZRERERT  BBHEER
BRE—REERBEHHEAZS 6+
B=tHZzEEHERBERKEL EER
BLE R150.073B T2 BB LR E
17 A Be A 2175 $£198,250,00008 4 A B &
B (BREEERMDIFE 800688 5T 5 1
TEICF+ZA=+tHRHUTE S
f%0.097%7T) - BRARCE 2 HMEF15 > B2
RXRABIHAMNAZE_“F+A=1+
BrZZEZ=F—BZ+HzRfk°

I BE L B
AEENREBRTEEEREEL R
TERSFHFRRNEMTAEENIE

e

30 NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had a total of 23 full-time
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC (2022: 96 full-time
employees). The remuneration payable to its employees
included salaries, discretionary bonus and commissions.
Remuneration packages were generally structured according
to market situations and individual performance. Apart from
the mandatory provident fund and statutory retirement
benefits, the Group also provided medical benefits and
trainings to its employees. The Company has also adopted a
share option scheme as incentive to eligible employees.

Furthermore, the remuneration committee of the Board
will review and give recommendations to the Board as to
the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management of the Group with reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management of
the Group.

The total remuneration paid to employees, including
the Directors, for the Reporting Year was approximately
HK$13,240,000 (2022: approximately HK$18,395,000).
Remuneration was determined with reference to market
terms and the performance, qualification and experience of
each individual employee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
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AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE
GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION

As stated in the report (the “Independent Auditor’s
Report”) by the independent auditor of the Company (the
“Independent Auditor”) on pages 144 to 150 of this
annual report, the Independent Auditor does not express
an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, as
due to the significance of the matters described in the
section headed “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” of the
Independent Auditor’'s Report, being material uncertainties
on (i) the Group's ability to continue as a going concern (the
“Material Uncertainties on Going Concern”); (i) the
assessment of the recoverability of the factoring receivables,
finance lease receivables and trade receivables of the
Group (the “Material Uncertainties on Receivables”);
and (iii) the validity of receipts (“Receipts”) from several
independent third parties (“Third Parties”) as settlements
(“sSettlements”) of the principal and interest of factoring
receivables (the “Material Uncertainties on Third Party
Settlement”), the Independent Auditor has not been able
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. In all other respects, in the Independent Auditor’s
opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
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AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE

GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF

OPINION (continued)

Material Uncertainties on Going Concern

Please refer to the subsection headed “A) MATERIAL
UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO GOING CONCERN" of the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 145 to 146 of
this annual report for details in relation to the basis for
the disclaimer of opinion of the Independent Auditor in
relation to the Material Uncertainties on Going Concern
(the "Disclaimer on Going Concern”).

As the validity of the preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements on going concern basis depends
on the outcome of several measures, the Independent
Auditor has requested the Company for supporting
evidence of the assumptions in the cashflow forecast
which are subject to multiple uncertainties, including (i)
the successful recovery of overdue receivables; (i) the
obtaining of additional sources of financing as and when
needed; and (iii) the successful improvement in the
Company’'s operation to generate sufficient operating
cash inflow. However, no such evidence can be provided
as the Group was still in the course of taking actions to
recover the overdue receivables and actively looking
for additional sources of financing as at the date of the
Independent Auditor's Report. In this regard, although
the Independent Auditor considers that the going
concern basis of preparing the Consolidated Financial
Statements as well as the material uncertainties relating
to the Group’s going concern have been adequately
disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements, the
Independent Auditor issued the Disclaimer on Going
Concern.

BRHEMZARREARTEES
gﬁ;?gfiﬁéié, {RERIZ 1785t

BRHBEEZERTRABER

BERABIZBMMERSERSE S
AFBHREZAZERRR (THIFEL
ERBRER) 2ERNFB F2
B ARFEIRE145E 1468 B I ZHENR
ETAERITEEE 2 EATHEBAR
Ebag-

AR REFREEEZRRRGEGHMBR
RZBMEBRRETHERZAER
BIUZHEME ERARTRMBESA
RAPRENRZEAHEMERZR
KAV ST R &R - BRI R T UK [B] 2 R
FEUWRRIE (NN R EREREINRE
HR 5 RN E R RB ZEELL
EERHEERTRAAM > @R
PRI MRS B AEBTIE
PRERTT B Ux (o) 78 HA P8 LR IR I A IR =5
KEINRE R IR BORBEIR A RR
R AL BEBIZHMDDHER
REMBREZFEBEEERELURE
BAEEFECEZERNTHABER
ERGEEMBRENTIKE BF
YRBETHFEEETERER -

02/FER « BREBERERAR 50



Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
BIEEswmAaIT @

AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE
GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continued)

34

Material Uncertainties on Going Concern
(Continued)

Actual or potential impact on the Group's financial
position

The Material Uncertainties on Going Concern does not
itself show any actual impact on the Group's financial
position. As set out in Note 3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, the Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared on historical cost
basis except for certain financial instruments that were
measured at fair values at the end of the Reporting Year.
Should the Group fail to achieve the intended effects
resulting from the plans and measures as mentioned
in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, it
might not be able to operate as a going concern, and
adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, and to provide for any further
liabilities that may arise respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)

BIEEswmBRaIT @

AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE
GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continuead)

A. Material Uncertainties on Going Concern
(Continued)

Management's views

In view of the Material Uncertainties on Going Concern,
the management of the Group (including the Directors)
(the “Management”) has given due consideration
related to the Group’s current liquidity, performance
and available sources of financing in assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The
Management will continue to roll on all means available
within the bounds of the law to attempt to recover all
relevant overdue receivables, and has set in motion a
string of likelier financial options to address the brief
working capital issues of the Group. As at the date of
this annual report, the Group is in the process of taking
actions, including but not limited to legal actions, to
recover the overdue receivables (for further details on
the actions taken, please refer to the subsection headed
“B. Material Uncertainties on Receivables” below),
and has obtained a secured loan facility in an amount
of HK$9,000,000 from an independent third party for
general working capital and development of a new
operation in the cultural and entertainment segment.
As such, the Management is in a view that the Group
may have sufficient working capital for a period of not
less than 12 months from 30 June 2023. Hence, the
Management considers that it is appropriate to prepare
the Consolidated Financial Statements on a going
concern basis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
BIEEswmAaIT @

AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION RUMZAERERRETEED
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE AR ERBERBHFINZITENE
GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF &l %)
OPINION (continued)

Material Uncertainties on Going Concern A. ERFEKEZEATHBEER @)

(Continued)
Management's views (Continuead)

EEEER (#)

There was no disagreement between the Management EEREEEBUIZEARAREEL
and the Independent Auditor regarding the Material EEARTHMAZRTEE R 2k
Uncertainties on Going Concern, considering that E%ﬁ?ﬁéﬁﬁ%i&ﬁ@&ﬁ%%%%
the Consolidated Financial Statements have been HERE HAREEBRARZRNET

prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends on the outcome of the measures under
the Management's assumptions which are subject to
certain uncertainties, including the Group's ability to
partially, if not wholly, receive the overdue receivables,
to generate operating cash flows and to obtain
additional sources of financing. While the Company is
of the view that it has already provided all available
information and documents to demonstrate that the
Group will have sufficient working capital for the 12
months after the Reporting Year, the Management
acknowledges the concerns raised by the Independent
Auditor in relation to the Material Uncertainties on
Going Concern as aforementioned and understands
that the Independent Auditor’'s perceived uncertainty
variables, in particular, the recoverability of the Group's
overdue receivables, would not subside with the mere
provision of debt-related document and information,
without, among other things, undertaking any physical
interviews with the debtors of the Group and/or
receiving evidence regarding the financial status of such
debtors (for further details on the information required,
please refer to the subsection headed “B. Material
Uncertainties on Receivables” below).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
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AUDITOR'’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION BHMZABRRERRTE
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE AR BRERERNZ
GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF 2| &

OPINION (continued)

iy
]
ok 2k

Material Uncertainties on Going Concern
(Continued)

Audit Committee's views

The audit committee of the Board (the "Audit
Committee”) has reviewed the Management's position
concerning the Material Uncertainties on Going Concern
and the action plan of the Group to address the Material
Uncertainties on Going Concern as disclosed in the
subsection headed “Proposed Action Plan of the Group
to Address the Disclaimer of Opinion” below. The Audit
Committee has also discussed with the Management
and the Independent Auditor to understand the reason
for the Disclaimer on Going Concern as well as the
views of the Management and the Independent Auditor
in relation thereto. The Audit Committee concurs with
the Management's position and views with respect to
the Material Uncertainties on Going Concern and the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, as well
as the actions to be implemented by the Management
to remove the Disclaimer on Going Concern.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)

BIEEstmBRath @

AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE
GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continuea)

B. Material Uncertainties on Receivables

Please refer to the subsection headed “B)
RECOVERABILITY OF FACTORING RECEIVABLES, FINANCE
LEASE RECEIVABLES AND TRADE RECEIVABLES” of
the Independent Auditor's Report on page 147 of this
annual report for details in relation to the basis for the
disclaimer of opinion of the Independent Auditor in
relation to the Material Uncertainties on Receivables
(the “Disclaimer on Receivables”).

The Independent Auditor has requested for information
relating to the Group's credit risk assessment under
specific expected credit losses, including the financial
status of the debtors of the overdue receivables
of the Group (the “Debtors”), and the Group's
measurement of related collateral values, in assessing
the recoverability of the past due balances; and any of
the Group's enforcement actions against the Debtors,
their related collaterals and guarantors. Although the
Group is still in the process of ascertaining the financial
status of and taking various actions against the Debtors,
the latter have been either lukewarm in their responses,
or lying low outside Hong Kong to evade their liability.
Thus, the Group’s endeavours to prow! for them are
particularly uphill. Under such circumstances, the
Independent Auditor was unable to carry out necessary
audit procedures and to satisfy themselves as to the
recoverability of the Group’s factoring receivables,
finance lease receivables and trade receivables as at
30 June 2023. In this regard, the Independent Auditor
issued the Disclaimer on Receivables as it did not
have sufficient appropriate audit evidence to assess
the recoverable amounts of the factoring receivables,
finance lease receivables and trade receivables of the
Group as at 30 June 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
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AUDITOR'’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION RHRMZAERERRETERD
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE BARBREREBENZITHE
GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF 2| &
OPINION (continued)

Material Uncertainties on Receivables (Continued) B. FREWRIEZEARBHEBAREEZ @)

Actual or potential impact on the Group's financial
position

Due to the uncertainty of the recoverability of the
factoring receivables, finance lease receivables and
trade receivables of the Group, adjustments to the
impairment loss recognised during the Reporting Year
may be necessary, which might have a significant
impact on the Group's financial position as at 30 June
2023, and its financial performance and the elements
making up the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the Reporting Year and related disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Management's views

In view of the Material Uncertainties on Receivables,
the Management has taken necessary actions including
but not limited to legal actions against the Debtors.
In particular, discussions were held with the relevant
customers to understand their specific financial
circumstances and formulate repayment and debt
restructuring plans for payment of the outstanding
balances. The Group has also engaged a PRC legal
adviser in view to commence legal proceedings to
recover the debts and has issued demand letters to the
relevant customers in respect of the debts. As at the
date of this annual report, save for legal action being
taken against one of the Group's financing customers,
no legal action has been commenced against other
financing customers and/or the relevant collaterals and
guarantors.

The Management has also actively discussed with
its independent professional valuer on assessing
the expected credit losses under the impairment
requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard, after taking into account the non-repayment
history, overdue status and the legal actions to be taken
by the Management; these receivables are considered
to be stage 3 credit-impaired with relevant probability of
default and recovery rate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
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AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE
GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continuea)

40

Material Uncertainties on Receivables (Continued)

Management's views (Continuead)

There was no disagreement between the Management
and the Independent Auditor regarding the
Material Uncertainties on Receivables; although the
Management is of the view that it has already provided
all available information and documents to demonstrate
the recoverable amount of these receivables and
such information and documents are reasonable and
supportable, the Management also acknowledges the
uncertainties raised by the Independent Auditor as
aforementioned and that such uncertainties cannot be
satisfied or removed as at the date of this annual report.

Audit Committee's views

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Management's
position concerning the Material Uncertainties on
Receivables and the action plan of the Group to address
such uncertainties as disclosed in the subsection
headed “Proposed Action Plan of the Group to Address
the Disclaimer of Opinion” below. The Audit Committee
has also discussed with the Management and the
Independent Auditor to understand the reason for
the Disclaimer on Receivables as well as the views
of the Management and the Independent Auditor in
relation thereto. The Audit Committee concurs with the
Management's position and views with respect to the
Material Uncertainties on Receivables and the actions
to be implemented by the Management to remove the
Disclaimer on Receivables.

Material Uncertainties on Third Party Settlement

Please refer to the subsection headed “C) RECEIPTS
FROM SEVERAL INDEPENDENT THIRD PARTIES” of the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on page 148 of this
annual report for details in relation to the basis for
the disclaimer of opinion of the Independent Auditor
in relation to the Material Uncertainties on Third
Party Settlement (the “Disclaimer on Third Party
Settlement”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
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AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE

GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF

OPINION (continued)

C. Material Uncertainties on Third Party Settlement

(Continued)

The Independent Auditor has requested for
documentation of (i) the background of the Third
Parties and the relationships among themselves; (ii)
background checks and credit assessments on the
Third Parties, together with details of the information
reviewed by the Group at the time of accepting the
Receipts; and (iii) information used for assessing the
occurrence and underlying commercial substance
of and business reasons for the Settlements. As the
Management in the PRC (the “PRC Management”)
has only obtained an entrusted payment agreement
(the "Entrusted Payment Agreement”) from the
relevant customer for ascertaining the validity of the
Receipts and Settlements, the Group has then actively
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approached the relevant customer and Third Parties
to obtain the documents required by the Independent
Auditor. However, responses have been negative as
the relevant customer and Third Parties considered
the Settlements were completed. Under such
circumstances, the Independent Auditor was unable to
carry out necessary audit procedures on the Receipts
and Settlements to satisfy themselves as to the validity
of such transactions, and the basis of determining the
presentation of these balances and related disclosures
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. In this regard,
the Independent Auditor issued the Disclaimer on Third
Party Settlement as it did not have sufficient audit
evidence to satisfy the validity of the Receipts and
Settlements and support the basis of determining the
presentation of these balances and related disclosures
in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE
GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continued)

42

Material Uncertainties on Third Party Settlement
(Continued)

Actual or potential impact on the Group's financial
position

Due to the uncertainty on the validity of the Receipts
and Settlements, it is uncertain whether these
transactions were properly accounted for and disclosed
or determined and whether any adjustments to the
impairment loss recognised during the Reporting
Year in respect of the factoring receivables were
necessary, which might have a significant impact on the
Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2023, and its
financial performance and the elements making up the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the Reporting
Year and related disclosures in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Management's views

In view of the Material Uncertainties on Third Party
Settlement, the Management thoroughly assessed
the situation and considered the evidence obtained
by the PRC Management. The Management engaged
in discussions with, reviewed internal records
maintained by, and evaluated the competence of,
the PRC Management. Based on the evaluation, the
Management concluded that the Settlements were
appropriately recorded and the Consolidated Financial
Statements accurately reflected the Company's financial
position and results.

There was no disagreement between the Management
and the Independent Auditor regarding the Material
Uncertainties on Third Party Settlement. Although the
Company is of the view that it has already provided
all explanation, available information and documents
to demonstrate the validity of these transactions and
such information and documents are valid, reasonable
and supportable, the Company also acknowledges the
uncertainties raised by the Independent Auditor as
aforementioned and that such uncertainties cannot be
satisfied or removed as at the date of this annual report.

BYMT FERERRSENS
AR ERE AR TR

C.

BERS=FREZEXRTABESR
(%)

HEEFHAZ NN BB E

AR R AE R 2 BRI FE AR
AR BIAEEXER G EER
ARRIRENEERESAMRS F
& PIRERD 2 1R 1 8 WU RR TR R (B S 1R F
HEMRFAE  ERENAERR _F
“EFEANA=THEZEBRRARER
BEFEZMBRERGSRERE
RZEMBRUKRIGEHHFREARNZ
HEARBERNERTE -

EEEER
ENBRFE=NEEZERTHMA
X EEEZEMLAMBRILERE
TEHEEEESZ /RE BEEEAD
BEEEEETm BRERTFZA
ek WL HAES] o IRIFFTE - B
EEARGEHECBEERR Kl
BREEERRAERE ZH BN RT R
ES L

EEEEBU BN AEE =04
BZEXRTHAMBERTIESER k-
BEAADRSHCRHFAAERRE
ARBEMEXAERERERZZEN
Mo BERENEAXHBAEN GHE
K Pl 58 0 BAA B IR AR EAUIE I %
NEMIE b 2 AR R » AR A
¥ B HARBE S M BUHPRE I BRI A
%O

NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



Management Discussion and A
BEEwmEkAT @

AUDITOR’'S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE
GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continuea)

C. Material Uncertainties on Third Party Settlement
(Continued)

Audit Committee's views

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Management'’s
position concerning the Material Uncertainties on Third
Party Settlement and the action plan of the Group
to address such uncertainties as disclosed in the
subsection headed “Proposed Action Plan of the Group
to Address the Disclaimer of Opinion” below. The Audit
Committee has also discussed with the Management
and the Independent Auditor to understand the reason
for the Disclaimer on Third Party Settlement as well as
the views of the Management and the Independent
Auditor in relation thereto. The Audit Committee
concurs with the Management's position and views
with respect to the Material Uncertainties on Third Party
Settlement and the actions to be implemented by the
Management to remove the Disclaimer on Third Party
Settlement.

In order to address the uncertainties which may cast doubt
regarding the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
and with a view to removing the disclaimer of opinion, the
Group has taken and intends to continue to implement the
measures as detailed below to mitigate the liquidity pressure
and to improve its cash flows, including:

(1) The Board is satisfied that the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due in the foreseeable future, after taking
into consideration points 1) to 3) under the subsection
headed “"Going concern assumption” as set out in
Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
Management recognises that relevant evidence is
required to resolve the Independent Auditor’'s concern
on the going concern issue. As such, the Management
will closely monitor the progress of the recovery
actions and commence contacting and negotiating
with various financial institutions for obtaining possible
credit facilities. The Management will also consider any
feasible plan from the potential investors on corporate
restructuring and will proceed as and when appropriate
and practicable. As at the date of this annual report,

nalysis (continuead)
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AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE
GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continued)

44

save for a secured loan facility in an amount of
HK$9,000,000 made available by an independent third
party to the Company for general working capital of
the Company and development of a new operation in
the segment of Cultural and Entertainment, no further
confirmed proposal or plan has been established
but given the Management's continuous efforts in
taking actions to recover the overdue receivables of
the Group as set out in the subsection headed “B.
Material Uncertainties on Receivables” above, obtaining
additional sources of financing and improving the
Group's operations, the Management is optimistic that
an action plan with further details will be in place by
the end of the second quarter of 2024. In view of the
foregoing, and assuming the Group's plans or actions
can be substantially completed as planned, including
the recovery of receivables from customers, the
obtaining of alternative financing and/or successful
completion of corporate restructuring plan, and no new
circumstances and conditions would have occurred,
subject to satisfactory review of the Management's
assessment of the Group’s going concern and
the Independent Auditor being satisfied with the
documents, information and/or evidence to be provided
by the Company going forward, the Directors are of
the view that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due in the next 12 months from 30 June 2023
and the Company is optimistic that the Disclaimer on
Going Concern may be removed in connection with
the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2024. The
Independent Auditor and the Audit Committee, in
light of currently available evidence and the Group's
proposed action plan to address the Disclaimer on
Going Concern, consider that the Group will resolve
the Material Uncertainties on Going Concern when the
Management is able to achieve its planned actions as
aforementioned.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
BIEEswmAaIT @

AUDITOR’S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE
GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continuead)

The Management has engaged a PRC legal advisor
to commence legal proceedings to recover the
outstanding amount from the Debtors. The Management
is of the view that if the overdue balances of the
factoring receivables, finance lease receivables
and trade receivables are unable to be settled or
that a repayment schedule subsequent to the legal
proceedings could not be concluded, the Management
will take further legal action(s) proactively for
enforcement of the collaterals in the PRC to recover
the amounts concerned. In any event, the Group will
continue to negotiate with the Debtors actively with the
objective to come up with a mutually agreed repayment
plan. As at the date of this annual report, legal
proceedings commenced against the Debtors have not
been concluded, nor has any repayment schedule been
confirmed or agreed, but the Management is optimistic
that relevant results will be in place by the end of the
second quarter of 2024. The Independent Auditor and
the Audit Committee, having understood the whys
and wherefores from the Management, consider that
the Group will resolve the Material Uncertainties on
Receivables in line with its planned actions.

ZUMZPAERERRETE
BRATBERERBIRNZ

iy
)|
ok 2k

&l =

EEEEZRETEARZEBREEERR
el UM BIEHAZ REBERE-
EEERR HREERBRIE BB
%HE%H&TAIE&%%F’?H&TAIEZKHH

A5 BR AR BEAS 1 I JE 1R A ER 18 1B TR By
Faﬁ%?ﬁi\/fﬁﬁ c BEER LRSI NT
EIRYIR IR MR IR R EE — AT
8> LUREIHERE 28 - IERIBER T
REEREETHEARHAER U
REEHRSNERSE - NEFER
BH > BEBAREZERFRHER
R4S > TR R B SR B0 E 1E 1) 28wk s
O EEERBELBEISEBERFTN
R FE - FERAIEMN B
ZEBMNEZEZEGNREEE T #
BHEES AEERREHEFET
R AREWRIEZ EXTHMEA
%0

Q02223 o RHREMBRAERAR 45



Management Discussion and Analysis (continuead)
BIEEswmAaIT @

AUDITOR’'S DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
AND PROPOSED ACTION PLAN OF THE
GROUP TO ADDRESS THE DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION (continuea)

46

The Management is in the course of obtaining a legal
opinion (the “Legal Opinion”) on the validity and
enforceability of the Entrusted Payment Agreement
to satisfy the Independent Auditor’s requirement
for ascertaining the validity of the Receipts and
Settlements. The Management believes that the
Company can obtain the Legal Opinion by the first
quarter of 2024. At the same time, to prevent similar
uncertainties from arising again in the future, the
Management will strengthen the internal control
measures of the Group to ensure improvement in
the documentation of accounting records and the
reliability of financial information. These measures
include enhancing the effective risk management and
continuing to exercise due care, skill and diligence in
monitoring loans repayments, implementing robust
approval processes, and conducting review on the
internal control systems to identify and rectify any
weaknesses. In cases where necessary information
cannot be obtained, the Management will take a more
prudent approach or even refrain from approving
such transactions. The Management will also improve
documentation practices to ensure clear and detailed
evidence supporting the Group’s financial transactions
and activities are in place. In particular, the Group
will more frequently engage in discussions with
the Independent Auditor on the audit evidence and
supporting documents required and explore any
alternative procedure at early stage to ensure adequate
audit evidence are in place. The Group will also from
time to time update the Independent Auditor on any
updated information that might affect the accounting
treatment of the Group and specifically discuss with
the Independent Auditor on whether additional audit
evidence would be required as a result of such update.
The Independent Auditor and the Audit Committee, in
light of currently available evidence and the Group's
proposed action plan to address the Disclaimer on Third
Party Settlement, consider that the Group will resolve
the Material Uncertainties on Third Party Settlement
when the Management is able to obtain the Legal
Opinion as aforementioned.
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Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan (“Mr. Wong"), aged 49, was appointed
as an executive director (“Directors”) of the Company on 15
July 2020. Mr. Wong is currently the chairman of the board
of Directors (the “Board”) and the chief executive officer of
the Company and is also the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Board and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Board.

Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Sunderland with
a bachelor’s degree in accounting and finance. Mr. Wong had
been working with various accounting firms and commercial
companies and has over 23 years of experience in merger
and acquisitions, financial management, taxation, audit and
non-audit services.

Mr. Wong has served as an independent non-executive
director of Huisheng International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1340) since July 2017, Smart City Development Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8268) since July 2019, and Kin Shing
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1630) since December 2021.
Mr. Wong is also a non-executive director of TFG International
Group Limited (stock code: 542) since March 2023, the issued
shares of all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Wong is also
an independent non-executive director of Temir Corp. (stock
code: TMRR) since July 2019, the issued shares of which are
traded on the OTC Securities Marketplace in the United States
of America.

Mr. Deng Zhonglin (“Mr. Deng"), aged 49, was appointed as
an executive Director on 14 October 2016. Mr. Deng holds
directorships in several subsidiaries of the Company including
BInEMBEMRE (R BRAE (transliterated as Furuida
Financial Leasing (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) and _i&5H5 /%17
BEIRAT (transliterated as Shanghai Shouxin Commercial
Factoring Co., Ltd.), etc.
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Mr. Deng graduated from Shenzhen University in 1995. He
has over 23 years of experience in corporate management
and strategic planning. He is familiar with the exhibition
industry and the operation of advertising business. Mr.
Deng served as an assistant to the general manager of Lt
BEBEAMEAMAT (transliterated as Shanghai Wanzhou
Shipping Co., Ltd.) from 1999 to 2003. Mr. Deng served as the
managing director of X ZEMBEBIR AT (transliterated
as Ever Maru Shipping Co., Ltd.) from 2004 to 2009. Mr. Deng
also served as the general manager of LBEBRESE
EAMR/AT (transliterated as Shanghai Public Advertising
communications Co., Ltd.) from 2010 to 2017, which was
mainly engaged in advertising, display and exhibition services
as well as conference services.

Mr. Lam Wai Hung (“Mr. Lam”), aged 43, was appointed as an
executive Director on 6 April 2023. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor
of Accounting and Finance Degree from Leeds Metropolitan
University and is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He had been working in various
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, and was responsible
for works related to financial management, corporate finance,
merger and acquisition, investor relationship and corporate
governance.

Mr. Lam is currently an independent non-executive director
of Far East Holdings International Limited (stock code: 36),
Kin Shing Holdings Limited (stock code: 1630) and Smart City
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 8268), the issued
shares of all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of Jimu
Group Limited (stock code: 8187) from 25 May 2021 to 14
January 2022, the issued shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange.
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Ms. Huang Chian Sandy (“Ms. Huang"), aged 51, was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 15 July 2020. Ms.
Huang graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a
diploma in design. Ms. Huang has over 23 years of experience
in managing real estate agency business and real estate
credit fund in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Ms. Huang has been the founder of L/&8ZfERMEZ
BPRAT (transliterated as Shanghai Mengteng Real Estate
Information Company Limited) since December 2018. MSs.
Huang served as the chief executive officer and the regional
director of L8R EMEL 4 ERBRAE (transliterated
as Keller Williams Greater Shanghai Company Limited)
from July 2016 to November 2018. Ms. Huang founded
and served as the chief executive officer of E/B3RER
BEEMEBHAMRAT (transliterated as Yida Investments
Management & Consultancy (Shanghai) Company Limited),
and served as the chief investment officer of BRJ Asset
Management Limited from August 2011 to July 2016. Ms.
Huang served as the chief operating officer of E/BEAEE
REFEE Z B BR/AT (transliterated as Carnaby (Shanghai)
Company Limited) from July 2009 to July 2011. Ms. Huang
served as the general manager of LiBiREEMEKLER
BAPRAT (transliterated as Shanghai Ruifeng Real Estate
Investment Consultants Company Limited) from October 2006
to November 2008. Ms. Huang also founded and served as
the general manager of L BB M ERESEMERAT
(transliterated as Bonity Property Group (Shanghai) Limited)
from December 2002 to October 2006.

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (“Mr. Tsang"), aged 61, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 9 March 2017. Mr.
Tsang is currently the chairman of the audit committee of the
Board and a member of the remuneration committee of the
Board. Mr. Tsang has over 28 years of experience in finance,
accounting and auditing. Mr. Tsang obtained a professional
diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic
(currently known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
in November 1987 and a master of professional accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2000. Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (FCPA) and a fellow member
of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants (FCCA).
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Mr. Tsang was a chief financial officer of Xin Dau Ji
Membership Management Limited from July 2015 to
September 2019. Mr. Tsang was an independent non-
executive director of VBG International Holdings Limited
(currently known as Hatcher Group Limited), a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8365)
from May 2017 to December 2017. Mr. Tsang was an
independent non-executive director of ICube Technology
Holdings Limited (currently known as Central Wealth Group
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 139) from November 2014
to July 2016. Mr. Tsang was an independent non-executive
director of Unity Investments Holdings Limited (currently
known as Harbour Digital Asset Capital Limited), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
913) from September 2004 to October 2014. Mr. Tsang was
also an executive director of Noble Jewelry Holdings Limited
(currently known as Central Development Holdings Limited),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 475) from August 2008 to December 2011.

Dr. Wong Kong Tin, JP (“Dr. Wong"), aged 56, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 13 December
2017. Dr. Wong is the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Board, and a member of each of the audit
committee and the nomination committee of the Board. He
has over 30 years of practical experience in the legal fields
of cross-border investment in Greater China, financing,
corporate acquisition, merger, listing, real estate project
development, e-commerce, brand management, corporate
governance, arbitration mediation, and media and public
administration.

Dr. Wong holds an LLB and LLM from Peking University,
postgraduate diploma in English and Hong Kong Law from
The Manchester Metropolitan University in the United
Kingdom, and LLD in constitutional and administrative law
from Renmin University of China. He is also an associate of
each of Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and Hong Kong
Institute of Arbitrators, a Hong Kong registered financial
planner, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an
accredited general mediator of the Hong Kong Mediation
Accreditation Association Limited, a founding member of The
Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association,
and an associate of The Hong Kong Association of Financial
Advisors Limited.
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Dr. Wong's current community services include: the chairman
of the Hong Kong Liquor Licensing Board, the chairperson
of the Property Management Services Authority, a member
of the Advisory Committee on Post-service Employment of
Civil Servants of the Government of Hong Kong, a member
of the Citizens Advisory Committee on Community Relations
of the Independent Commission Against Corruption, the vice
chairman of the Association of Hong Kong Professionals, a
member of each of the Finance Committee and Management
Ccommittee of Hong Kong News-Expo and an executive
committee member of the Basic Law Institute Limited. He
was also an observer of Independent Police Complaints
Council from September 2007 to August 2015, a member
of the panel to the Appeal Board (Hotel and Guesthouse
Accommodation), a member of the panel to the Appeal Board
(Bedspace Apartments), a member of the panel to the Appeal
Board (Clubs (Safety of Premises)) from April 2012 to April
2018, a member of the Panel of Adjudicators of the Obscene
Articles Tribunal from August 2010 to August 2019 and a
member of the Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal Panel from May
2010 to May 2022.

Dr. Wong currently serves as the vice chairman of the Greater
China Legal Affairs Committee and the Community Relations
Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong. Dr. wWong is
also a member of the tenth to twelfth Shanghai Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
a member of the Chinese Association of Hong Kong and
Macau Studies, a member of the Hong Kong Basic Law and
Macau Basic Law Research Association, a member of Expert
Committee of the China (Guangdong) Free Trade Zone in
Hengaing New Area and an Arbitrator of Court of Arbitration
for Labour and Personal Dispute, Nansha Area, Guangdong
Free Trade Zone.

Dr. Wong also serves as an arbitrator of Arbitration
Commission in Shenzhen, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Zhuhai,
Huizhou, Liuzhou, Zhengzhou, Hohhot, Hainan, Chengde,
Nanchang, Nanning, Taiyuan, Shenyang and Guiyang.

Dr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited (stock
code: 9928). From June 2010 to July 2014, Dr. Wong served
as an independent non-executive director of Great Wall
Technology Company Limited (original stock code: 74) which
was privatised and automatically delisted from the Stock
Exchange in July 2014.
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Mr. To Chun Wai (“Mr. To"), aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 May 2023. Mr.
To is currently a member of each of the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of
the Board. He has wide administrative and management
experiences in both the public and private sectors, and holds
a master degree of public administration from the University
of Hong Kong.

Mr. To is at present the chief executive officer of a Hong
Kong consultancy company, and an independent non-
executive director of Auto Italia Holdings Limited (stock code:
720), DeTai New Energy Group Limited (stock code: 559),
Greenheart Group Limited (stock code: 94) and ISP Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2340), all of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Prior to Mr. To's retirement in 2011, Mr. To had spent most
of his career with the Hong Kong Police since 1974, during
which Mr. To was promoted to Assistant Commissioner
(Crime), and was responsible for the overall policy design and
operation of, among others, the Commercial Crime Bureau,
the Organized Crime & Triad Bureau, the Criminal Intelligence
Bureau, the Financial Investigation Bureau (Anti Money-
laundering) and the Technology Crime Bureau.

In recognition of Mr. To's long-term and outstanding
service and contribution to the Hong Kong society, Mr. To
was awarded the Police Meritorious Service Medal by the
Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. From 2011 to 2012, he served as a part-time tutor
at the University of Hong Kong teaching applied public
administration and government policy analysis.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors hold any
other position in the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor
any directorship in any public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas in the last three years, nor do they hold any other
major appointments and professional qualifications. Save as
disclosed above, none of the Directors is connected with any
other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders
or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor do they
have any interests in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) (together
with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”)
presents its report and the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023 (the “Reporting Year").

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
during the Reporting Year and the financial key performance
indicators affecting its results and financial position are set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” (“MD&A") of this annual report.

The information about a fair review of, and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business is set out in
the MD&A of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the MD&A of this annual report under
the section headed “Event after the Reporting Period”,
there are no important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the Reporting Year.

The results and business operations of the Group may
be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The
followings are the major risks and uncertainties currently
faced or anticipated by the Group, and it is not meant to be
exhaustive. There may be other risks and uncertainties which
are currently not known to the Group or immaterial but could
turn out to be material in the future.

Operation Risk

The global economy has seen successive shocks in a brief
span of three years. As the world has reopened following
the COVID-19 pandemic, geopolitical tensions have remained
elevated. By recommending to the Board that improvements
be made, the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) continues to assess and manage a wide range
of risks that may affect the Group’s operation and the impact
of economic climate changes on the Group.
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Operation Risk (Continued)

The Group's financing business, including credit factoring,
finance leasing and money lending, requires the renewal of
licences periodically for its operations. The Group might face
non-compliance risk and risk of losing such licences.

The Group has internal control policy and procedures for staff
to follow and has a team to monitor and update the rules and
regulatory requirements.

The Group's business and profitability growth during the
Reporting Year was affected by the increase in competition in
the industry and the volatility and uncertainty of the macro-
economic conditions in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). The Group is expected to continue to be
affected by the above factors.

Financial Risk

The details of financial risk management objectives
and practices of the Group are set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. There may be
other risks and uncertainties in addition to those mentioned
above which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

PRC Economic, Political and Legal Risk

The Group's business operations are mainly conducted in
the PRC and therefore significantly affected by the economic,
political and legal developments in the PRC. The PRC
government may implement various measures to encourage
economic growth, some of the measures may have a
negative effect on the Group.

The Group has a team to monitor the development in the
PRC to enable the Group to make necessary adjustments
to its business strategies. Any material changes that could
impact the Group significantly will be reported to the Board
for actions.
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The Group is committed to building an environmentally-
friendly corporation that pays close attention to conserving
natural resources. The Group strives to minimise its impact
on the environment by reducing electricity consumption and
encouraging recycling of office supplies and double-sided
printing. For further details, please refer to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report set out on pages 98 to 143 of
this annual report.

To the best knowledge of the Board and the management,
the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group's
business and operation during the Reporting Year.

The Group's management policies, working environment,
career prospects and employees’ benefits have contributed
to building good employee relations and employee retention
for the Group. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages commensurate with industry practice, provides
various fringe benefits to employees and internal training
appropriate to individual needs. The management regularly
reviews its employees’ remuneration packages to ensure
they are up to the prevailing market standard. The Group
has established long-term business relationships with its
major suppliers and customers. The Group will endeavour
to maintain its established relationships with these existing
suppliers and customers.

The results of the Group for the Reporting Year are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 151 to 152 of this annual
report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Reporting Year (2022: HK$NIil).
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEgHRET @

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, the objective of
which is to allow shareholders of the Company to participate
in the Company'’s profits whilst retaining adequate reserves
to sustain the Group's future growth. The declaration, form,
frequency and amount of dividend paid by the Company
must be in accordance with applicable laws and the
relevant provisions of the amended and restated articles of
association of the Company (the “Amended and Restated
Articles of Association”) adopted by way of special
resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM") held on 2 December 2022. In deciding
whether to declare any dividend, the Board will take into
account a number of factors, including the financial results,
the distributable reserves, the operations and liquidity
requirements, and the current and future development plans
of the Company. The Board will review the dividend policy of
the Company as appropriate from time to time.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 311
to 312 of this annual report.

BORROWINGS

The total borrowings of the Group (including debentures) as
at 30 June 2023 amounted to approximately HK$43.91 million
(30 June 2022: approximately HK$40.51 million). Details of
borrowings are set out in Notes 35 and 36 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Reporting Year are set out in Note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company'’s share capital during

the Reporting Year are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEgHRET @

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Amended and Restated Articles of Association or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company during
the Reporting Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the Reporting Year are set out in Note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the Group, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the Company's distributable reserves as at 30 June
2023 are set out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the
Reporting Year (2022: HKS$Nil).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and senior officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against them arising out of corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors throughout the Reporting Year and as at the date of
approval of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEgHRET @

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Year, the revenue generated from the
Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately
28.92% (2022: approximately 17.49%) of the Group's total
revenue and the revenue from the largest customer
included therein accounted for approximately 6.44% (2022:
approximately 4.18%) of the Group's total revenue.

During the Reporting Year, the fees paid to the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for 100% (2022: approximately
98.46%) of the Group’s cost of sales and the supplies from the
largest supplier included therein accounted for approximately
95.60% (2022: approximately 91.92%) of the Group's cost of
sales.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers for the Reporting Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Reporting Year and
up to the date of this annual report were:

Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer ("CEO”))
(appointed as Chairman and CEO on 6 April 2023)

Mr. Deng Zhonglin
Mr. Lam Wai Hung
(appointed on 6 April 2023)

Ms. Huang Chian Sandy

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, /p
Mr. To Chun Wai
(appointed on 12 May 2023)
Mr. Choi Hung Fai
(resigned on 16 July 2023)
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEgHRET @

DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Amended and Restated
Articles of Association, the Directors shall have the power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as
a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director so appointed
shall hold office only until the first AGM after his appointment
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Mr. Lam Wai Hung
and Mr. To Chun Wai so appointed shall hold office only until
the first AGM after each of their appointments on 6 April 2023
and 12 May 2023 respectively, and will then, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Amended and
Restated Articles of Association, at each AGM, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third), shall retire from office by rotation. Ms. Huang
Chian Sandy and Dr. Wong Kong Tin, /7 will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATIONS
FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company
has received an annual confirmation from each independent
non-executive Director confirming his independence.
The Company has assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and considers that
for the Reporting Year, all of them were independent based
on the independence criteria in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, their non-involvement
in the daily operation and management of the Company, and
the absence of any relationships which will interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgments.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save for those disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this Report of the Directors, at no time during
the Reporting Year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses
or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEgHRET @

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has or is proposed to have a service contract with the
Company not determinable by the Company within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Directors” emoluments are determined by the Board after
considering the recommendations from the remuneration
committee of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”)
with reference to Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
individual performance and the results of the Group. Such
emoluments are subject to the shareholders’ approval at the
AGM.

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments for the Reporting
Year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director of the Company or any entity connected
with the Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
Reporting Year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the Reporting Year, the Board is not aware of any business
or interests of the Directors and their respective associates
that had competed or might compete with the business of
the Group and any other conflicts of interests which any such
person had or might have with the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in
the usual course of business are set out in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related
party transactions constitutes a connected transaction as
defined under the Listing Rules which is required to be
disclosed.
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Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the
Company did not enter into any contracts with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or
any substantial part of any business of the Company during
the Reporting Year.

During the Reporting Year, the Company operates a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to selected
participants for their contributions to the Group. The Share
Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 18 October
2013 (the “Adoption Date").

(i) Purpose and participants

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contributions to the
Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include the following classes of participants:

(@ any employee (whether full-time or part-time
including any executive directors but excluding
any non-executive directors) of the Company, any
of the subsidiaries or any entity (the “Invested
Entity”) in which the Group holds an equity
interest,

(b) any non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of the subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity;,

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EEGHRT @

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continuea)

)

62

Purpose and participants (Continued)

©)

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support
to the Group or any member of any Invested
Entity,

any shareholder of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity,

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and

any other group or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way
of joint venture, business alliance or other
business arrangement to the growth of the
Group, and, for the purposes of the Share
Option Scheme, the options may be granted to
any company wholly-owned by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above classes
of participants.

The eligibility of any of the above classes of
participants to the grant of any option shall be
determined by the Directors from time to time on
the basis of the Directors’ opinion as to his/her/its
contribution to the development and growth of the

Group.

)

BKk28E (7@

©)

NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23

RAEEENTARREER
ZERRE AT RMEZ F
B HMBRMSZERZERA
TEER

AEBIAME AT REM
WREBR ZERRKRRE A
EEEWKE AT HAEME
REBRMETENESZ
EEFEA S

AEBIAME AR IR
WEEBERRIAEFLE
NEBERZAERNEEIH
BRI EEERA 5 &K

BENA TS  EHMHE
HEMEBLZHANEAERZ
BREHEM ZEMEMAE
B ERRIZ 2R E > MR ER
HEETEIMS  BRENETH
B LA EMENSEE
—BREZRALTEEERZ
ERAT

FHRERERNZ2RERSSERE
REMBERE BESTRHREES
HERATHETERZEREKRIER
EZ ERVETE



(ii)

Total number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the issued share capital (the “Issued
Share Capital”) of the Company from time to time.
The total number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all options (excluding, for
this purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Group) to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Group as may from time to time
be adopted by the Company as permitted under the
Listing Rules initially must not, in aggregate, exceed
10% of the Issued Share Capital as at the time dealings
in the shares of the Company first commence on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (and thereafter, if
refreshed, shall not exceed 10% of the Issued Share
Capital as at the date of approval of the refreshed limit
by the shareholders). After the refreshment of the limit
of the Share Option Scheme with the approval of the
shareholders on 10 May 2019, the maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the
refreshed limit of 146,290,000 options (being 10% of the
Issued Share Capital on 10 May 2019) together with all
outstanding options as at the date of this annual report
carrying the right to subscribe for 12,000,000 shares is
158,290,000 shares, representing approximately 7.71%
of the total number of shares in issue as at the date
of this annual report. Any further grant of options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon the exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Issued
Share Capital for the time being (the "Individual
Limit"). Any further grant of options in excess of
the Individual Limit in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further grant must be
separately approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting of the Company with such grantee and his
associates abstaining from voting.

Period within an option may be exercised

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the Directors
to each grantee, which period may commence on a
day after the date upon which the offer for the grant of
options is made but shall end in any event not later than
10 years from the date of grant of the option subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before being exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and
stated in the offer of the grant of option(s) to an eligible
participant, there is no minimum period required under
the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and
the period within which payments must be paid

The offer of a grant of option(s) may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon receipt by the
Company of the payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 and signed acceptance of offer by the eligible
participant.
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(vi)
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(vii) Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price per share under the Share Option
Scheme will be a price determined by the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of () the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

(viii) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

Subject to any earlier termination in accordance with its
rules, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for
a period of 10 years commencing on 18 October 2013
(i.e. until 18 October 2023).

On 1 June 2018 (the “Date of Grant”), the Company granted
an aggregate of 100,000,000 share options under the Share
Option Scheme, at an exercise price of HK$1.89 per share.
The exercise price was the higher of (i) the closing price of
HK$1.85 per share on the Date of Grant; and (ii) the average
closing price of HK$1.89 per share for the five business
days immediately preceding the Date of Grant. The closing
price per share immediately before the Date of Grant was
HK$1.87. The share options granted to each grantee shall
vest conditional upon the fulfilment of certain performance
targets relating to the Group in accordance with the following
schedule:

(vii) BETHEEZEE

BRESTEIIE T ERRKRMN ZDEER
AESEE BREL/TI=EH
Z&REE (RNEZORHDBHZI
mEB (UBMXIERRERAHES
) (RPEREREZNRHAMHAT L
B3 57 B 2 FHWmHE ; Rk E
(=0

(viii) FERR 1 518 Z FIBRHAMR

PRIERERERES S ZRAERK
Ik BRBREAERINE-ZZ—=
F+A+NHES0EARN BIEEZ
TT=ZF+A+N\R #EFBER-

R ZZE—N\ERA—H (EEBEH) &R
BIIRBEERES B RER1.8IBITZITE
B#% & 3£100,000,00017 BERG#E - 1T EE R
™mERZEBEORREBHZRM
W ESER1.85E T ; R(INEIZIRE B A
FEEEAZFHRHESRILIBT T
BRHAPAMZWHERSERISIAT &
ERABRETFT2BRERGAREERZ
ETREEREEN®E  HEREBEUTE
EIRERE -

1June 2018 —E-N\F~B—H 0%
31 December 2018 B N\E+"HB=+—H 25%
30 June 2019 “E—-hFARA=1+H 25% (i.e. up to 50% in total)

31 December 2019

30 June 2020

—®—hE+=A=+—8
=t e SAESNC

25% (BN &= % 2 48 Z8H950%)
25% (i.e. up to 75% in total)
25% (BN = % 248 ZEH975%)
25% (i.e. up to 100% in total)
25% (BN &= % 2 48%889100% )
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEERET @

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) MERgtEET S =
Summary of Terms (Continued) RREE @

During the Reporting Year, no share option has been granted RIS FE > MERBEEBRESEIZHE
under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the share options e - iRIEERR ST BB E 2 BRRER —
granted under the Share Option Scheme as at 30 June 2023 Z_=ZFB=+HZZFBWOT:

are as follows:

Options
Options Options cancelled/
Options granted  exercised lapsed Options
Exercise outstanding  duringthe  duringthe  during the outstanding
Category of Date of price asat  Reporting  Reporting  Reporting as at
participants grant per share Exercise period 1 July 2022 Year Year Year 30 June 2023
7 RBEEE RZIEZ=
—E-CE ? N gi##/ ~B=tAH
tB—HBz REEE REEE BE#MZ ZRITHE
SHEER BRTEE THEHR RITERRE RUZBRE TEZBERE BERRE BERRE
(HKS)
(#7T)
Executive Director
Mr.DengZhongin 1 lune 2018 189 31December 2018t 12,000,000 - - - 12,000000
31 May 2028
HITES
L “E-0\E “E-N\E
~A-A +-A=+-8%
“ETN\E
AA=+—AH
12,000,000 = = - 12,000,000
Employees 1June 2018 189 31December 201810 14,630,000 - - 14,630,000 -
31 May 2028
B8 “2-\E ZB-N\E
~A—H +ZBA=+—HZ%
—EN\E
TA=1+-A
Total rE 26,630,000 - - - 12,000,000
The share options, once vested, shall be exercisable within BRE—BEBAN B HHR-E0
a period of 10 years from the Date of Grant. Except for the FHRBITE bR ERATFIESIN B
Director listed in the table above, none of the grantees under BEREABBTI ZEARARETER
the Share Option Scheme is a connected person of the Group. ZEAEAL
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEgHRET @

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea)

The weighted average fair value for each granted share
option at grant date was HK$0.79, which was determined
by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The significant
inputs into the model included share price of HK$1.85 at
the Date of Grant, exercise price of HK$1.89, volatility of
33.02%, dividend yield of 0.0%, an expected share option life
of 10 years and an annual risk-free interest rate of 2.21%.
The expected volatility is determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the share price of listed companies with
similar business as the Group. The expected dividend yield is
determined with reference to historical dividend and share
price of the Company. No amortisation of share options (2022:
HK$Nil) was recognised as staff costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the Reporting Year.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 30 June 2023, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including interests
and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) under the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Beneficial owner
EmEA A

Mr. Deng Zhonglin
iy e

2022/23F FHR o HEREBERABRAR

BiiEsE @

RIRHEH RESHBRIER _BNRE
KEEEBREAEEZMBETHAFES
0798w ZBRANEZHAEANELH
HiZ R {B1.85B 7T~ 1TfE(E1.898 7T~ K18
33.02% ~ B B W7 %0.0% ~ T s+ BB AR 1R
10F LU S 48 BB F1 % 2.21% © TR 5t K18
DERBEREBREFELCUEBN LHAF
BEREREBMEE R RE WX
B2ERRDBERERREETE 1K
SFEE - HEBRERE CZ_—_F . %
A7) ERNGEREREMEE DR AR
BRBIAA-

RIZEZ=ZFXB=1TH ' 8EFREA
BB THABRARE N EAAERZER
(EERBBEAIFE/NEHBHREAG R
(MBS RAAGIRG) ) SBXVER) Z R 48
BRI RESFTHEREES R ERA
SEXVERF7 K857 B R & 2 A B) K B 3L PR
ZREm Aok E (BERERESRPEFRD
BRARNREREFUAREEE 2B
HA) » HEARRTRER ST KGR
EIAFMERTFEZ T ez Bm kot
B EHRE LR EHETAES
ETRFRZRETR (MRETFR) A
BTN ERABDRERZPIZ Bm Rk a
T

12,000,000 (L) 0.58%
(Note 2)

(¥5E2)
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (continued)

Interest in underlying shares of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:
1. “L” denotes long position and “S” denotes short position.

2. These 12,000,000 underlying shares represent the 12,000,000 shares
which may be allotted and issued to Mr. Deng Zhonglin upon full
exercise of the share options granted to him on 1 June 2018 under the
Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
and/or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or pursuant to the Model Code, or which were required to
be entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2023, to the best of the knowledge and belief
of the Directors, the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the Group or any options in
respect of such shares:

Beneficial owner
EmEBA

Mr. Chen Chao
fRiB a4

Note:

1. “L" denotes the corporation/person’s long position (as defined under
Part XV of the SFO) in the shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, the Directors are
not aware that there is any party (other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company) who had any interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the Group or any options in
respect of such shares.

2022/23F FHR o RBEEZERARAT

RIEBEZ=FXB=1+H MEBFMEHA
REE U TFTALT REREEFRARNTR
BITEAE) RAR B RS R ABRE RN 7
BREEBSFMIAE RO BEXVEFE 2R3
B SCBR AN B R B 22 P i B8 2 4 2 1 338
BN BN A AT IRIEE S REBE KA
FBIEBEFFEEZE MR KA
HEZELBER SRR PMEAER T
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S EZAAER R AT EN S RZERHS
ZAE IR IR R A S% M _EAYRE R ¢

163,835,000 (L) 7.98%

M sE -
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the nomination committee of the Board are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (chairman),
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, s~ and Mr. To Chun Wai. The Audit
Committee has reviewed, with the management and the
independent auditor of the Company, the annual results and
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Reporting Year.

AUDITOR

HLM CPA Limited ("HLM") was engaged to audit the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
Reporting Year. HLM will retire at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at a fee to
be agreed by the Board.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Yuk Lun Alan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 September 2023

70 NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED e

RBER

AT ABEMEREFAEAAR
BT SR RIBTR -
REARFGRE
REFADMEARBENRFEEMA

RAFHRBE ARATDEBRBLHRAZ
MEMFIEEZ RBIFRE -

ZEE -FTMEETRIZERE

A0E
I3

BZZEE HFNEZETREFERYLE
BEEZHBHNAFRIEEELRRS) —

o

=

}

BEZELZEE

BRZZE SR =SB IUFNTEFAM
B XHEALE (EF) ~BIXRE L Pt
RitikBAE -BEZEZEGEHRARTE
BERRBIZEMERAERREFEZ
FERERGEMBREK-

%2

BREAMTARAR (MEMR) BEREE
BRERBRBEFEZGEMHRER B
BENEERREFAGLRE ITE
ERAEEBEET HERRAKESRT

=

KREFE

FERITHARE

=EB

BB “E_=ZFAA+NH

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



Corporate Governance Report
EEELRS

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”)
of NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is pleased to present
the corporate governance report for the year ended 30 June
2023 (the “Reporting Year”). This report describes how the
Group has applied its corporate governance practices to its
daily activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles and adopted all code
provisions, where applicable, as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") as contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) as its own code of corporate
governance.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices
regularly to ensure compliance with the CG Code. During the
Reporting Year, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all applicable code provisions as set out in the
CG Code except for the following deviations:

o Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The chairman provides leadership
for the board and ensures that the board works
effectively and performs its responsibilities whilst the
chief executive officer has overall chief executive
responsibilities for business development and day-to-
day management generally.
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Corporate Governance Report (continuea)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE (continuead)

Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan was appointed as the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and the chief
executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ") on 6
April 2023. In view of the current rapid development
of the Group, the Board believes that vesting the
roles of both the Chairman and the CEO in the same
person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and boost effectiveness of its
operation. In addition, under the supervision of
the Board which is comprised of three executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, the Board is
appropriately structured with a balance of power to
provide sufficient checks and supervision to protect
the interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Company may seek to re-comply with code
provision C.2.1 by identifying and appointing a suitable
and qualified candidate to the position of the CEO in
due course by considering the business needs and
developments of the Group.

Except for the above deviation from the CG Code, the Board
is of the view that the Company has complied with the CG
Code for the Reporting Year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of
the Company by the Directors. In response to the specific
enquiries made by the Company, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she had complied with the Model Code
during the Reporting Year.
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Corporate Governance Report (continuea)
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Subsequent to the adoption of the amended and restated
articles of association of the Company (the “Amended and
Restated Articles of Association”) by way of special
resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM") held on 2 December 2022, no amendment
to the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company has been made as at the date of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 30 June 2023, the Board comprised three executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and four (as at the
date of this annual report: three) independent non-executive
Directors. The composition of the Board and its changes
during the Reporting Year and up to the date of this annual
report were as follows:

Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan (Chairman and CEQ)
(appointed as Chairman and CEO on 6 April 2023)

Mr. Deng Zhonglin
Mr. Lam Wai Hung
(appointed on 6 April 2023)

Ms. Huang Chian Sandy

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, s,
Mr. To Chun Wai
(appointed on 12 May 2023)
Mr. Choi Hung Fai
(resigned on 16 July 2023)

The biographical details, relationships among them and the
terms of appointment of the Directors (including the non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors)
up to the date of this annual report are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual
report.
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The Board believes that it has a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) and there is a strong
independent element in the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgment. As at 30 June 2023, the
Company had four (as at the date of this annual report: three)
independent non-executive Directors who provide the Group
with adequate check and balance. Each of them is considered
to be independent with respect to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Their functions are not limited to a restricted scope and
they have contributed to the Group with diversified industry
expertise, and advised on the Group’s management and
proceedings.

One of the independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki, has appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring
of the Group's overall strategies and policies, the approval
of business plans and the evaluation of their performance,
the oversight and review of the management and corporate
governance function. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Group's businesses by directing and
supervising the Group's affairs. The Board delegates day-
to-day operations of the Group to executive Directors and
senior management of the Group while reserving certain
key matters for its approval. The Board committees for
specific functions have been set up to ensure efficient Board
operations. The respective functions and responsibilities
reserved to the Board and those delegated to Board
committees have been clearly set out in their respective
terms of reference. Decisions of the Board are communicated
to the management through executive Directors who have
attended the Board meetings.

To facilitate effective oversight and decision making by the
Board, the Company has established a mechanism to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. On
an annual basis, the Board will review the implementation
and effectiveness of such mechanism.
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Corporate Governance Report (continuea)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continuea)

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions with the following duties:

@)

to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations on any necessary changes and
updates;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of
the Company and the Directors;

to review and monitor the evaluation and management
of issues related to the Company’s environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") matters;

to review and monitor the progress made against ESG-
related goals and targets;

to review the Company’s ESG strategy; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this corporate governance report (“CG
Report”) and the Company’s ESG report (the "ESG
Report”).
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corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEE/ERS @

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continuead)

During the Reporting Year, the corporate governance duties
performed by the Board were as follows:

@)

(0)

76

reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the CG Report and the ESG Report;

reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management
of the Company;

reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees of the Company and the
Directors;

reviewed and monitored the evaluation and
management of issues related to the Company’s ESG
matters;

reviewed and monitored the progress made against
ESG-related goals and targets; and

reviewed the Company’s ESG strategy.
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Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan has been appointed as an executive
Director on 15 July 2020. Subsequently, Mr. Wong Yuk Lun
Alan has been appointed as the Chairman and the CEO on 6
April 2023.

As at 30 June 2023, Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan held the offices of
the Chairman and the CEO. The Board believes that vesting
the above roles in the same person provides the Company
with strong and consistent leadership and allows for effective
and efficient planning and implementation of business
decisions and strategies. At the same time, in order to fulfill
the requirement of code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
Company may look for a suitable and qualified candidate
to the position of the CEO in due course by considering the
business needs and developments of the Group.

Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan, as an executive Director, entered into
a service agreement dated 15 July 2020 with the Company,
pursuant to which Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan will hold office for
an initial term of three years commencing on 15 July 2020
and renewable automatically on expiry for successive terms
of three years, subject to terms and conditions to be mutually
agreed by both parties and retirement by rotation and re-
election at the AGM in accordance with the Amended and
Restated Articles of Association.

Mr. Deng Zhonglin, as an executive Director, entered into a
service agreement dated 14 October 2016 (supplemented
by a supplemental service contract dated 14 October 2019)
with the Company, pursuant to which Mr. Deng holds office
for an initial term of three years commencing on 14 October
2016 and renewable automatically on expiry for successive
terms of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the AGM in accordance with the Amended and
Restated Articles of Association.

Mr. Lam Wai Hung, as an executive Director, entered into a
service agreement dated 6 April 2023 with the Company,
pursuant to which Mr. Lam holds office for an initial term
of three years commencing on 6 April 2023 and renewable
automatically on expiry for successive terms of three years,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM
in accordance with the Amended and Restated Articles of
Association.
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The non-executive Director and all independent non-
executive Directors have been appointed for an initial term of
one year, renewable automatically for successive term of one
year each commencing from the next day after the expiry
of the then current term appointment. All remuneration paid
to executive Directors are covered by respective service
contracts and all remuneration paid to the non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors are
covered by the respective letters of appointment.

Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Articles of
Association, any Director newly appointed by the Board
shall hold office until the following AGM and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Also, pursuant to the Amended and
Restated Articles of Association, at each AGM, at least one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Every newly appointed Director will be provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations
and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under the
relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

During the Reporting Year, the Board met regularly to review
the financial and operating performance of the Company and
to discuss future strategy. The Directors may participate either
in person or through electronic means of communications.

For the Reporting Year, the Company has adopted the
practice of holding Board meetings regularly at least four
times a year in approximately quarterly intervals. At the Board
meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters including
the Company’s annual consolidated financial statements
and interim consolidated financial information, proposals
for dividends (if any), annual and interim reports, approved
material capital expenditure (if any) and other corporate
actions of the Group.
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In order to ensure that the Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed, all Directors
are able to access the company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”) for advice from time to time.
Moreover, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense. All Directors were
given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
meetings for discussion.

To ensure a competent Board operation, all Directors gave
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
During the Reporting Year, six Board meetings (excluding
delegated committees’ meetings) were held and the
attendance record of each Director is set out as follows:

PHERERESEREFUKFIAERRA
FRIEH 2REFHEFHELAQTNA
aIME ((AEME)) BRHER I BER
PIFHEEER  EREB R TITERETL
BXRR BRHAATEAE -2REFY
BREEEEZENNMATRER

HEFRESTANEF 2BEEFERMN
RERBRBENEERERBER - NRS
FE BRETAREFTLEE (T OERE
ZEEEH)  SEFHEIHHIWT

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan BEBSLE 6/6 1/
(Chairman and CEO) (FERITHHE)
(appointed as Chairman and CEO (RZZE_=FBNHEZET
on 6 April 2023) REFRITHAER)
Mr. Deng Zhonglin WA 6/6 11
Mr. Lam Wai Hung MEERE 1/1 -
(appointed on 6 April 2023) RZZEZ=FMNBHEZD
Non-executive Director FERITES
Ms. Huang Chian Sandy mELT 5/6 1/
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERNITES
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki Bk E 6/6 1/
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, s I RE s 4/6 1/1
Mr. To Chun Wai HiREEE (RZEZ=F s =
(appointed on 12 May 2023) HFE+HEZD
Mr. Choi Hung Fai ZipERE (W22 2=F 6/6 1/1

(resigned on 16 July 2023)

tR+/RE#D

The minutes of Board meetings and meetings of the Board
committees are kept by the Company Secretary or other duly
authorised person. All minutes are open for inspection by
any Director on reasonable notice. Such minutes recorded
in sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions
reached during each meeting. The drafts and final versions
of the minutes of Board meetings are sent to all Directors for
their comments and records.
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Each newly appointed Director will receive induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business
and awareness of the Director’s responsibilities.

The details of the continuous professional development
participated by the Directors during the Reporting Year are as
follows:

BNZEZEENERERLERIER
HEMERN URFERRELETHRERAT
BEMNEBBERURBERESZEE

EENREFESHEZFBEEXERFE
mr

Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan BEERBSE 4 v
(Chairman and CEQ) (EEFITEAEE)
(appointed as Chairman and (0= ——
CEO on 6 April 2023) WMANHEZE
RERBRITHAEER)
Mr. Deng Zhonglin BB S A v o
Mr. Lam Wai Hung MERLE (RZE =
(appointed on 6 April 2023) mANHEZD
Non-executive Director EHITES
Ms. Huang Chian Sandy =t 4 4
Independent Non-executive Directors &I JEHITESE
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki BoKkHg L v v/
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, /7 BIIKRIE 7ot v v
Mr. To Chun Wai HiRELRE (RZEEZ= v v/
(appointed on 12 May 2023) AR+ _HEZMF)
Mr. Choi Hung Fai giE@EEE (W2 2= v v/
(resigned on 16 July 2023) tB+/xB&D

To enable the Directors to make informed and relevant
contributions to the Board, all the Directors are encouraged
to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During
the Reporting Year, all the Directors were provided with
regular updates and presentations on the changes and
developments of the Group’s business and the latest
developments in laws, rules and regulations relating to
directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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Corporate Governance Report (continuea)

THEE/ERS @

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continuea)

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy on 18
October 2013 and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and a diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business.

All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board members. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be made upon the merits and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, there is one female
Director on the Board. In the future, the Board will continue
to pay due regard to the importance of diversity in identifying
potential candidates for directorships and continue to
ensure that gender is one of the factors to be considered
in appointing Directors by the Nomination Committee (as
defined below).

The Board also recognises the importance of diversity at the
workforce level. As at 30 June 2023, the gender ratio of the
workforce of the Group (including senior management) was
1:1 male to female.

During the Reporting Year, the Board reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s board
diversity policy and considered the policy effective.
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The Company has established the audit committee of the
Board (the “Audit Committee”) with specific written terms
of reference that have included the duties set out in provision
D.3.3 of the CG Code with appropriate modifications when
necessary.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and removal of the external auditor, to review the financial
information and material advice in respect of financial
reporting and to oversee the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.

During the Reporting Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2022 and consolidated financial statements for the
six months ended 31 December 2022, including the Group's
adopted accounting principles and practices, internal control
and risk management systems and financial reporting
matters (in conjunction with the external auditor for the
annual results). The Audit Committee has reviewed the
remuneration of the auditor for the year ended 30 June 2022
and has recommended the Board to re-appoint HLM CPA
Limited as the auditor of the Company for the Reporting Year.
The Audit Committee has also monitored the effectiveness of
the external audit and its independence. The Audit Committee
has endorsed the accounting treatments adopted by the
Company and, to the best of its ability assured that the
disclosure of the financial information in this annual report
complied with the applicable accounting standards and
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (the chairman
of the Audit Committee), Dr. Wong Kong Tin, s and Mr. To
Chun Wai. The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr.
Tsang Wing Ki with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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During the Reporting Year, three Audit Committee meetings

RRSFEE KEBELEERIT=RE

were held pursuant to its terms of reference and the ZZELTH SMEHLFEGHEZLHH
attendance record of each member as to such meetings is  #JaITF :
set out as follows:
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (Chairman) BKELEE (F/E) 3/3
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp BT KRBT rmst 2/3
Mr. To Chun Wai (appointed on 12 May 2023) MIRBHEE R_E_=F1A4 =
+ZBEZT)
Mr. Choi Hung Fai (resigned on 16 July 2023) sig@EE (W2 = 3/3

tA+/XHED

The Company has set up the remuneration committee of
the Board (the "Remuneration Committee”) with specific
terms of reference stating clearly its authority and duties
with appropriate modifications when necessary. In December
2022, the Company has adopted a revised terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure of all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration, to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposal with reference to the
Company'’s corporate goals and objectives, to determine the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments comprising any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors and to review and/or approve matters relating to
share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises four members,
namely Dr. Wong Kong Tin, 7 (the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan, Mr. Tsang
Wing Ki and Mr. To Chun Wai. The Company has complied with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Year, three Remuneration Committee
meetings were held for reviewing the remuneration policy
and structure of the Directors and senior management,
assessing the performance of executive Directors and
approving the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts.
The attendance record of each member as to such meetings
is set out as follows:

HMEEERREMANRE  EIXRE X
i+ GFINEEEERE) - EEXBLLE
KETRERTIREBRE - ARATEET L
MRRAIE3.25RFRE

RESEECRT=XFMHEESER
NEREERESREERE 2 HNBEERER
B AR TES I RERMBERTES
RBENZIER - BEREHE SR L
WM -

Independent Non-executive Directors B ERITES
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp (Chairman) BIRBLxrHt (F/E) 2/3
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki BoK S 3/3
Mr. To Chun Wai (appointed on 12 May 2023) MIREBRE RZE=F
RR+-ZBEEMT =

Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan (appointed as a member of &=EEi%E - - =FP/H\H

the Remuneration Committee on 6 April 2023) EZEAFNEEZTHE) 11
Mr. Deng Zhonglin (resigned as a member of the BHELE (W2 2=F

Remuneration Committee on 6 April 2023) WA NHEIHFMNEEERE) 2/2

Details of the Directors’ emoluments, retirement benefits and
remuneration payable to members of senior management are
disclosed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The Company has set up the nomination committee of the
Board (the “Nomination Committee”) with specific terms
of reference stating clearly its authority and duties with
appropriate modification when necessary.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include to
review the structure, size, composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) and diversity of the Board, to
identify, screen and recommend to the Board on appropriate
candidates for directorship, to assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors, to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and to review the board diversity
policy of the Company and to monitor its implementation
from time to time.

A summary of the work of the Nomination Committee during
the Reporting Year is as follows:

o it conducted (i) an annual review of the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and considered that the
Board’'s composition reflects an appropriate mix of skills,
experience and diversity among its members that are
relevant to the Company's strategy, governance and
business and contributes to the Board's effectiveness;
(i) an annual assessment of the independence of each
independent non-executive director and considered
all of the independent non-executive Directors to
be independent; and (iii) an annual review of the
implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s
board diversity policy and considered it to be
appropriate;

it endorsed for approval by the Board a target that
female Board members should account for more in the
coming years; and

it made recommendations to the Board in respect of
the appointments of new Directors to the Board, in
particular, the Chairman and the CEO, and the election
and re-election of the Directors retiring at the AGM.
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The Nomination Committee comprises three members,
namely Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan (the chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Dr. Wong Kong Tin, s7 and Mr. To
Chun Wai. The Company has complied with Rule 3.27A of the
Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Year, three Nomination Committee
meetings were held for, among others, reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, reviewing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
and making recommendations to the Board on the retirement
by rotation and re-election of Directors in the AGM. The
attendance record of each member as to such meetings is
set out as follows:

Executive Directors BITE

Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan (Chairman)

RLLESEE-4RE REElLE

(REZESXRE) HILIRBLxras
RitikBhrE - A ABEET MRS
327AEHRTE ©

REBESFEERT=ZRELEZETEH U

(HPEE) BREFT2RE  HERE
P BRBIUIFRITESF 2B kALE
ENREBFAE L2 BEREREER
EREESRHEEEZZ -SNELHFET
BRZECEREAIMT

BEBRE (EFE)

(appointed as chairman of the Nomination (RIZEZ=FWABEZMTE

Committee on 6 April 2023) RIEHREEGERE) 11
Mr. Deng Zhonglin (resigned as chairman of the BELE (W2 2=F

Nomination Committee on 6 April 2023) WBNHEITIREEZESER) 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp BT KRBT rsst 2/3

Mr. To Chun Wai (appointed on 12 May 2023)

HiRERE R T _=F

EFBA+ZHEEMT -

Mr. Choi Hung Fai (resigned on 16 July 2023)

BgEAE (WS T=F

tA+/<HEHD 3/3

Mr. Tung Tat Chiu Michael (“Mr. Tung") is an external service
provider engaged by the Company as the Company Secretary
and Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan, the Chairman and the CEOQ, is
the key contact person with whom Mr. Tung can contact. Mr.
Tung has confirmed to the Company that he has attended no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
Reporting Year.
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The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with applicable statutory requirements and
accounting standards and the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Group adopted the going concern basis in
preparing its financial statements. Save as disclosed under
the section headed “Material Uncertainties relating to Going
Concern” of this Corporate Governance Report below, the
Directors were not aware of any other material uncertainties
which may affect the Company’s business or cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

A statement by the external auditor of the Company about
its reporting responsibilities is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor's Report” of this annual report.

As stated under the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Auditor’s Disclaimer of Opinion and Proposed
Action Plan of the Group to Address the Disclaimer of
Opinion” on pages 32 to 46 of this annual report and the
subsection headed “A) MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES RELATING
TO GOING CONCERN" of the report by the external auditor of
the Company (the “Auditor’'s Report”) on pages 145 to 146
of this annual report, the external auditor of the Company
has expressed a disclaimer of opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Year
(the “consolidated Financial Statements”) relating to,
inter alia, material uncertainties on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern (the “Disclaimer on Going
Concern”). Details of the basis for the Disclaimer on Going
Concern are reproduced as follows:

As described in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Group reported a loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$506,497,000
and operating cash outflow of approximately HK$75,969,000
for the Reporting Year and, as of 30 June 2023, the Group's
cash and bank balances amounted to approximately
HK$2,400,000, among which an amount of approximately
HK$57,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB53,000) was
frozen by the bank due to litigation, while the Group recorded
outstanding principal amount of borrowings of approximately
HK$3,235,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB3,000,000)
and principal amount of corporate bond of HK$36,000,000
which are due for repayment within the next 12 months.
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Corporate Governance Report (continuea)

TEE/ERS @

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO
GOING CONCERN (continued)

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had net assets of
approximately HK$125,000,000 and net current assets
of approximately HK$124,784,000, where the net assets
and net current assets position were mainly comprised of
factoring receivables, finance lease receivables and trade
receivables, which carrying amounts were approximately
HK$168,313,000, HK$2,225,000 and HK$4,975,000, net of
impairment allowances of approximately HK$337,894,000,
HK$16,113,000 and HK$29,959,000, respectively. During the
Reporting Year and up to the date of this annual report, all of
the factoring receivables, finance lease receivables and most
of the trade receivables outstanding amounts were past due.
The management of the Group is still in the progress of taking
various actions against the relevant debtors. No result from
the actions taken is available for justifying the extent of the
recoverability of these receivables.

The validity of the preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements on going concern basis are subject to multiple
uncertainties, including (i) the successful recovery of
overdue receivables; (i) the obtaining of additional sources
of financing as and when needed; and (iii) the successful
improvement in the Company’s operation to generate
sufficient operating cash inflow. However, no such evidence
was available as the Group was still in the course of taking
actions to recover the overdue receivables and actively
looking for additional sources of financing as at the date of
the Auditor's Report. In this regard, although the external
auditor of the Company considers that the going concern
basis of preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements
as well as the material uncertainties relating to the Group's
going concern have been adequately disclosed in the
Consolidated Financial Statements, in view of the extent
of the multiple uncertainties relating to the recovery of the
overdue receivables, the maintaining of sufficient operation
to generate operating cash inflow and the obtaining of
additional sources of financing, the external auditor of the
Company issued the Disclaimer on Going Concern.
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Corporate Governance Report (continuea)

THEE/ERS @

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO
GOING CONCERN (continued)

The Consolidated Financial Statements do not include any
adjustments that would result from the failure to recover
the overdue receivables and the failure to obtain additional
sources of financing to improve the Group's financial
positions, to provide liquidity and cash flows. Should the
Group fail to achieve the intended effects resulting from
the plans and measures as mentioned in Note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, it might not be able to
operate as a going concern, and adjustments would have to
be made to write down the carrying amounts of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, and to provide for any
further liabilities that may arise respectively.

The Directors have carried out a detailed review of the cash
flow forecast of the Group for the next 12 months from the
date of this annual report and have undertaken to carry
out a number of measures to improve the Group's liquidity
and financial position which are set out in Note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. As at the date of this
annual report, the Group is in the process of taking actions,
including but not limited to legal actions, to recover the
overdue receivables (for further details on the actions taken,
please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Auditor’s Disclaimer of Opinion and Proposed
Action Plan of the Group to Address the Disclaimer of Opinion
— Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion — B. Material Uncertainties
on Receivables” on pages 38 to 40 of this annual report),
and has obtained a secured loan facility in an amount of
HK$9,000,000 from an independent third party for general
working capital and development of a new operation in the
cultural and entertainment segment. As such, the Directors
are of a view that the Group may have sufficient working
capital for a period of not less than 12 months from 30 June
2023. Hence, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to
prepare the Consolidated Financial Statements on a going
concern basis.
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Corporate Governance Report (continuea)

TEE/ERS @

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO
GOING CONCERN (continuea)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the management’s
position concerning the material uncertainties relating to
going concern and the action plan of the Group to address
such material uncertainties as disclosed in the subsection
headed “Proposed action plan of the Group to address the
material uncertainties relating to going concern” below. The
Audit Committee has also discussed with the management
and the external auditor of the Company to understand the
reason for the Disclaimer on Going Concern as well as the
views of the management and the external auditor of the
Company in relation thereto. The Audit Committee concurs
with the management’s position and views with respect to
the material uncertainties relating to going concern and the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, as well as the
actions to be implemented by the management of the Group
to remove the Disclaimer on Going Concern.

In order to address the uncertainties which may cast doubt
regarding the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
and with a view to removing the Disclaimer on Going
Concern, the Group has taken and intends to continue to
implement, among other things, the following measures:

1. To closely monitor the progress of the recovery actions,
including but not limited to legal actions against the
respective debtors;

2. To actively look for additional sources of financing
by contacting and negotiating with various financial
institutions for obtaining possible credit facilities; and

3. To consider any feasible plan from potential investors
on corporate restructuring and proceed as and when
appropriate and practicable.
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Corporate Governance Report (continuea)

THEE/ERS @

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO
GOING CONCERN (continued)

As at the date of this annual report, save for a secured
loan facility in an amount of HK$9,000,000 made available
by an independent third party to the Company for general
working capital of the Company and development of a new
operation in the cultural and entertainment segment, no
further confirmed proposal or plan has been established
but given the management’s continuous efforts in taking
actions to recover the overdue receivables of the Group as
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Auditor’s Disclaimer of Opinion and Proposed
Action Plan of the Group to Address the Disclaimer of Opinion
— Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion — B. Material Uncertainties
on Receivables” on pages 38 to 40 of this annual report,
obtaining additional sources of financing and improving the
Group's operations, the Directors believe that an action plan
with further details will be in place by the end of the second
quarter of 2024.

In view of the foregoing, and assuming the Group’s plans or
actions can be substantially completed as planned, and no
new circumstances and conditions would have occurred,
the Directors are optimistic that the Disclaimer on Going
Concern may be removed in connection with the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ending 30 June 2024. The external auditor of the Company
and the Audit Committee, in light of currently available
evidence and the Group’s proposed action plan to address
the Disclaimer on Going Concern, consider that the Group will
resolve the material uncertainties relating to going concern
when the management of the Group is able to achieve its
planned actions as aforementioned.

For further details in relation to the material uncertainties
relating to the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, please refer to the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Auditor’s Disclaimer of Opinion and
Proposed Action Plan of the Group to Address the Disclaimer
of Opinion” on pages 32 to 46 of this annual report and the
subsection headed “A) MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES RELATING
TO GOING CONCERN" of the Auditor’s Report on pages 145 to
146 of this annual report.
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The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining a
sound system of risk management and internal control within
the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. However, such
system was designed to manage various risks (including ESG
risks) of the Group within certain acceptable risk level, rather
than to completely eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
the business objectives of the Group and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board delegates their responsibility to the Audit
Committee to review the practices of management with
respect to risk management and internal control, including
the design, implementation and supervision of the risk
management and internal control systems, on an annual
basis.

During the Reporting Year, the Board, through the Audit
Ccommittee, conducted an annual review of both the design
and implementation effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, covering all
material controls, with a view to ensuring that the resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, as well as those relating to the
Company's ESG performance and reporting are adequate.
In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues to the Board.

The Board has engaged an external professional service firm
to carry out the internal audit function of the Group. Review
of the Group's internal controls covered major financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions of different systems have been performed on a
systematic rotational basis on the risk assessments of the
operations and controls. During the risk assessment process,
the firm interviewed the relevant personnel and identified the
business objectives and significant risks of the Group. A risk
management review and internal audit report prepared by
the firm which sets out the risks, issues and recommended
action plan was presented to the Board for review and
endorsement. The Board considered that significant risks of
the Group were managed within the acceptable level and
the management will continue to monitor the residual risks
and report to the Board on ongoing basis. The Board has
reviewed the risk management and internal control system
and procedures, and save as disclosed hereinafter, the Board
considers them effective and adequate.
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At the same time, the Board is aware that the external
auditor of the Company issued a disclaimer of opinion
on the Consolidated Financial Statements in respect of,
inter alia, material uncertainties arising from the lack of
sufficient audit evidence to satisfy the validity of receipts
(“Receipts”) from several independent third parties as
settlements (“Settlements”) of the principal and interest of
factoring receivables and support the basis of determining
the presentation of those balances and related disclosures
in the Consolidated Financial Statements (the “Disclaimer
on Third Party Settlement”). For details in relation to the
Disclaimer on Third Party Settlement, please refer to the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Auditor's Disclaimer of Opinion and Proposed Action Plan of
the Group to Address the Disclaimer of Opinion — Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion — C. Material Uncertainties on Third
Party Settlement” on page 40 to 43 of this annual report.

Although the Group (i) maintained internal records in relation
to the Receipts and Settlements; and (i) engaged in early
discussion with the external auditor prior to financial year
end for audit planning and endeavoured to obtain additional
audit evidence pursuant to the external auditor's request
to support the management’'s assessment of the validity
of the Receipts and Settlements and the presentation of
those balances and related disclosures in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, the internal records maintained by
the management of the Group were unable to satisfy the
necessary audit procedures of the external auditor of the
Company as to the validity of the relevant transactions and
the basis of determining the presentation of the relevant
balances and related disclosures in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, giving rise to the Disclaimer on Third
Party Settlement. As such, the Board considers that the
Group's internal control procedures and policies need to be
improved, having considered the circumstances leading to
the Disclaimer on Third Party Settlement and with view to
preventing similar incidents from occurring in the future.

To prevent similar incidents from occurring in the future,
the management of the Group will continue to strengthen
the internal control measures of the Group to improve the
documentation of accounting records and the reliability of
financial information. For details in relation to the proposed
action plan of the Group to address the Disclaimer on
Third Party Settlement, please refer to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Auditor’s Disclaimer
of Opinion and Proposed Action Plan of the Group to Address
the Disclaimer of Opinion — Proposed Action Plan of the
Group to Address the Disclaimer of Opinion” on page 46 of
this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continuea)

TEE/ERS @

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company is aware of the relevant obligations under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules. In order to enhance the
Group's system of handling inside information, and to ensure
the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of its
public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an
inside information policy and procedures, which include the
access of information being restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis, to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent possible mishandling of inside
information within the Group.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate the employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has zero tolerance for bribery and corruption.
The Group's ethical standards and requirements are
clearly set out in the employee handbook, which requires
all business activities to be operated with high level of
integrity. Regardless of seniority and employment nature, all
employees are required to fully comply with the following
anti-bribery and anti-corruption legislation:

—  The Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
—  The Criminal Law of the PRC

Employees are prohibited from committing theft, fraud or
dishonesty in connection with the Group’s properties, or
committing a criminal offence outside the Group, which
brings adverse publicity to the Group and/or affects the
Group's reputation. The policy on declaration and handling
of conflict of interest requires employees in key positions to
submit an annual declaration of interests in work situations.
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THEE/ERS @

WHISTLEBLOWING SYSTEM

The Group's whistleblowing policy states that whistleblowers
can make confidential reports to the Board directly upon
any suspicious activities, either in person or email to the
chairman of the Audit Committee. All reports and the
identities of whistle-blowers would be treated in the strictest
confidence. In the event an employee is found to have
committed any act of misconduct, the Group reserves the
rights to take disciplinary actions including termination of
employment. The Group has not aided, abetted, assisted or
colluded with an individual who has committed, or conspired
to commit any unlawful activities. No non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to corruption, bribery, fraud and
money laundering had been identified during the Reporting
Year. There was no concluded legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees during
the Reporting Year.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s external auditor
provided the following services to the Group:
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(i) include audit services provided in connection with the audit of the
consolidated financial statements. All such services are to be provided
by the external auditor.

(i) include services that would normally be provided by an external auditor
but not generally included in audit services.
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The Company communicates with its shareholders through
its annual report, interim report and statutory and voluntary
announcements. The Directors, the Company Secretary or
appropriate members of the senior management, where
appropriate, also respond to inquiries from shareholders
and investors on a timely basis. The AGM provides a useful
platform for direct communication between the Board and
the shareholders.

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the
Company are taken by poll. Procedures regarding the
conduct of the poll are explained to the shareholders at the
commencement of each general meeting. The poll results
are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively on the same day of the poll.

In accordance with Article 58 of the Amended and Restated
Articles of Association, extraordinary general meetings shall
be convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders
of the Company holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors
or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Directors
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 903, 9/F., Wings
Building, 110-116 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong
with effect from 25 October 2023 by post for the attention of
the Board.

AATBBEER PHREUREER
SBAHRERENE X AAREY
SE2BREERME ER) H 8BS
EERRREEE 2R REBEASR
PEERERARTEBRMNT —EER
ZF o

RENARTRRAEG ELRRZRERES
DERBREZFAET - REERRAKX
EHERFEORINBERAREZRE
FoUBRBREFARRZEREINA
B 935l & h Bk 3P Ko A A B) 2 A8k o

REBEET R ERBBEIZMAE58K
REFHARGEE—BRIAULNIEZEK
EARAARRRREAGRENT LT
RREADR+DZ2—BERATRKREREK
TER-AHEXRAUEEAEFENAT
MERL AAEREEARBRRFHAN
CUREEERATHNENER BEX
CARANEZXABERERMERRRITfH
RIERXREXRE21IHR  EFREARZAKN
g RAERZXBRA LA BITURET A
ARG MEXERATHRESARECH
REMELENMAESERXEHARTH
BERERANLIEREN -

REOEEBETEARNTDEATEE M
A BEETTREEA LR kA
ERPIEE2FAERNM0-1M6SEKIEFEE X
[E9#8903= (B2 -_=F+/8_-+H B
) o

NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



There is no provision in the Amended and Restated Articles
of Association setting out procedures for shareholders to
put forward a resolution at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures as set
out in the paragraph headed “How shareholders can convene
an extraordinary general meeting” above.

The Company has adopted the shareholders’ communication
policy and considers that effective communication with its
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company has established
various and a wide range of communication channels
with its shareholders. These include shareholders’ general
meetings, interim results announcements and annual results
announcements, interim reports and annual reports, and
other announcements and circulars.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely and timely
as possible. It has disclosed all necessary information to the
shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules. When
announcements are made through the website of the Stock
Exchange, the same information will be made available on the
Company'’s website. During the Reporting Year, the Company
has issued announcements which can be viewed on the
Company’s website.

Shareholders and investors may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong.
Shareholders may also raise their enquiries in general
meetings.

In view of the above, the Company has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy and considered the policy effective.

The Company has uploaded its Amended and Restated
Articles of Association on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(http://www.hkexnews.hk/) and of the Company (http://www.
novahldg.com/) on 2 December 2022.

Save for the amendments as reflected in the Amended and
Restated Articles of Association, there are no significant
changes in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the Reporting Year.
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NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the operation of cultural and entertainment
comprehensive services platform and the provision of loan
and financing services.

Environmental and social responsibilities are viewed as
the Group’'s core commitment to the environment, internal
workplace and external community, and an integral part of
the Group’s practice to create value for stakeholders.

Our strategy is to fulfil the Group’s environmental and social
responsibilities by achieving environmental and social
objectives during operations and complying with all relevant
legal requirements.

The board of directors (the “Board”) has overall responsibility
for the Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance
strategy and reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating
and determining the Group’s Environmental, Social and
Governance related risks and ensuring that appropriate
and effective Environmental, Social and Governance risk
management and internal control systems are in place.

The Group is pleased to release our sixth Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (hereinafter this “Report”
or "ESG report”). Through this Report, we wish to respond
to different issues regarding Environmental, Social and
Governance (hereinafter "ESG") which major stakeholders are
concerned in a comprehensive and transparent manner, and
disclose the Group's vision, strategies and practices in the
process of sustainable development objectively to enhance
stakeholders’ understanding and confidence in the Group so
as to continuously improve our ESG performance.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE- - ERELARS @

ABOUT THIS REPORT

For the convenience of expression and reading, “NOVA
Group”, “the Group”, "“we” and “us” in this Report refer to
“NOVA Group Holdings Limited".

This Report contains information that is material to
understand the Group’s ESG practices and performance
in its daily operations. The reporting period of this Report
covered from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023, with appropriate
forward and backward extensions for certain contents in
order to better reflect the ESG performance of the Group. The
contents disclosed in this Report (including policy documents,
statements and data, etc.) mainly covered major business
segments of the Group:

o Financing segment — Money Lending, Factoring and
Financing Lease

o Cultural and Entertainment segment — Trading,
Promotion and Consulting Services and Branding

During the Reporting Period, the Group has discontinued
its exhibitions and events business operation due to the
resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic since early 2022 which
resulted in business disruptions. Hence, this Report only
covers two major business segments of the Group shown
above.

This Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the “Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Main Board
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
and complies with all provisions of “mandatory disclosure”
or “comply or explain”. In preparing the Report, we have
adopted the international standards and emission factors
specified in the guidance materials on ESG issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for computing the
relevant Key Performance Indicators (‘KPIs"), and there is no
change in the way the Report has been prepared from the
previous year, unless otherwise stated.
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In order to fully demonstrate the Group's efforts and
achievements in the ESG aspect during the year ended 30
June 2023 (the “"Reporting Period”) to all stakeholders,
this Report is prepared in accordance with the four
reporting principles set out in the Guide, namely materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency, which serve as the
basis for the preparation of this Report. We strive to fully
reflect the Group’s policies, strategies and related materiality
in the ESG aspect in this Report, and continuously improve
the content of disclosure in the future. The application of
materiality is detailed in the subsection headed “Analysis of
Materiality Issues”. The ESG Report provides an unbiased
picture of the Group's performance within the Reporting
Period, avoiding selections, omissions, or presentation
formats that may inappropriately influence a decision
or judgement by the reader. The Group will maintain the
consistency of the methodologies and key performance
indicators of the Reporting Period and that of the future
reporting period, to allow for meaningful comparisons over
time.

Should you wish to provide comments or recommend
improvements on our ESG reporting, please reach us
through our feedback hotline (telephone no. at (852) 2607
7307). Although there were no specific programs to engage
stakeholders outside the Group when this Report was
being prepared, we have included the key issues that are
of different stakeholder groups’ concerns, based on our
continual communication with them. Alternatively, you are
also welcome to send your comments and suggestions
regarding our ESG performance to our Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Wong, by mail.

The information and cases disclosed in this Report are from
the Group's internal documents, statistical reports or relevant
public information. The Group assures that the contents of
this Report, for which the Group accepts full responsibility
for its truthfulness, accuracy and completeness, are free of
any false statements, misleading representations or material
omissions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE-HETRERERE @

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group strives to conduct its business in a transparent,
equitable, legal and socially responsible manner, and
continues to care about the impact its daily operation may
bring to the environment, customers and community, making
an effort to safeguard the interests of all stakeholders and
strike a balance between environmental, social and economic
development.

The expectations and opinions of stakeholders are essential
for the Group to improve its sustainable development
strategy. Over the years, we have continued to maintain close
communication with internal and external stakeholders such
as government/regulatory bodies, shareholders, suppliers,
employees, customers and the community public through a
wide range of channels such as regular meetings, activities,
reports, websites, etc., to understand their opinions on the
performance of the Group, actively communicate with various
stakeholders, constantly collect their opinions and feedback,
fully understand their expectations and suggestions, and
identify areas for improvement. In order to balance our
business requirements, social demand and environmental
impact, we keep monitoring the risks and opportunities
arising from our daily course of operation, and promote
a corporate management culture with high transparency
to ensure our sustainable development strategies are
being communicated to significant stakeholders such as
employees, customers, suppliers and the community.

Set out below are the expectations and concerns of
respective significant stakeholders and our corresponding
communication channels during the Reporting Period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HHEREARSE @

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS
(Continued)

BlF = ERA S B8 @

Stakeholders Communication channels

Expectations and concerns

B A

BEAN

Government and
regulatory authorities

In compliance with laws and
regulations

Legal operation

In compliance with the Listing
Rules

Information disclosure
Communication with regulatory
authorities

Tax returns

BRKREEKE o BFEERER s EREKE
o BEXEE o HBTEHEHE
o B<F ETRAI o MMINERER
Shareholders e Profit return e (Group announcements
e Business development e General meetings
e ESG governance e Site inspection
e Corporate image e Timely reporting
&R o Wz [BIER o EEANE
o XBERE s REAE
e ESGARIE o BMIER
o BEER o TEHAIWRE
Suppliers e Legal operation and quality e Meeting with suppliers
standards of suppliers e Online survey
e Fair and reasonable treatment e Review and evaluation
of business partners e Tendering and bidding activities
e Service quality and customers’
satisfaction
HFER o HEMGZIESRDERE o HEMER
o EBBHNTFESENFTE s WMIEBRFAE
e IRBnEHERMEE o BZIETH
o BIEEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR-HERESRSE @

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

(Continued)

Stakeholders

Expectations and concerns

BlF = ERA S B8 @

Communication channels

B A

HAEE 825K

BEAN

Employees e Employee compensation and o Staff representative meetings
benefits e Group activities
e Employee health and safety e |etter communication
e Legal and lawful recruitment e Recommendation box
e Employee training and
development
e Working environment
8T s ETIRFBHRH e HMITARKE
e BETREHEAZS o EEEH
s BEERAT e 555
o BTBIIHERE o HEEE
o IFIRIR
Customers e Quality of product and service e Satisfaction survey
e Customer information security e Sales feedback
e Legal operation
e Health and safety protection
BEE s EmKRBES s MEERSE
s BXRERMRE o« &l
o BEREE
s BEZERME
community e Community environment e Community communication
e Charity and public benefit e Press release/announcements
activities
e Community contribution
e Legal operation
HE o HEIRIE e HEBER
o HER@ o MEfR A%
o tHEEE
s BREE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE-HEREAERSE @

ANALYSIS OF MATERIALITY ISSUES

The Group reviewed the material ESG issues identified
by the Group during the Reporting Period from various
sources, such as issues identified in the Guide of the Stock
Exchange, previous ESG report, internal policies industry
trends and the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board's
Materiality Map. The ESG issues have been analysed with
reference to an array of factors, including the Group's overall
strategy, development, and goals and targets. The Group has
conducted a materiality assessment to rate the identified ESG
issues that are pertinent to its business and stakeholders,
and their respective level of impact. The result of materiality
assessment on the identified material ESG issues are
summarized as follows:

EEMRESR
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IR P EEMESGE & > B PR iE
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Mo EREAERNERRIK - EE -BEK
B AEESETEE TG U HEA
HEBRRFHERRBNERPIESGEERE
ZEEMNFERE -BHRNEEHESCHE
NEE M EHE R T -

Identify relevant
issues
EplLiE g

Identification of
material issues
HANEEMEE

Confirmation of
material issues

Identify ESG issues relevant to the business of the Group based on the
results of materiality assessments in previous years, issues of concern to
the industry, Hong Kong and international reporting standards and the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals, etc.

BBEFENEEUTEAER FIENALIES  BEREIRR SR E KRG
SEAFEEREEREH# A AEEEFERMNESG & -

Assess the materiality of each issue to stakeholders and to the Group,
a materiality matrix is created to determine the material issues to be
considered in priority.

AR RERTN AR REAEENEEN  BUSEMER - BES
BEAZENEEZMZE

The identified material issues to be reviewed by the Board of the Group and
disclosed in this Report.
HAEEESEEREHNNEENZEE TERRENETRE-
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR-HERESRSE @

ANALYSIS OF MATERIALITY ISSUES EEMEES N @
(Continued)
NOVA Group 2022/2023 Analysis on Material ESG Issues Matrix’
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Low Importance to NOVA Group High
15 HEEEEMNEEN =
1. Product and 2. Legal and 3. Legal and 4. Internal Integrity 5. Employee Training
Service Quality Compliance Compliance Management and Development
EmkRBEEE Operation Employment NP EE BTHEIEERE
BEAREE BEEHRAT
6. Employee Health 7. Employee 8. Employee 9. Intellectual 10. Suppliers Legal
and Safety Benefits and Communication Property Operation and
ETREHERZR Welfare BIER Protection Quality Standards
BIFBEER M ERRE HEHALEE R
mERE
11. Equipment 12. Integration of 13. Diversified Staff 14. Operation 15. Environmental and
Procurement and Services with Local Background Wastewater Social Performance
Supply community EBTHRZKIE Discharge and of Suppliers
RERBRARE IR EIE Mt @ 5 Treatment HAER VIR IR Bt
EBRS BE KRR ES
B
16. Green 17. Waste Disposal and 18. Water Consumption | 19. Greenhouse Gas 20. Donations and
Environmental Emission Reduction and Conservation Emissions and Volunteering
Protection Publicity BEERIESUAHE KERBFEREIK Emissions Reduction Activities
and Education BEREBIRR R EERREE)
HEBRREEHB B

1

The boldfaced topics in the table are identified material issues. :
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE-HERERERE @

MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE

As a responsible enterprise, we actively manage ESG issues
and promote corporate sustainable development. The Report
summarizes the strategy, practice and vision of the Group
in respect of issues related to ESG, and conveys the Group’s
devotion to sustainability. To address the global concern
about climate change, the Group has also considered the
climate-related issues and incorporated them into the Report.
All potential and actual risks that may have impact on the
Group’s businesses will be covered and evaluated in the
annual enterprise risk assessment.

To facilitate effective management of ESG issues, the Group
has established a governance structure. The Board has an
overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s ESG-related
risks and opportunities, establishing and adopting the ESG-
related strategies and targets of the Group including setting
KPIs for environmental-related issues and setting higher
standards of energy efficient measures and waste treatment,
reviewing the Group’s performance annually against the
ESG-related targets, and revising the ESG-related strategies
as appropriate if significant variance from the ESG-related
target is identified. Our Board has established an ESG working
group that comprises senior management members. The
ESG working group supports the Board in implementing
ESG actions, policies, targets and strategies; conducting
materiality assessments of material ESG and climate risks
through the ESG data collection and reporting cycle. The
ESG working group also investigates deviation from targets
and seeks rectification actions for such deviation. The ESG
working group has to report to our Board on a semi-annual
basis on the ESG performance of our Group, and our Board
will review the effectiveness of the systems and controls in
place, including business, environment, people, and social
interests.

106

FHEE

ERBEENEE  HFRBEEESGHE
BB EEARELR ARSHIAE
BB RESGEENRE - BR MBS B
AEBHRAREERNRAL -REHE
KEREEEHRT AEBTTE BRI
EEZELREMATRER - FERE
JEL R 5T (R R B e TR PI BE R B A B 5
BB BERERER -

PR EANEEESGERE AEEERYE
ARB-EFEEEEEEEAREEAIESG
TR E R R & > Hl E K SRl A S B RIESG
MR R ER (BEMIRIEAEREERE
RSRE ISR R E A T e B BB
ENESRE)  RRESGHEBBE RS FR
S AREER R W SR MAESCHER B R
BERRREENBER TEEETTESCIERE
RE-EFETCEHNIHSREEEREMR
R AVESG L {E/N4H - ESGTE/ MR IRBIE S
SEMESGITE  BUER - BRA R TES
ESGEURINE K R & B EAESCR R
EBETEEM L - ESCTIF VAT EH
B R B RBVIE S 0 I A RE (R BEER B AY
EH-ESCITIRMBRBHFEREFTE
BAEBERESGKRIT MEFTRIBNERA
RERIERIAN BREES RIEAER
RALEH] ok o

NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE-HEREAERSE @

MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE (continuead)

Based on the set goals and targets, the Board will continue
to review the Group’s progress in relation to ESG issues in
order to build a more sustainable business and bring greater
benefits to society as a whole.

The Group will continue to provide sufficient resources to
monitor the implementation of ESG strategies and policies on
an ongoing basis, and strictly comply with all relevant laws,
rules and regulations when carrying out business, while at
the same time observing the ESG guidelines, so as to achieve
sustainable development among the environment, society,
employees and the Group itself.

ESG Working Group

ESGT /N4 ESG matters on a daily basis.

Functional
Department
B AE SR PT

This ESG Report was approved by the Board of the Company
on 29 September 2023. For details of the corporate
governance of the Company, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 71 to 97 of the annual report of
the Company for the year ended 30 June 2023.

the set strategies and targets.

NOVA Group operates its business on the principles of
honesty, ethics and integrity, also resolutely resists illegal
acts such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering,
and any behaviours which may be detrimental to the Group
and its stakeholders are prohibited. We strictly abide by the
national and regional laws and regulations regarding anti-
corruption, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of
Hong Kong, the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Ordinance (T A RZEHD FTESSEKHAE)
the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
(HEE AR EMEME)Y > the Anti-Money Laundering Law
of the PRC (/P #E A R HE M & 7824 ) » the Anti-Corruption
Law of the PRC (FZEAREMBEREHE) > the Criminal
Procedure Law of the PRC (P AR EMBEMEFEAZED
and Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC {#ZE A R HAN
Bl A~ 1EE 7 F5%) and other relevant laws and regulations.
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The Board is responsible for the overall decision-making, oversees the formulation,
administration, and assessment of the ESG system.
EERAEERAR  BEBESCRANFIE

BRI

The ESG working group is responsible for assisting the Board in managing and monitoring the
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Functional department is responsible for the execution of implemented measures to achieve
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIF-HHERERERS @

MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE (Continuea)

The Group upholds a high standard of integrity and
professional ethics in its operations. Through excellent
management and compliant operation, we hope to promote
the economic development of society, serve the real
economy and facilitate sustainable development while
providing quality services to customers. To this end, during
our daily operation, we attach high importance to business
ethics and strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations
such as the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Company
Law of the PRC (R #E A RHFEI A E]7%) and the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC {2 A R Z£ME & N EEHF
EDe

The Group adopts a zero-tolerance approach and all forms
of bribery and corruption are strictly prohibited by the
Group. Employees should not offer, solicit or accept anything
of material value to or from their colleagues, customers,
suppliers or other business partners of the Group. They
should perform their duties with integrity, such that no
bribery, fraud or money laundering will be carried out for their
personal gains at the expense of the Group's interests. Anti-
corruption guideline has been detailed in the staff handbook,
which is distributed to all employees at the commencement
of their employment, so that they can familiarize themselves
with the guidelines.

During daily operations of the money lending business, we
perform relevant due diligence on all customers. We verify the
customer’s identity by reference to documents or information
provided by reliable and independent sources. Personal
documents, including ID/passport, driving license etc., will
be obtained before entering into any business relationships
with our customers. All the information and records are well
maintained to meet the record-keeping requirements.
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In addition, the Group has established a reliable whistle-
blowing channel for employees and those who deal with the
Group to report any suspected misconduct to their respective
department head or human resources department verbally
or in writing. The whistle-blower’s identity will always remain
anonymous and be protected throughout the investigation.
Upon receipt of the report, we will conduct investigation
immediately, and if the allegation is found to be true, we
will take disciplinary actions against the person concerned,
and if necessary, take legal actions to report to the relevant
regulatory or law enforcement authorities.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any
illegal cases of bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering
threatened against the Group or its employees. In addition,
the Group arranged an anti-corruption session during the
orientation training for the new employees. The Group will
closely monitor the regulatory development and will arrange
relevant anti-corruption training for our employees and
directors, where necessary.

Suppliers play an integral role in the business of the
Group. The Group firmly believes that comprehensive
supply chain management is paramount to maintain the
quality of the products and services of the Group, and to
promote sustainable development. To protect our vital
interests, the Group always selects legitimate suppliers with
outstanding quality, relevant qualifications and excellent
service capabilities on the basis of transparency and
fairness. The performance of suppliers in discharging their
environmental and social responsibilities is also one of
the evaluation criteria for our suppliers. In the process of
selecting suppliers, factors such as candidates’ sustainable
development and management strategies, labour standards,
moral standards and environmental management systems
are included in the scoring system for close examination. The
Group also encourages suppliers to actively assume their
corporate social responsibilities by observing the regulatory
requirements and business ethics in respect of business
operations, marketing campaigns, social occasions and
environmental obligations.
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To ensure the services and products quality provided by
suppliers, we evaluate our existing suppliers on a regular
basis and remove those found to be in serious non-
compliance or whose quality fails to meet the requirements,
thereby reducing the risks associated with the supply
chain. On top of that, the Group also conducts an annual
assessment of the approved suppliers to ensure that the
products or services are of consistent quality and up to the
Group's required standards. Suppliers with unsatisfactory
results in the annual assessment will be removed from
our list of approved suppliers. New suppliers will also be
introduced according to our selection criteria to maintain the
Group's sustainable development and achieve our ultimate
goal of a win-win situation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged 1
approved supplier located in the PRC. Due to COVID-19,
the number of cultural and entertainment businesses has
significantly decreased, which led to the termination of the
contract with the suppliers. Hence, the number of suppliers
has decreased during the Reporting Period. We will continue
to invest in our collaboration with suppliers and expand our
network of providers, in a bid to provide the best experience
to our users.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied
with laws and regulations in regard to product responsibility
in the PRC that have a significant impact on our business,
including, but not limited to, the Trademark Law of the PRC,
the Copyright Law of the PRC and the Rules of Protection on
Information Network Dissemination Rights of the PRC.

The Group values greatly on the safety and health issues
of our product provided. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has not recalled any products sold or shipped subject
to safety and health reasons. If customers are not satisfied
with the quality of the services and products delivered, the
frontline staff have to conduct a preliminary assessment, and
will pass the products to the Sales Department for further
checking, if necessary.

mHERHERRENRSREREE
PERHIFAHEM LT G JIGREE
BRNEERTERENMHER  BIEA
HIESEARRARY IR o BRIL Z 5b ) ANEE TR
ORI B ET F ET M LURREMRN
RBHNE RGN — WEINAERRE
WRE FEFGARERNTERVHEERD
R PIBIEE AT e B % B 5 Bk - R By
RBEEERSIATOEER > REEH
ARFESERFREEN ZSFARNR
HER-

REBESHE 2EBEZRRB1R U FER
OB &R o FHFYCOVID-19 » XAE A iR S %
HBHERER D EREAHEHNSOK
eIt SEHE R HEEFmBER LD 3K
PR EERERHERNSF WiEAM
EEpEs WERKMNABRRERER

g o

RBREHE ~EEBERETTHEAARE
mEETHRMNEFEEERTENE
BER BREFTER(PEARKENERD
TE) N (PEARAMEZFEE) PE
(5 BB BB RERG) -

AEBIIFEERBPFREERNLZE R
BEBE NRSHE AEBTERAZE
RERREMBREAMEEXNEEENE
meMERAMBARXNRBERERE
8 R E TRETD M WROER
REMXTHESUE—TIRE-

NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE-HETRERERE @

MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE (continued)

We have established procedures in relation to monitoring
and protection of intellectual property rights. The Group
requires its subsidiaries to purchase legitimate software
and multimedia resources to ensure the use of licensed
multimedia and software resources. If any piracy, theft,
falsification, illegal possession, counterfeiting or other
forms of infringement of intellectual property are found
upon investigation, the Group will immediately rectify such
behaviour and take disciplinary actions, and serious cases
will be handed over to relevant authorities for their handling
in accordance with the law; if such behaviour constitutes an
offense, those who committed such offense shall be held
responsible in accordance with the law.

The Group has pledged that the use of false promotional
messages is prohibited. When disseminating public
information such as advertisements and recruitment
materials, we strictly comply with the requirements under
the laws and regulations such as the Advertising Law of the
PRC (FhEE A B HFMEE &% ) by filing them with approving
authorities for their review and approval.

In addition, the Group ensures that the information of
customers and business are highly secured. To further clarify
the requirements on privacy protection by the Group, as
required by the laws and regulations such as the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Civil Code of the
PRC {(PZE ARHFMEE AH ) and the Personal Information
Protection Law of the PRC{/ZE AR EFMEEAEER
3% ) > we ensure that the confidentiality of material non-
public information such as business secrets and customer
information is strictly maintained.

BHER @

RMPEHERMEERREN R ERNE
FoAEEREETHBATHIBEILERR
RUHMNZEEER BIRERRBRERN
ZRBEMHNRGER - EREHREE
Rl RE - 2o JRAEAVRE WA
N EEMNBHERNTR AEER L
BRI G T D BREIF A& B ERH
EPIRCERRIE ; BAERMAMKIZERE
Bffe

AEERAETERERNERER T
MARERNES BBESR ) BRET
(REARREMBEESE) SERERNE
KomEHEBETHEES -

i AEEEFREFEHNEHREER
IREENRE - RE-—THARAERT
FRRERDENER REEEB(EAER
(FAER) 1R ~ (P EARKEMBIR AL ) X
R(PEARFEMBEAGEBRESL) FA
BERNER HAHERNFELARERH
NEHERE BEEERFETERRR

2022/23F R o EREBERERAT 111



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIF-HHERERERS @

MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE (Continuea)

The Group has formulated relevant regulations with
detailed provisions on the scope of confidential issues and
confidentiality level categorisation, the requirements for
confidential issues and the handling and accountability
for unauthorised disclosure and leakage. The Group has
signed non-disclosure agreements with all employees and
cooperating suppliers to ensure that they are aware of
and undertake to comply with the Group’s confidentiality
requirements. We take reasonable steps to protect the
personal data and records from unauthorised access,
handling, deletion or use. Within the “Staff Handbook”, all
employees are required to protect the sensitive information
and clients’ personal information obtained when performing
the job duties. Information should not be disclosed to any
third parties unless and to the extent that it is necessary
to make such disclosure. In the event of any leakage of the
private information of our customers or the Group, the Group
will promptly take remedial measures and disciplinary actions
against the persons held responsible depending on the
severity of the incident.

When the Group receives complaints from customers,
our Business Department is responsible for handling the
complaints, and all complaints received will be recorded in
writing and submitted to senior staff for reviews and follow-
up recommendations. All documents and reports will be
properly kept and we aim to resolve all complaints, including
those involving malpractices or alleged negligence. A follow-
up response will also be communicated to the relevant
customer when the complaint is duly handled and resolved.

During the Reporting Period, no material complaints were
received and no material legal proceedings regarding
infringement of intellectual property, advertising, labelling and
privacy issues were brought against the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE-HETRERERE @

ELITE TEAMS

NOVA Group understands that employees are an
indispensable cornerstone for business development,
and excellent talents are the driving force for sustainable
development. The Group provides employees with attractive,
reasonable and fair treatment and remuneration, and
actively improves the employee benefit policies to increase
employees’ sense of belonging and work enthusiasm, and
jointly promote sustainable development. The Group strictly
complies with relevant laws and regulations, such as the
Employment Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance, and the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Labour Law of the PRC {FhZE A
EHFMBES %) > the Labour Contract Law of the PRC {Hn
EARHEMEEEEEE) > the Social Insurance Law of
the PRC (FZE ARHEMEMEREEED > the Implementing
Regulations of the Labour Contract Law of the PRC (m
EARHMEZEESRAEMKG ) > etc., continuously
improves the human resources management system, and
implements normalised and standardised management in
respect of salary and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity, and
anti-discrimination, so as to effectively protect the interests of
employees.

The Group promotes a diverse and respectful workplace
to ensure that employees are not treated differently due
to factors such as gender, age, nationality, race, religion,
family and health conditions, and eliminate any form of
discrimination.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not experienced
any complaints or litigations regarding the violation of laws
relating to recruitment, compensation, dismissal, promotion,
performance assessment, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other aspects
of employment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HERERRSE @
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ELITE TEAMS (Continued) REER )
Employment Management (Continued) BEEE #®
During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 22 HIREHRE > AEB—HEB2HLET o555
employees. The details are as follows: WA -
Year ended
30 June 2023
B#E—_T—-=
Employment Indicators E{EE1E ANB=1+HLEE
Employment &%
Total number of employees ESHEZ 22
By gender =R
Male B 11
Female Z 1
By age group FFB AR
Under 30 30 AT 1
30-40 30-405% 6
41-50 41-505% 9
51 or above & 6
By region e
Hong Kong BH 10
The PRC EP 12
By employment type FIE B
Permanent Staff KABTL 22

NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE-HERERERS @

ELITE TEAMS (Continuea)

Employment Management (Continued)

BEBERE @
BEEE @)

Year ended
30 June 2023

350%

318%
382%

800%
633%
256%
133%

80%

BE—ZT—-=
Employment Indicators BIEREIET NB=1THLEE
Employee turnover MEEBT
Total employee turnover rate HE T ikE
By gender IR
Male 3
Female Z
By age group FZEB A
Under 30 3058 AT
30-40 30-405%
41-50 41-50%%
51 or above S1sR 3 £
By region 1=
Hong Kong BH
The PRC A
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The Group prohibits the use of child labour or forced labour.
In accordance with the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong,
the Labour Contract Law of the PRC {(ZE A RHARE &S
[E5%) > the Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors and
the Regulations on the Implementation of the Employment
Contract (PEARHEMNBARAKNFEAREEZNSHERE
M%) > the Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors
(PEAREFMBEKRMF AREE)and the Provisions on
the Prohibition against the Use of Child Labour {22t ER=E
T#R7E) > we have clearly stipulated in the labour contracts
that the Group and its employees have equal legal status
and that no party shall impose its/his/her will on the other
party. The Group strictly implements relevant procedures in
the recruitment process and screens out all job applicants
under the age of 16, and their identification certificates are
carefully examined in the interviews. In case of any violation
of relevant regulations, the Group will immediately terminate
the employment contract to prevent child labour. The Group
formulates the working hours of employees according to
relevant laws and regulations, and does not encourage and
emphasise overtime work.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not experienced
any kind of child labour or forced labour related complaints.

As a responsible employer, the Group believes employees’
health and safety are the guarantee of steady operation for
an enterprise. The Group continues to improve the health and
safety related system construction and daily management
to protect employees’ physical and mental health. The
Group strictly complies with the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Regulation on Work-
Related Injury Insurance (L& fREzfR®I) > the Fire Safety
(Commercial Premises) Ordinance of Hong Kong and the
Production Safety Law of the PRC (hEAREMBEZ 24
EE% ) the Law on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases of the PRC (F#E AR HEME B ERAHAEE)
and the Administrative Measures for Occupational Health
Inspection (B4 EEREEEPE)and other relevant
laws and regulations, committed to creating a sanitary, safe
and comfortable office environment for employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE-HETRERERE @

ELITE TEAMS (Continued)

In order to maintain a hygienic office environment, we
regularly hire professional cleaning companies to disinfect
telephones, keyboards, computers and other office supplies;
and clean glass windows, walls, carpets as well as debugs.
We also carry out regular inspections of the hygienic
conditions of the items in our office environment and
promptly clean or replace those that do not meet hygienic
standards.

In the midst of COVID-19, the Group has implemented all
practicable preventive and protective measures to minimise
occupational risk, including but not limited to encouraging
the employees to wear surgical masks and remain social
distancing, when necessary, and provision of sanitizers. The
Group will pay close attention to the latest development and
regularly reviews the measures implemented to ensure the
measures are effective.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded zero case
of work injury and no relevant lost days (2022: 0 case; 2021: 0
case). No work-related fatalities were recorded by the Group
in the past three years including the Reporting Period. As
the Group places its employees’ safety as top priority, it will
continue to strive for a safe and healthy work environment
for its employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIF-HHERERERS @

ELITE TEAMS (Continued)

The development of employees is the top priority of the
Group’s planning and also the driving force for the steady
development of NOVA Group. The Group continues to invest
resources and establish a sound training system. Through
various types of training and learning programmes, the
Group encourages employees to develop their potential,
improves team capabilities and overall quality, and lays a solid
foundation for the sustainable development of the Company.
Every year, the Group regularly formulates training work plans
for business development and employees’ career needs,
and arranges diversified training programmes and seminars
held by relevant institutions. During the Reporting Period,
the Directors attended seminars and courses organised by
external parties; the Company’s accounting department also
attended courses and seminars organised by the Institute of
Certified Public Accountants or accounting firms from time to
time every year.

We attach great importance to training management work
and monitor training processes and outcomes. We undertake
assessment upon conclusion of training programmes,
whereby we also take into account trainees’ subsequent
job performances to carry out appraisals as to their overall
learning results, ensuring that our training is effective.
Meanwhile, the results of the training assessment will be
recorded in the employees’ files as references for potential
shifts of positions, adjustment of ranks, assessment of
performance and other personnel activities.
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During the Reporting Period, the average training hours of the
Group's employees are 0.4 hour. The details are as follows:

Total

By gender

Male

Female

By employee category
Senior management
Middle management
General employees

Total humber of hours of training
received by employees

Average hours of training per employee

Average hours of training per employee
by gender

Male
Female

Average hours of training per employee
by employment category

Senior management
Middle management
General employees

#azt
#ZIEF

3

%7
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SHREER
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B TFRE =8I0 48R &
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5
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2022/23F FHR o HEREBERABRAR

RS A5 E A TESE TR
0.4\ o BB T A

18%

25%
75%

50%

50%
%

8.0

0.2
0.5

0.4
0.4



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIF-HHERERERS @

ELITE TEAMS (Continued)

NOVA Group has established a comprehensive remuneration
and welfare protection system in accordance with the laws,
and adheres to the principle of equal and fair employment.
We only consider candidates’ moral character, work
ability, development potential and compatibility with the
Company'’s culture as the consideration for the appointment
of talents, and provide fair and competitive remuneration
and benefits based on their educational background, work
experience, career aspirations and other factors. Employees’
remuneration package includes basic salary, post salary and
comprehensive subsidies, as well as bonuses determined
by their business performance and individual performance,
serving as an effective motivation to employees. The Group
regularly adjusts employees’ remuneration and benefits
by evaluating their work ability and past performance, and
making reference to market and industry standards, which
is one of the bases for promotion. At the same time, the
Group provides performance-based salary according to the
work performance and position of employees to enhance
the motivation of employees to work hard, and formulates a
remuneration structure table to determine the salary range
of each rank and provide clear guidance for employees. The
Group ensures that all procedures such as remuneration
assessment, position and job grade transfer are fair, open
and transparent to ensure equal opportunities for all job
applicants and staff.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE-HETRERERE @

ELITE TEAMS (continued)

In addition to reasonable remuneration, the Group also
emphasises on welfare policy to encourage cohesion of
our staff and passion of work. Subject to the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and the Labour Contract Law of
the PRC (R ZEAREMBEZE S SEE) > we provide a wide
range of benefits to employees, including labour insurance,
Mandatory Provident Fund, medical and life insurance,
telecommunication subsidy, lunch allowance, overtime
subsidy, travel allowance, heatstroke prevention subsidy
and labour protection allowance. In addition, we implement
standardised management on employees’ holidays and rest
periods, and formulate policies to restrict employees’ working
hours with reference to laws, regulations and guidelines
such as the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and the
Provisions of the State Council on Employees’ Working
Hours (BIF5PrRan R T TIEREBIARE ) > to ensure that
employees have sufficient rest. In addition to statutory
holidays and fixed paid annual leave, the Group’s employees
are provided with paid leave including annual leave, sick
leave, maternity leave, marriage leave, bereavement leave
and examination leave to further protect the legitimate rights
of employees.

To ensure that our employees work in a pleasant and
comfortable environment, we attach great importance to
our employees’ voices, and have established a number of
channels, such as feedback boxes for collecting employees’
comments, in order to enhance communication with them,
understand their thoughts and suggestions, and continue to
perfect our employee management system. The Group also
encourages employees to respect, coordinate and support
one another during work and create a fair and diverse
working environment free from discrimination so as to
manifest our corporate values and fulfil social responsibilities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIF-HHERERERS @

ENVIRONMENTAL OPERATIONS

The Group understands the importance of environmental
protection, and strictly controls the generation and emission
of air pollutants, waste discharges and others in adherence
to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance of Hong Kong, the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (AR HFE
IB151R#5%) > the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Pollution {FR2E A R EMESEEH87%5) > the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
(FhEE AR EMBASEERAED > the Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution
(REAREMEBIRIRRZRSHRE/AE) > the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution
Caused by Solid Wastes (FZE A R EE B EY)SH
fh7a7%Yand the Law of the PRC on Conserving Energy{Hn
EARBHEMBELFETREYand other related laws and
regulations, to ensure that the Group does not violate any
laws or regulations related to environment in the course of
our operation and management.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we consistently carry
out the environmental sustainability development strategy
across our operations, perfect our environment management
system and promote green development. We continuously
gather and monitor data and information relating to major
environmental issues that are material to the Group. As the
Group is principally engaged in the management services and
other business activities which are all conducted in the office,
our daily operations do not have any material effect on the
environment, except for greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions
indirectly generated from the use of externally purchased
electricity.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
violation of environmental protection laws and regulations.
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In order to reduce carbon emissions in business operations
and jointly cope with climate change, the Group actively
advocates the green policy of sustainable development
and strives to save energy, water, paper and other
resources within its capacity. We proactively raised our
staff's environmental awareness and implemented relevant
measures in energy saving and reducing emissions in daily
operations so as to establish a low-carbon office.

During the Group’s daily operations, the Group owned
2 vehicles for business use. Vehicle usage is the major
activity of the Group that generates air pollutant, which
includes nitrogen oxides (“NOx”), sulphur oxides (“SOx") and
Particulate Matter (“PM"). During the Reporting Period, the
air pollutants emissions data are increased. This was mainly
due to the more frequent use of vehicles for transporting
our management team members, guests and clients as the
pandemic situation is gradually relieved during the Reporting
Period. To uphold the principles of sustainable development,
the Group is committed to reducing the air pollutants
emissions between 80% to 110% of the level of baseline year
ended 30 June 2023 in the next reporting period. For fleet
management, regular maintenance checks are performed
for all the vehicles to enhance fuel consumption efficiency,
ensure road safety and keep emissions at their minimum.

GHG generated from human activities is one of the significant
drivers of global warming which affects the lives of the
present and future generation. Therefore, the Group is highly
concerned about the importance of monitoring and mitigating
GHG emissions in its operations. During the Reporting
Period, the GHG emissions intensity increased significantly
when compared to the previous reporting period, which
did not achieve the target set in the previous reporting
period. Although the GHG emissions generated by the Group
decreased by more than 20%, it decreased by a proportion
less than the decrease in the number of employees. Thus, the
intensity of GHG emission increased. To uphold the principles
of sustainable development, the Group is committed to
reducing or maintaining both the GHG emissions intensity
between 80% to 110% of the level of baseline year ended
30 June 2023 in the next reporting period via adopting the
following measures.

RBVEBEEPNRBIR HERAER
2L AEBEGESURKELEREE
73 AAFRBE R MBI BEIR K~ RRFE
ReRMNABEEBERT  BBRERASL
BYIR fR =058 0 B i B0 SE R BEAR RE FE I 0 2
THTEBRBIAZE

RAEAEENREZSER  AEBER2W
BERE -EWMERNAERELEERS
YN EEEE ERSAVEERASRT
#) (TNOx1) ~BRE1EY) (TSOx 1) K FEHIY)
(TPM ) - RIS ZRI5ERYEK
BEAMEM L T2RNREHMEA
BERBRBZMTE AEBEERRK
RENBERERPREENER - BRF
AFEERRA AEERNON T —RS
HERER S AYHINER VD EHE"T
—=FRA=+THLEEFEKFHN0%
ENM0%-EWMEEHE AEETEHRHAE
BETHERD  LURS MFENE » R
ERZETRFRERERME-

ANEEHELERNRAEREDERERNE
T-EESHEHRE TEEARERE
me A AERSERENEEERER
RV BERBEHMRANERME - NIRSH
B ORAERBHREZEER L —RESHABK
Mg WARED E—HREHBERIIANE
R-BEAERELNREREHNER
D 3120% > B ER D EE BN B B A BURL D
EEf o AL R ERAEHIRE IR - /R
FOFEERR EERHRBRM
DT#ER £ T - RS A EEREH
BEERENERFEBRE_S _=F\A
=+ HIEREEFEKFMNB0%E110%°

2022/23F FHR o HEREBERABRAR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIF-HHERERERS @

ENVIRONMENTAL OPERATIONS (continued)

Electricity is the principal energy consumed in our daily
operation within the offices. The Group regularly monitors
the electricity consumption of the offices in Hong Kong
and Mainland China, installs LED lights with higher energy
efficiency in the offices to replace traditional fluorescent
tubes, and encourages employees to minimise the use of
lights when natural light is abundant; signings are displayed at
prominent locations in offices to raise employees’ awareness
of energy conservation; central air-conditioning is subject
to reasonable adjustments in different seasons; electrical
appliances are subject to regular energy consumption
inspections; energy saving and environmental protection are
considered in the procurement of new electrical appliances.

During the Reporting Period, the energy consumption
intensity increased significantly when compared to the
previous reporting period, which did not achieve the target
set in the previous reporting period. Although the energy
consumption level of the Group decreased by approximately
20%, it decreased by a proportion less than the decrease
in the number of employees. Thus, the intensity of energy
consumption increased. To uphold the principles of
sustainable development, the Group is committed to reducing
or maintaining both the energy consumption intensity
between 80% to 110% of the level of baseline year ended 30
June 2023 in the next reporting period by implementing the
said mitigating measures.

The Group understands the precious nature of the earth’s
resources and actively advocates paperless office to
reduce unnecessary office paper consumption. The Group
encourages employees to prioritise the communication
and dissemination of information through e-mail and other
electronic platforms. The Group encourages double-sided
printing and the use of waste paper for printing internal
documents whenever possible.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE-HETRERERE @

ENVIRONMENTAL OPERATIONS (continued)

The Group adheres to its commitment to sustainable
management and has taken various measures in the office to
encourage recycling to reduce waste generation. The Group
encourages employees to reuse office stationery such as
used envelopes and document folders whenever possible. In
terms of hazardous waste, as the business of the Group does
not involve any industrial production activities, the Group
did not generate any significant hazardous waste during the
Reporting Period.

The major non-hazardous waste is produced from paper
consumption for administrative work. During the Reporting
Period, the paper consumption intensity increased
significantly when compared to the previous reporting period,
which did not achieve the target set in the previous reporting
period. Although the consumed non-hazardous waste
decreased by more than 60%, it decreased by a proportion
less than the decrease in the number of employees. Thus, the
intensity of non-hazardous waste increased.

In order to minimise the usage of paper, we cultivate a
paperless working environment among our employees. To
avoid unnecessary wastage and promote the effective use
of paper, our employees are encouraged to use electronic
copies instead of hard copies. If printing is necessary, we
encourage the use of double-sided printing. Any paper that
has been used for single-sided printing should be reused
when there is no confidential information on the printed
side of the paper. To uphold the principles of sustainable
development, the Group is committed to reducing or
maintaining the non-hazardous waste intensity generated
between 80% to 110% of the level of the baseline year ended
30 June 2023 in the next reporting period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE-HERERERE @

ENVIRONMENTAL OPERATIONS (continued)

The operation of the Group involves a small amount of water
for office activities. During the Reporting Period, the water
consumption intensity increased by approximately 40%
when compared to the previous reporting period, which did
not achieve the target set in the previous reporting period.
Although the water consumption decreased by more than
60%, it decreased by a proportion less than the decrease
in the number of employees. Thus, the intensity of water
consumption increased.

Although the Group did not encounter any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, we strive to reduce water
consumption and improve the efficiency of water use in our
operations. The Group has put up “Saving Water Resource”
posters in washrooms in the office to raise employees’
awareness of water conservation. In addition, the Group
also regularly inspects and repairs the water supply system,
including water taps, water pipelines and water storage
tanks. Once the water supply equipment is found to be
dripping or leaking, professional parties will be arranged to
repair the water supply equipment immediately to reduce
waste caused by leakage of the water supply system. To
uphold the principles of sustainable development, the Group
is committed to reducing or maintaining both the water
consumption intensity between 80% to 110% of the level
of baseline year ended 30 June 2023 in the next reporting
period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HERERRS @

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE IRIBER

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s environmental RRIRELAM » ~EBEZRER KBRS
performance in terms of resource consumption and FERIBBERT :
emissions are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 | 30 June 2022°

8HE #HE

—ZE-= -
~NB=+8B] ~B=+H
Energy Consumption Indicator? BERERAEIERE ILEFE IEFES
Vehicle (kwh) B (FEE) 3,442.57 2,258.57
Electricity (kwh) B (FTRE) 65,382.62 80,979.58
Energy consumption (kwh) AEREAE (TRED 68,825.19 83,238.15

Energy consumption intensity REREAEE (FREAY)

(kwh/capita) 3,128.42 867.06
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 @ 30 June 2022
qE qHE
~A=+B| AE=1H
Water Consumption Indicator FEKEIEE ILEE IEFE
Water consumption (litre)* FEkE (FH 4 670.00 2,101.00
Water consumption intensity (litre/capita) #/KkZE F+,/ A1) 30.45 21.89

2 The data of energy consumption for the Reporting Period are disclosed 2 RE B RE A 28R RB I R MHH

Miysx— : GRIZRARAAISRERISS| ) KE -
NEzEtRRAERER

in accordance with “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs" issued by the Stock Exchange to display the more comprehensive
performance of the Group.

3 The data of energy consumption for the last reporting period are 3 R EREEREREEIR T IREH AT
reinstated and disclosed in accordance with “Appendix 2: Reporting AT B — | (RIRRARAE IS IZERIESI I E
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange for TR EE  LUEITEREZLER
meaning comparison.

4 The statistics of water consumption only cover the bottled water ¢ FEKERTECTEBEENAE - RINEME
consumption of Hong Kong head office, Furuida Financial Leasing E (R BIRAR K#AS (B8) hXEIEEH
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. and NOD (Shanghai) Management Communication BRABINEREACHFER | AEEKREE
Co., Ltd; the Group’s water supply is sourced from the municipal water THBUKAE - 3 A K 5 R RR E o
network, and it has not experienced any difficulty in securing water
supply.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HERERRSE @

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE IRIBEXN @)
(Continued)

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 @ 30 June 2022

E&ZE

A~NA=+H

GHG Emissions Indicator AERBHRERERSE ILEFE
Motor vehicle emission (scope 1) (kg)° REHIRE EHE—) (F52)° 944.85 619.89

Electricity consumption emission BAFAYKRE GED)
(scope 2) (kg) (F5) 39,319.24 50,032.65
Total GHG emissions (kg) HRERRBBINE (T 40,264.09 50,652.54
(Ea RN

BERBHREE
(F=/ A1) 1,830.19 527.63

Total GHG emissions intensity (kg/capita) 4

B

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 @ 30 June 2022

BHE HE

—E-= T
Vehicle Air Pollutant Emissions BT RISEY ~NB=+8B] ~BE=+H
Indicator¢ BE E 515 ILEE IEFE
Sulphur oxides (SOx) emission (g) mEEY(SONEERE (52) 5.22 3.43
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) emission (g) EEYINONEERE (52) 241.80 142.01
Particulate matter (PM) emission (g) BRYIPMEERE (52) 17.80 10.46

5 The Group has two vehicles in Hong Kong. The GHG (scope 1) emissions ~ * AEBBEEMMAUNESBAE  BERE (&

data is calculated with reference to the Reporting Guidance on B—) BERBENE R A2 E MMM
Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange. (RIERARENIESRERIES ) o

6 The vehicle air pollutant emissions data is calculated with reference ¢ BERTER S AN BENAE A A2 EHR
to the Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock FrEgfp) RIR AR A MIER BRI ) o
Exchange.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HERERRS @

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE IRIBEXN @)
(Continued)

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 @ 30 June 2022

#HE

~A=+B| AE=1H

Non-hazardous Waste Indicator’?  EEZEREFEY)ISIE ILEFE IEFE

Waste paper generation (kg) BEEMRELE (TR 117.50 310.00
Waste paper generation intensity BERERELERE

(kg/capita) (F=AH) 5.34 3.23

The Group will keep recording its resource consumption for AEBFFELHEERFRHE > U H
reviewing the effectiveness of its conservation measures & 55T EEIAY BRI AL AL 5] 8 B A8 X
in the future and formulating more specific improvement Z#Er&BEZE

measures and objectives.

7 The scope of the Group's business operation does not involve any 7 AERZ EBREHE TS RERBEMR -
packaging material.
8 The statistics of paper consumption in the Reporting Period cover Hong ¢ REREREERS —HE T BEBBAE

Kong head office and all the office in PRC for comprehensiveness, while REEFRERAE  MEt—REHBAES
the statistics of previous reporting period covered Hong Kong head BEBERMAE-
office only.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE-HERERERE @

CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change is among the most pressing global challenges
of our time. Against the backdrop of global climate actions,
the Group has implemented measures to conserve
energy and reduce GHG emissions. In addition, the Group
is conscious that the frequency of extreme weather is
increasing, which could impact its business operations.

Going forward, the Group will continue to review the impact
of climate change on its operations and implement mitigation
controls for significant risks to enhance its resilience and
adaptability to climate change.

The Group has considered the potential climate-related risks
and opportunities in respect of the recommendations of the
Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, in which
potential physical risks and transition risks from climate
change may pose adverse financial impacts on the Group'’s
businesses. Acute physical risk can arise from extreme
weather conditions such as flooding and storms and chronic
physical risk can arise from sustained high temperature, while
transition risk may result from the change in environmental-
related regulations or change in customer preferences, and
the potential climate-related risks are summarised as below:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HERERRS @

CLIMATE CHANGE (Continued) fIREME »

Short Medium
(current  (one to Long
Potential Financial Reporting  three (four to
Risk Type Risks Impacts Period) years) ten years) Mitigation Strategies
525 skt R
(3RS (—= ((ES
REREER R BEMBEE HAR) =%) +&)  BREER
Sl e e Extreme weather e Reduced revenue v v Establish adverse
conditions such from business weather condition policy
as flooding and due to business Maintain or expand the
typhoon and supply chain supplier base to avoid
disruptions disruption
Insurance coverage
for fire, flood and
typhoon damages to
merchandise, furniture,
fixtures and fittings
o BIFREIE WK o EBKHEEEHE v v/ HIEBH R AMTEE
KL EER AL RSB AR R
DUk R R
K~ K K e e R
B REEEREH
NRERERR
e Sustained elevated o Increased in v/ Adopt energy
temperature business operating conservation
Costs measures to avoid
overconsumption of
natural resources
o HESR o EFEEMAILM v/ PREREIAE B LA B a8
EHERAER
Transition e Changesin o Higher operating v/ v Adopt energy
Risks environmental- costs to adopt new conservation measures
related regulations practices to reduce emissions
Continue to monitor the
regulatory environment
to ensure that the Group
complied with the
environmental-related
laws and regulations
o IRIBMERERELE o REERERERE v/ v PREREAE R ML D HE
ERA EFH i
FEEREEIREME
RAEEEFIRIEAEM
ERERER
o Shift in consumer e Reduced demand v Adhere to the Group’s
preference for the service, sustainable development
to products decreased concept and take it into
incorporating more competitiveness and consideration when
environmentally- impact on revenues providing services, and
friendly concept commit to producing
high-quality services to
meet the expectations
of consumers and the
market
o HEBEERFEEZS < RESAD -RFE v BFAEEN A FFER

BRARFESHE

(=[]

ATREREH K @S

1=,
v
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRIE- T ERERLRS @

CARING FOR COMMUNITY

Adhering to the belief that “fragrance lingers in the hand that
gives roses”, the Group encourages employees to actively
participate in charitable activities and provide voluntary
services to support the sustainable development of the
community and society.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not organised
any community and charity activities due to the COVID-19
pandemic and public health concerns. The Group will explore
volunteer opportunities and organise relevant activities in the
future.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR-HERESRSE @

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE (IRIB-HHERER/BEIANBTESI
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE BE —MEERBRENSE

A. Environmental Reference
A. IRIE Section(s)
BEEH

Aspect A1: General Disclosure
Emissions —RIRE
EmA1 :
138 Information on:

BRBERKAERBIN BTN - BEREEEENNE

¥

(@)  the policies; and

@ K&

()  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

(b) BFHBTABEAZENEREERIRG e
Protection

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and B

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

W&

Note:  Air emissions includes NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated under national laws
and regulations.
# BERImeRasty matykEtZEREERRGREN SR

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.
BRERBOEZSLK B -StTa  aaRkteY 2Rtk ARt

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.
BEBREMEERRGMATE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HHEREARSE @

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE (IRIB-HHERER/BEIANBTESI
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 1)
GOVERNANCE REPORTING (continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE -BEH —REERARENIER

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Environmental
BRENMIEEA1T | data. Performance
R R BRI R © RIBEM
KPIA1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
RSB MIEIEA1.2 | greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production Environmental
volume, per facility). Performance

B @E) RERMEEZ @E) REREHRE
(gt 8) & (NEAR) BE MUSES B
BERMEHE) °

IR

KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)

RASRAENISIZA13 | and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of Environmental
production volume, per facility). Performance
FREXBEEEEMRE UEE) &k WER) & RIBEW
E WUSESEE [ BEREHE) o

KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)

RASRAEISIZA1.4 | and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of Environmental
production volume, per facility). Performance
FRELREEEMAE UWEE) &k WER & RIBEW
B WUSESBEU BEREE) o

KPIA1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps

R EMIEIRA1S

taken to achieve them.
WA MR E R ERAEELEBEEMm
TRERRY A B o

Effective Use of
Resources
EREBER

KPIA1.6
RREIEIRALS

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

WIEEEERBEBEREMNG L KAMmPTET
IRHEE B R R AETELE B RAMIREN SR

Effective Use of
Resources
EREBER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HERESHRS @

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

(((I%}iﬁ%i%’&%i‘a‘iﬁ%))ﬁ?&?%l

GOVERNANCE REPORTING (continuead)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

IEHR -BEH —REERAREYIEE
Aspect A2: General Disclosure
Use of Resources | —figif & Environmental
JEEA2 : Protection
BERfER Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and BIE R
other raw materials.
BWERER (B1EER  KREMEMR) BB - Energy Saving and
_ o R Reducing Emission
Note: Resourcgs mgy be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings, B AE R HE
electronic equipment, etc.
#F: BRUARLE -HE-EH -BF BTRHEZ%-
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
FEAEMIEIEA2.1 | (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kwh in ‘000s)
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, Environmental
per facility). Performance
RENISMNERRHEEER WE A RIGEN
W) BEE UTETRESE RBE WUSE
EBM BEZME) -
KPIA2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per .
R EWIEIZA2.2 unit of production volume, per facility). E;;';gpﬂg}“g:'
%%KEEZfr (QDM‘QEE DD'T_L EIE flﬂlu‘l' %iz E,A\SZ
%) 5 AR X
KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set .
RASEAEIEIZA2.3 | and steps taken to achieve them. Eﬁ:g;gi:é;i Ui
BT UM RERANEE R RAEDTEE =EEE
B R PRERENAY 2 BR o SR
KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in
RSRAEMIEIZA2.4 | sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Effective Use of
them. Resources
R SKEGE R AOR LRI BRI MR K FrsT iz EHER
NAKNEERRAEIEEERMERNT
BRo
KPIA2.5 Total packaging material used for finished The Group does
BSBEMIEIZA25 | products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with not involve the
reference to per unit produced. use of packaging
A RFTAEEMRNEE CUIEE) & (08 materials due
) BEEBfLE- to the nature of
business
HREBEE &
EETY R EEEM
KI5
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HHEREARSE @

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE (IRIB-HHERER/BEIANBTESI
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 1)
GOVERNANCE REPORTING (continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE BE —MEERBRENSE

Aspect A3: General disclosure Environmental
The Environment = —fRiKE Protection
and Natural R {RE
Resources Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment
[EmA3 : and natural resources. Energy Saving and
RERRAER BEBTAHRBERRXAERERNEAT BN Reducing Emission
ERRE R
Effective Use of
Resources
ERER
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities | Energy Saving and
RASEEMIEIZA3.T | on the environment and natural resources and the | Reducing Emission
actions taken to manage them. BISEREE
HEBEHHRERRABRENEATER
ERNEERRTENTH- Effective Use of
Resources
ERER
Aspect A4: General disclosure
Climate Change | —M&iKE
[BEAL : Climate Change
RIFEME Policies on identification and mitigation of significant impacts on the RIREE
environment and natural resources.
WA R EHIRIER R AE REEEATENBR -
KPI' A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related
RASEAEMIEIZA4A1 | issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to |  Climate Change
manage them. RizE1E
RIEKRUEEHETAELERENERR
BEEMEE RERNERERTZENTHC
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR-HERESRSE @

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE (IRIB-HHERER/BEIANBTESI
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND (&
GOVERNANCE REPORTING (continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR BE —REERARERIER

B. Social Reference
B. #1& Section(s)
BEEMH
Employment and Labour Practices
EBEREILER
Aspect B1: General Disclosure
Employment —REE
[BmEB1 :
&% Information on:
BRFM R EE - BREEREA TERE-BRB FERS It K
FRUAREMFBRENT
g; Eg%ﬁf?'ges’ i Employment
Management
=
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a EFESE
significant impact on the issuer
b)) BFHETABEARZEZNEMEERSAM
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
&k o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type
RASEAEIEIZB1.1 | (for example, full- or part-time), age group and Employment
geographical region. Management
B BEEE WEBEER - FRAENK RREERE
& B DN EERE -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment
RASEAENISIZB1.2 | geographical region. Management
B4R FRER Rt EE DR EERALL R BESE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HHEREARSE @

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE (IRIB-HHERER/BEIANBTESI
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 1)
GOVERNANCE REPORTING (continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR BE —REERARERIER

Aspect B2: General disclosure
Health and —RIEE
Safety
[BmEB2 : Information on:
BEREZ2 BREMZ2 TERERRERESBEHETTEMN
- Health and Safety
(@)  the policies; and g
@ KE;R LE B
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a Emglon%g;\are
significant impact on the issuer = =
b)) BFHETABEAZEZNEBEERSAM
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
&R o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities
= 5k +E AE i i i
RASRAEIS1ZB2.1 | occurred in each of the past three years including Health and Safety
the reporting year. BEEZS
BE-FBEREFESFRAITHRNAZ R a
b0
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
RRENIEER22 | RAIGIBATER#C REAZSE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety
= il H
AN IEER2.3 ;%aﬁggﬁ}stoars(;)pted, how they are implemented Health and Safety
o - o o BHRe
ERRANEE REER DA WA | RN
TRERR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR-HERESRSE @

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE (IRIB-HHERER/BEIANBTESI
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 1)
GOVERNANCE REPORTING (continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE - —RIRERMRAERER

Aspect B3: General disclosure
Development —RIEE
and Training
EBEB3 : Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for discharging Training and
BRREN duties at work. Description of training activities. Development
BERRAREET TEBE N KX SERBUR o B3 /EB 00t o 2| g 2 R
Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid
by the employer.
i BEREED UeEHEENENRIMDERR
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender
FASEEMIEIER3.1 | and employee category (e.g. senior management, Training and
middle management). Development
RUNKREEER WSKhEERE PREEL) e[l ge
ZPMZIEET DL
KPI'B3.2 The average training hours completed per Training and
RSB MIEIER3.2 | employee by gender and employee category. e st
RUNKREEERNE D BREETAZIINTE for) | 25 2
biSE nE
Aspect B4: General disclosure
Labour — R E
Standards
[BEB4 : Information on:
BT #R| BREBILEET RS TH

(@  the policies; and

@ BX;k

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

b) BFHETABEAXZENEMEERAM

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

Lawful Labour
BEET

G

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment

RASEAEIEIZBA.1 | practices to avoid child and forced labour. Lawful Labour
M B E AN LR R E T Rt % BEEL
To

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such

BASRMEMIEIZBA.2 | practices when discovered. Lawful Labour
MR RERBREHRA BB R R BESET
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HHEREARSE @

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE (IRIB-HHERER/BEIANBTESI
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND 1)
GOVERNANCE REPORTING (continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE BE —MEERBRENSE

Operating Practices
SEE
Aspect B5: General disclosure
supply Chain —RIRE Supplier
Management Management
[BEBS5 : Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain HEmSE
HEEEE BIEHEENIRIE R BRBUR
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supplier
FRENIEIERS. | BB DHHEEHE - Management
HEmEE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging
RASEAEANIEIZB5.2 | suppliers, number of suppliers where the supplier
practices are being implemented, how they are
: . Management
implemented and monitored. HpEE BB
M ERERMEENESN mERTERIER AIREE
MEEESE  UREERTRERS Zo
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
RASEAEISIZBR5.3 | environmental and social risks along the supply supplier
chain, and how they are implemented and
. Management
monitored. (RS BT
WA ERHAANERESERANRERTER RIS
BRRVIER U BRI TREE G A
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote
RSRAEIEIZR5.4 | environmentally preferable products and services .
) . Supplier
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
. ; Management
implemented and monitored. (S BT
MR REMEENREES BRFRE R KR AR
BVIBH) URAERERITRERF L
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR-HERESRSE @

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE (RIFE-HERER/REBS)IABTESI
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND &)

GOVERNANCE REPORTING (continuead)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR EE - —RIRERMRAERER

Aspect Bé: General disclosure
Product —RIEE
Responsibility
[BEB6 : Information on:
EmEE BERFMREERNRBNRERAZE \ BEE ERAMEEEURBEIH
Yabz: 0l
(@)  the policies; and Product
@ BE;k Responsibility
EmEE
() compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
b)) BFHETABEAZEZNEBMEERSAM
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
&R o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped Product
RSB MIEIEB6.1 | subject to recalls for safety and health reasons. Responsibilty
BENCEZERBYUTRLZ2ERBIEHM EDEE
AR B DL =
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service -related Product
RASEEMIEIZR6.2 | complaints received and how they are dealt with. Responsibility
BRREENRERMRFENEFEEURER S %o EmaT
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Product
RASEAEMIEITB6.3 | protecting intellectual property rights. Responsibility
Fa ot SR A 58 Ko (RPE R 8 EE RE B RARVIE B Emat
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and Product
RSEAEMIEITB6.4 | recall procedures. Responsibility
HhEERTREREREINER- EmEF
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and
RSRAEMIEIZR6.5 | privacy policies, how they are implemented and Product
monitored. Responsibility
it H B EBRHRE RABECR > U RABRHIT EmET
RERF o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE-HHEREARSE @

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND )
GOVERNANCE REPORTING (continuead)

(RIF-HEREBSHRSIAETHRS

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR BE —REERARERIER

Aspect B7:
Anti-corruption
[EEB7 :

R&B

General disclosure
—fRIME

Information on:

BRALLHRE PR HEFRnREN

(@)  the policies; and

@ R &

() compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
b BIHETABEARZEZNEMERRRG

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BEH -

Professional Ethics
e ERE

KPIB7.1
AR A5 1RB7 1

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
REBRSHERNEETASIHEERLELEESE
NESRARHNEE RafhER o

Professional Ethics
MxaEeE

KPIB7.2
AR AR 15137 .2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented
and monitored.

HiPhEIE R B REF > URBEEARITRER
Fiike

Professional Ethics
(eSS R

KPIB7.3
AR AR 1512B7.3

Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.
HimEERE TRENKRESEC

Professional Ethics
ESELE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR-HERESRSE @

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE (IRIB-HHERER/BEIANBTESI
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND #)
GOVERNANCE REPORTING (continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR BE —REERARERIER

Community
HE
Aspect B8: General disclosure
community —RIRE
Investment Caring for
J2TEBS : Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Community
HERE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take MBS
into consideration the communities” interests.
B2 ARERETACEMTHESENRFREXREHE
ERMAEMAIEEK-
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
RASEAENIEIZBRS.1 | environmental concerns, labour needs, health, Caring for
culture, sport). community
EIEHEE WEE REEE S IER R BEHE
B X 88A) °
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the Caring for
RERAEMISEB8.2 | focus area. community
EEIHEMBAER SRR o BEHE
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HLM CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Rooms 1501-8, 15th Floor, Tai Yau Building,

181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
AT L 2OE 1819 KA K 154150185
Tel TE#H: (852) 3103 6980

Fax {2 (852) 3104 0170

E-mail 7& % : info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the "Group”) set out on pages 151 to 310, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matters described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In
all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

NAREEZERARABRRE
REEHEZMATLZHFIRAE)

EEREZEEZHNEIS1EEEI0EZ
ABEEEZERBRAT (TEAR) KEHK
BAE (REaEEE) ZEaHMBRE
HEER B =F B=1+THZ&EEM
BRAEMBEZHLEFEZFSEEK
Hth2EWmR GaEnEeRKES
REMBR URGEMBHRERWE 8
ERETERBR

EETYH SEEZROMBRERERE
RomARARENERT R ZEH —HIFT
MEBEZEBM ESAEECTENEE
ZEBHERRE UREHZEFREMBRE
BREFARRZEMR -NAMBARMAE &
ERREEUBERREEBREBLRTFG
ZIRBREL DAmB o
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As described in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group reported a loss attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$506,497,000 and operating cash outflow of
approximately HK$75,969,000 for the financial year
ended 30 June 2023 and, as of that date, the Group's
cash and bank balances amounted to approximately
HK$2,400,000, among which an amount of
approximately HK$57,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB53,000) was frozen by the bank due to litigation,
while the Group recorded outstanding principal
amount of borrowings of approximately HK$3,235,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB3,000,000) and
principal amount of corporate bond of HK$36,000,000
which are due for repayment within the next twelve
months.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had net assets of
approximately HK$125,000,000 and net current
assets of approximately HK$124,784,000, where
the net assets and net current assets position
were mainly comprised of factoring receivables,
finance lease receivables and trade receivables,
which carrying amounts were approximately
HK$168,313,000, HK$2,225,000 and HK$4,975,000
respectively. As described in the paragraphs under the
subsection headed “RECOVERABILITY OF FACTORING
RECEIVABLES, FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES AND
TRADE RECEIVABLES” below, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to assess the
recoverability of these balances as at 30 June 2023.
These conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have carried out a
detailed review of the cash flow forecast of the Group
for the next twelve months from the date of this
report and have undertaken to carry out a number of
measures to improve the Group's liquidity and financial
position which are set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AR S BRARMEIFM &
EERBE_ET_=F,B=+H
B FEERES S/EEARE
1EE54849506,497,0003 T R 48 & 1]
R 475,969,000 T B E %
H> E2£EZRSKIBITERGAY
2,400,000/ 7t > A A FrsA# iR 1T 3R
452 £ E84957,00058 T (FBE A A
E#53,0007t) '™ BEBEHFEREX
K+—EBANFNREEZREERBN
A5 R8493,235,00058 7T FBERH A
E2 #£3,000,00070) KA BE 2 & 28
36,000,0005% 7T

WZE_=%"B=+H> E&E
Z B EFREA7125,000,00058 7T K AR
& E B EEAA124,784,0005 7T 0 H
PEEFEMTBEEFERLEE
HREERSRIE SRS R RIS
B 5 EWEIEAR > HEEmED Y
#97%3168,313,0007 7T ~ 2,225,0007 7T
K24,975,00078 7T © s 20 T X MRIZFEUR
B - RERERKBFIENRE SR
MIEZ oW e R ERFIE BE
REERSEHBEE 2B/ RE  LGT
EREEGRN _ S _=ZF/,A=1+H
ZHREM ZERRKAFEEK
AHHRARZE  OJEH SEERFER
EZRE B E AR -

BEAREEEYN SHEEEBEXARSH
ISt R R+ —ER 2R RETRA
EITHRER B AERNLIERE
faelE SEEZABES RYHIK
(BN E M BERRMEES) ©
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The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis on the assumption
that the carrying amounts of these receivables will be
recovered in the coming twelve months, the validity
of which depends on the outcome of the following
measures, which are subject to multiple uncertainties,
including (i) the successful recovery of overdue
receivables; (i) the Group can obtain additional sources
of financing as and when needed; and (iii) the Group
can successfully improve its operation to generate
sufficient operating cash inflow. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments
that would result from the failure to recover the overdue
receivables and the failure to obtain additional sources
of financing to improve its financial positions, to provide
liquidity and cash flows.

We consider that the going concern basis of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements has been
adequately disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements, and we also consider that the material
uncertainty relating to the Group’s going concern
has been adequately disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements. However, in view of the extent of
the multiple uncertainties relating to the recovery of
the overdue receivables, the maintaining of sufficient
operation to generate operating cash inflow and the
obtaining of additional sources of financing, we disclaim
our opinion in respect of the material uncertainty
relating to the going concern basis.

ROV BREDREBEEEER
B WRRZFBWRIEZ RE ER
PR+ AR AR > A M IEE
RICUATHEZER > RRINZER
BRRRA 2 - BLHE () AR 0 Ui (=] 780 B 7 UL
A (i) EEEEREERERE
SNRRE R 5 Ke(ii) SEEEMINE
EHEEUELRHCEREMA -
mEMBRERLASERREWCE
HAE WURRIE K R BE B 1R BRIPRE B 2R
UREAMB R BRERBES R
REREMERZEMHEE-

EERR UG EMBRRZFTE
REREENFEVBREPREDE
B BEETRA B SEERFELE
BERAZEATHBREER GRS
WARPITDWEE - 2R BB B (o]
BHRWRIE R T EEBEUESL
RERERAREREINRERRE
A2 BEIRABEENEE  EFF
MERBEERERRZEXRTHRN
HREFEXRER-
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The factoring receivables, finance lease receivables
and trade receivables amounted to approximately
HK$168,313,000, HK$2,225,000 and HK$4,975,000
respectively, net of impairment allowances of
approximately HK$337,894,000, HK$16,113,000 and
HK$29,959,000, respectively as at 30 June 2023,
among which impairment losses of approximately
HK$327,344,000, HK$13,452,000 and HK$17,600,000,
respectively, were charged to profit or loss for the year
ended 30 June 2023.

During the year ended 30 June 2023 and up to the date
of this report, all of the factoring receivables, finance
lease receivables and most of the trade receivables
outstanding amounts were past due. The management
is still in the progress of taking various actions against
these debtors respectively. No result from those
actions taken is available for justifying the extent of the
recoverability of these receivables.

In view of the lack of the information in relation to (1)
the financial status of the factoring receivables, finance
lease receivables and trade receivables debtors, and the
measurement of related collateral values on assessing
their ability to recover the past due balance, and (2)
the enforcement actions taken by the management
against the relevant debtors, their related collaterals
and guarantors, the management considered that there
iS uncertainty on recovering the aforesaid balances.
We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to assess the recoverability of the factoring
receivables, finance lease receivables and trade
receivables as at 30 June 2023. Therefore, we were
unable to determine whether any adjustments to the
impairment loss recognised during the year ended
30 June 2023 in respect of the factoring receivables,
finance lease receivables and trade receivables were
necessary, which might have a significant impact on
the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2023, and
its financial performance and the elements making up
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 30 June 2023 and related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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During the course of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023,
it came to our attention that three bank receipts
in aggregate of approximately RMB17,660,000
("Receipts”) paid by independent third parties
(“Third Parties”) had been recorded as settlements
of the principal and interest of factoring receivables
(“Settlements”) which were not substantiated with
sufficient supporting evidence.

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence and explanation to satisfy ourselves as to the
validity of the Receipts and Settlements and the basis
of determining the presentation of these balances
and related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Therefore, we were unable to satisfy
ourselves that the Receipts and Settlements were
properly accounted for and disclosed or determine
whether any adjustments to the impairment loss
recognised during the year ended 30 June 2023 in
respect of the factoring receivables were necessary,
which might have a significant impact on the Group's
financial position as at 30 June 2023, and its financial
performance and the elements making up the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 30 June 2023 and related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continueq)

BILZE TR S @

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to
issue an auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of
our report, it is not possible to form an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continueq)

BIZHENERE @

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ho Pak Tat

Practising Certificate Number: P05215
Hong Kong

29 September 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2023 BE_E_=F,\A=+tHILEFE

CONTINUING OPERATIONS FEREER
Revenue I & 7

Contract with customers BEEEH 9,918 56,832

Interest under effective BEREMEZETHE

interest method 31,301 55,329

Total revenue BN 41,219 112,161
Cost of sales THE A (5,628) (33,227)
Gross profit EH 35,591 78,934
Other income HA A 8 953 2,893
Other gains and losses Htham 18 9 (3,573) (7,772)
Impairment loss on goodwill e R E R 1R 20 (129,032) (111,418)
Impairment loss on EREEEREBERE

right-of-use assets 18 (970) -
Impairment loss on B EEREBERE

intangible assets 19 (730) =
Impairment losses under FEfEERE ((FAfEE

expected credit loss (“ECL") 518 BRIET 2

model, net of reversal BEESIE (FR#E[E]) 10 (359,493) (45,632)
Selling expenses HEMZ (5,156) (8,895)
Administrative expenses THREX (23,681) (23,683)
Operating loss from REFERSEEREZ

continuing operations KEEsE (486,091) (115,573)
Finance costs B IS RS 17 (4,009) (4,831)
Loss before tax from REFBEREEEZ

continuing operations PRIRAIESIE 9 (490,100) (120,404)
Taxation I8 12 (16,009) 50
Loss for the year from REFBREEEZ

continuing operations FERSE (506,109) (120,354)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION B4R IF&&E T 13
Loss for the year from a FEOKRIERESER EE

discontinued operation 518 (388) (2,513)
Loss for the year FERE (506,497) (122,867)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (contined
GeETREMERRER @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EE—Z-_=FXA=+THILFE

Other comprehensive income/ EFEHMZ2EmUE~ (Ix)

(expenses) for the year
Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or [0Ss:
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign

B REBEFHDIEE

EmZEE

WEBNERELEZ
(ERZE%E

operations (28,023) (14,305)
Release of exchange reserve NG EYANEIES
upon deregistration of FRBREE e
subsidiaries - 173
Other comprehensive FEHMZEMAX
expenses for the year (28,023) (14,132)
Total comprehensive FEZEMAZHELE
expenses for the year (534,520) (136,999)
Loss per share: FRREE 16
From continuing operations REBIFEKESEHFER
and a discontinued BARIEREER
operation:
Basic (HK cents) B GEL) (26.06) (6.62)
Diluted (HK cents) w38 CEL) (26.06) (6.62)
From continuing operations REFEEEET
Basic (HK cents) BR GBIl (26.04) (6.48)
Diluted (HK cents) 8 CEL) (26.04) (6.48)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMIMIGEB AL F4R &M TR 2 AH AL EB

consolidated financial statements. o
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EEMBIKRR

At30June 2023 MN-E-=F,H=+H

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB Rk 17 195 327
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 - 2,133
Intangible assets mEEE 19 - 1,035
Goodwill 5k 20 - 129,032
Deposits BE 28 - 442
Deferred tax assets EICRIEE = 23 21 11,149

216 144,118

Current assets MENEE
Inventories 78 - 1,995
Trade receivables B 5 EWIE 24 4,975 28,399
Factoring receivables RIBE W IE 25 168,313 422,145
Lease receivables HEREWRIE 26 2,225 16,136
Loan receivables EWE R 27 431 12,174
Prepayments, deposits and FANRE-EE&

other receivables Hh W EIE 28 3,449 3,441
Financial assets at fair value BAFEEAEGR

through profit or loss (M ATEAEE)

("FVTPL") ZEMEE 29 - 1,147
Income tax receivables FEW PR 1,112 2,270
Cash and bank balances BERIBITERR 30 2,400 71,758

182,905 559,465
current liabilities mEAaRE

Trade payables B 2RI 31 2,573 3,420
Contract liabilities BHEE 32 895 1,548
Accruals and other payables FEStE AR HMBENRIE 34 8,356 7,386
Lease liabilities HEEE 33 1,155 1,260
Borrowing s 35 3,235 -
Corporate bonds NEES 36 40,671 40,507
Income tax payables FEBI PRSI 1,236 2,389
58,121 56,510
Net current assets BB EFE 124,784 502,955

Total assets less current WEERTEEE
liabilities 125,000 647,073
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continuea)
EEMBIRAR @

At30June 2023 MN-E-_=F,H=+H

Non-current liability JEREERE

Lease liabilities HEaE 33 - 1,155
Net assets BERHE 125,000 645,918
Capital and reserve BARRKHEE

Share capital (RN 37 4,108 3,712

Reserves i 120,892 642,206
Total equity RS 125,000 645,918

The consolidated financial statements on pages 151 to 310 HF151EHEFI0B 2GS M ERFTAES
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of R _ZE_=FHAB -+ B EREE
Directors on 29 September 2023 and are signed on its behalf T2 WHRIUTEERAEE :

by:

Deng Zhonglin wong Yuk Lun Alan
BB % BEEB
Director Director

EF EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  B& M i sE1E Bl 5% 5 45 & BA F5 3R 2k 2 40 AR 26
consolidated financial statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
rEESDEER

For the year ended 30 June 2023 #ZE_

=——

=——

FRAZTHIEEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRE NEL
(Accumulated
Share losses)/
Share Share option Statutory Exchange retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
(RatE8)
A i3 EE TR T ERGHE RERF L 3
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FEx FHT TR TR TER TER TR
(note(a))
(MizHa)
At 1 July 2021 RIZ_—-FtA-R 3712 506,123 21,145 2,157 12,297 218,483 782917
Loss for the year FEFR = = = = = (122,867) (122,867)
Other comprehensive (expense)/  EHt2E @) /WA
income:
Exchange differences arising on HEBNEBREEN
translation of foreign operations ERES - - - - (14,305) - (14,305)
Release of exchange reserve upon  FAEESSINE /A BB ER IR
deregistration of subsidiaries ERE = = - - 173 - 173
Total other comprehensive expense  EE 2RS4
for the year - - - - (14132 (122,867) (136,999)
Transfer to statutory reserve BEELTRE - - - 193 - (193) -
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RIBZZEAAZTER
-t of =R} 3712 506,123 21,145 21,350 (1,835) 95423 645,918
Loss for the year FERE = = = = = (506,497) (506,497)
Other comprehensive expenses: Hit2mEmES
Exchange differences arising on BREFHEBRELD
translation of foreign operations ERER = = = = (28,023) - (28,023)
Total other comprehensive expense  EEE M2 ERIAEE
for the year - = - = (28,023) (506,497) (534,520)
Placing of shares EERH 396 13,206 - - - - 13.602
Share option lapsed during the year  ERE & MBERHE = = (11,617) - - 11,617 -
At 30 June 2023 RIZZ=FxA=1H 4,108 519,329 9,528 21,350 (29,858) (399,457) 125,000
Note: et -
(@)  Exchange reserve (@) ERfE#E

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of operations that have
functional currency other than Hong Kong dollars which are dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
\\TDEEE/IILE‘%E

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES KESEH)
Loss before taxation BRIG ARS8
From continuing operations REFFELEER (490,100) (120,404)
From a discontinued operation KECRIEREER 13 (371) (1,242)
Adjustments for: MU TIEEELAE !
Depreciation of property, ME- -BBERZBINE
plant and equipment 17 123 1,487
Depreciation of FTREEEINE
right-of-use assets 18 1,163 1,330
Amortisation of m S E
intangible assets 79 265 1,153
Write-off of property, WIS 2 ~ MR B e R
plant and equipment 9 51 20
Net exchange gains PE SO UK 75 0% B8 9 (506) (2,132)
Net loss on financial assets ?E’Aﬁﬁ FFABTmZ
at FVTPL ETMEEZBEFRE 9 830 803
Dividend income 2R A 8 (17) (10)
Interest income FEWA (7) (64)
Finance costs VB TD N 11 4,009 4,831
Loss on deregistration of STHHM A B 2 K518
subsidiaries 9 - 173
Gain on early redemption of REEBLRAESZ
corporate bonds W 9 - (381)
Loss on non-substantial REMEHIIEERETTZ
modification of 518
corporate bond 9 3,198 4,700
Loss on non-substantial RIEBEMIFEREITTZ
modification of 518
factoring loans 9 - 4,625
Impairment loss on goodwill RN SE 20 129,032 111,418
Impairment loss on FREESERERE
right-of-use assets 18 970 -
Impairment loss on B BEERERE
intangible assets 79 730 -
Impairment losses under ECL FEHEEBRBEEAETZ
model, net of reversal BEEE (ORRERE) 10 359,493 45,632
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

FEHERER @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

Operating cash flows before EEESEHR v KERE
movement in working capital mE 8,863 51,939
Decrease in inventories EERD 1,919 1,951
Increase in a restricted R HIIRITASERIE AN
bank balance (57) =
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 WA R 4,516 5,108
Increase in factoring receivables R ¥EFE U R IEi‘DI] (97,186) (111,519)
(Increase)/decrease in lease fAERWRIE GG R
receivables (258) 59,478
Decrease in loan receivables FEWE R 10,646 9,365
Decrease in prepayments, FENRIE-EER
deposits and other receivables H fih fE W IE R D 266 49,407
Decrease in trade payables B SN RIER LD (601) (5,123)
Decrease in contract liabilities aHnadERL (554) (2,845)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals — FEEt B B HfhfE(T=RIE
and other payables 1@, Gl 2,931 (5,610)
Cash (used in)/generated K& Frm) EEZRe
from operations (69,515) 52,151
Tax paid B IR IE (6,482) (14,475)
Tax refund R [EIFRIE 28 1,250
Net cash (used in)/generated #&&:E8) (FrE) E4X2
from operating activities REFEE (75,969) 38,926
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETH
Dividend received B S 8 17 10
Interest received BUWH S 7 64
Purchase of property, BEYE WMENRE
plant and equipment 17 (59) (71)
Proceeds from disposal of HERESB Lm 2R
equity securities listed E55 2 FTSAIE
in Hong Kong 29 317 -
Net cash generated from KREZHELEZHREFEE
investing activities 282 3
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEH 39
Capital element of ENHEEREZEARI D
lease rentals paid (1,312
Interest element of ENHEEREZFEH D
lease rentals paid (306)
Interest paid BFE (6,102)
Proceeds from a borrowing B PTSAIE =
Proceeds from Issue of BB EEBEETRGD
shares by placing, net Fri8IE  H1BREETT
of issuing expenses (53 -
Redemption of corporate bonds  EE[RIAREZS (29,000)
Repayment of handling fee BEFEE -
Net cash generated REEEBEE FrA) Z
from/(used in) REF8
financing activities (36,720)

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE R KRS%EEA (B

IN CASH AND CASH JEINEEE

EQUIVALENTS 2,209
Cash and cash equivalents FYZ2RERIREEEER

at the beginning of the year 69,059
Effect on foreign currency SN PEREE) o o B

exchange rate changes 490

Cash and cash equivalents FRZAERINEEHEIEE
at the end of the year 30 71,758

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES R RRES%EHIEHZ

OF CASH AND CASH EEROWR

EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances REMIBITHER 30 71,758
Less: restricted bank balance B ZIRFIRITARER 30 -

Cash and cash equivalents FRZAERINEEEIEE
at the end of the year 71,758

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  B& Mt M sE48 Bl 5% 55 4 & BA F5 3R 3% 2 4B AR =6
consolidated financial statements. o
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The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and is
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong is Room 2102, 21/F, Tower One, Lippo Centre, 89
Queensway, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are (i) organisation
and sponsorship of exhibitions and events
("Exhibitions and events”); (i) operation of cultural
and entertainment comprehensive services platform
(“Cultural and entertainment”) and (iii) provision
of loan and financing services (“Financing”). During
the year, operation in the Exhibitions and events
business segment has been ceased and classified
as a discontinued operation. Further details of the
discontinued operation and the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in Notes 13 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. In addition, the functional
currencies of certain group entities that operate outside
Hong Kong are determined based on the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the group
entities operate. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand, unless otherwise stated.

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

160

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2022 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendment to AG 5 Accounting Guideline 5 Merger
Accounting for Common
Control Combinations (Revised)
Reference to the Conception
Framework

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSS

2018-2020

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSS

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

2.

REFE AEERGRREGHMH
BRF EBREAETABGAMLE
(TERGFEMAE)) FREMLEZ
T THFTA-ARZERABNEE
M SREEM 2 T BB HREE
AIZfE5T :
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(&3] BT EHIEHE
% (B1E3])
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ZE R B35
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BRGHER X BEARE-H
1658 (BF]) ERRAIBPSNEA
BRGHER AEAN-BITEOH
375 (BT B
BEEMBRE 2 )\FE"Z”EZ
#8 (f&57) FRAZEBYHR
SEAFERE

REFEBRBEBMBREERZE
SIHAERERTFERBEFEZM
B REE R, RZE GOV HR
KFTHZ MBI EEARTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. | 1
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 7 B 5 R
STANDARDS ("HKFRSS") (continued)

AEBE L ERAEAUTEEMER
REMNT RGBT EBYHZRE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

2RI

Amendments to HKAS  Disclosure of Accounting ERALHERE1HE LETBEREE
1 and HKFRS Practice  Policies’ REBMBRE
Statement 2 EREHRS
58258 (185])
Amendments to Definition of Accounting BEBERFESR FEHENEER'
HKAS 8 Estimates’ CE)
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets BEGERFE12 BRE—XZME
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a (B:D) FBEREEN
Single Transaction’ EERIE
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and ERMBREEN RREORERE
related Amendments’ E17% HL
Amendments to Initial Application of HKFRS 17 ERMBREEN VREREEME
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 — Comparative 1798 (1BF]) REEFE7R
Information’ REBVERS
R 9% — L&
B
Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with BEBERFER MHZNZIERS
HKAS 1 Covenants? (CH) A’
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as BARAGHELFE REIIERPAE
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current? Gl iR
HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial ERERRBESR BHRERZ 25—
(2020) Statements — Classification (ZBEZETH) ERAHBRE
by the Borrower of a EREERRERZ
Term Loan that Contains TEHERZ 08
a Repayment on Demand
Clause?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance EHGHERE7YE (HERE TR
and HKFRS 7 Arrangement? EEBMERE
#ERIET75R (1B3])
Amendments to HKFRS  Lease liability in a Sale and FEPFREEN SEHEOBEZHES
16 Leaseback? E165% (1B3]) &
Amendments to HKFRS  Sale or Contribution of Assets BHEPRREEN BEHAEBEN
10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FIOEERSEEH TREEYEY
Associate or Joint Venture® ERIE283E (1BF]) MHENRES
§3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

162

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue
but not yet effective (continuea)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) anticipate
that the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
IFEMRHRERMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FAMGHRRENEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEEHEE =
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell RFEIETHZ2EEZHEIFERE
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly TZERRZGPHE—BEEMK
transaction between market participants at the BNgER—BEEMZ N 2E8S &
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is R EREEHEREMERRAS—
directly observable or estimated using another valuation HERNELZ G5t -EHEERE
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a B2 AFEEHGR AEBEE
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics EhiZ2HETtEHAZEET A
of the asset or liability if market participants would BETETEREETR2EERER
take those characteristics into account when pricing 2B EREREVERERPIT2
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair /BB ANFEHEEILLER L&
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in T BB B EERFE25URS
these consolidated financial statements is determined ABER T (rﬁiﬁﬂ#ﬁiﬁt':ﬁﬂ']%
on such a basis, except for share-based payment 25%)) MEIR UMD AER IR
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share- R RIBEDAMBREEANF 165
based Payment ("HKFRS 2"), leasing transactions that HE ((ERMBEREENFE165) A
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases ReHERG UREAFEEESR
("HKFRS 16"), and measurements that have some FHERUEBLEIIEFAFEZGE WE
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as BEFERF2REE2EIRFE
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value-in- HEBEFEAFFEEREZRH
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets. FBEE) BRiho

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes FEMBEZ AFESEFRTHES
into account a market participant’s ability to generate BEFBEREEs R MRER
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and BORERREEHETFS —2RFE
best use or by selling it to another market participant AZBEEZEeRRERRZMES
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. SEMBES EELKER R ZEE

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair MEATERZNEMTAERNRER
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initial recognition the results of the valuation technique RENRZERE o

equals the transaction price.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The Group reported a loss attributable to the owners
of the Company of approximately HK$506,497,000 and
operating cash outflow of approximately HK$75,969,000
for the financial year ended 30 June 2023 and, as of that
date, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted
to approximately HK$2,400,000, among which an
amount of approximately HK$57,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB53,000) was frozen by the bank
due to litigation, while the Group recorded outstanding
principal amount of borrowing of approximately
HK$3,235,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,000,000) and principal amount of corporate
bond of HK$36,000,000 which are due for repayment
within the next twelve months. Although the Group
had net assets of approximately HK$125,000,000 and
net current assets of approximately HK$124,784,000,
the net assets and net current assets position were
mainly comprised of factoring receivables, finance
lease receivables and trade receivables as at 30 June
2023, which carrying amount were approximately
HK$168,313,000, HK$2,225,000 and HK$4,975,000
respectively.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2023 and up to the date
of this report, no result is available from the actions
taken by the Directors, including but not limited to legal
actions, against the factoring receivables, finance lease
receivables and trade receivables which were past due.
These conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

In view of such circumstances, the Directors have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources
of financing in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. Certain measures have been taken to relieve
the liquidity pressure and to improve its financial
position which include, but are not limited to, the
following:

1) The Directors are closely monitoring the progress
of the recovery actions, including but not limited to
legal actions, against the respective debtors;

2) The Directors have been actively looking for
additional sources of financing; and

3) The Directors will implement appropriate cost-
leadership measures to cope with all operational
COSts.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taking into account the Group's cash flow forecast for
the twelve months from the date of this annual report
prepared by management, and assuming the success
of the above measures, the Directors are of the opinion
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue its business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
in the financial statements to write down the values of
the assets to their recoverable amounts and to provide
for any further liabilities which might arise. The effect
of such adjustments has not yet been reflected in the
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group's and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9“) or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
a joint venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZAMPTERRENEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SETTHE =
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Optional concentration test Al B E A

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.

The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets
is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce
with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience
to perform the related processes or they significantly
contribute to the ability to continue producing outputs
and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the
ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or 10ss as
incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 July 2022, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 issued in June
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) except for
transactions and events within the scope of HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21, in which the Group applies HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination. Contingent assets are not recognised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes (‘HKAS
12") and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date;

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments
(as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases
were new leases at the acquisition date, except
for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b)
the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted
to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If, after reassessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liguidation are initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arises from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or 10ss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9
would be accounted for on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had disposed directly of the
previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period
(see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGUs") (or groups of CGUS) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUSs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUS)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of CGUS).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU
within the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes
of an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a
group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed of
is measured on the basis of the relative values of the
operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of
the CGU (or the group of CGUSs) retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purpose are stated in
the consolidated statements of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Computer equipment 10% — 33%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% — 50%
Motor vehicles 20%

The residual values, estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

176

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives.
Trademarks and brands 37 - 116 months

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, is recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease component,
and instead accounts for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term is depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate;

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees,

o the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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180

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

e the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount
rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group applied the practical expedient, the Group
accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
IFEMRHRERMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Sale and leaseback transactions
The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15
to assess whether sale and leaseback transaction
constitutes a sale by the Group.

The Group as a buyer-lessor

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the
requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale
of asset, the Group as a buyer-lessor does not recognise
the transferred asset and recognises a finance lease
receivable equal to the transfer proceeds within the
scope of HKFRS 9.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which the asset belongs. In addition, the Group
assesses whether there is indication that corporate
assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUS,
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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182

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-
in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUS,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
CGU, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGU.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment 10ss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value-in-use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGU. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or l0ss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGU)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGU) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financials
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
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from Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs that
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of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
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the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
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184

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. The financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e  The contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI"):

e The financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e  The contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations (“"HKFRS 3") applies.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

o It has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o On initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o It is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

()  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the “net
(loss)/gain on financial assets at FVTPL" line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets (including trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, factoring receivables,
lease receivables, loan receivables and cash and
cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experiences, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables under simplified approach. The ECL on
these receivables are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, including factoring
receivables, loan receivables, lease receivables, other
receivable, deposits and cash and cash equivalents,
the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

mMNEER

(2

3_"‘
5
)HE%H

THEE (@

THEERE (&)
MAFBEEMER TR (8FRERWK
IR B E R HE R WGRRIE S
BWHRE - BEURRERREEE
BE) ME > AEBREN12E 8 AN
FEEBEFEBREER RIFEER
BBV Y R LURE HIREE R
ﬁ\u/<|ﬁ/R—F AEERDBEHEAERE
EFRB -t SRESERERE
BEERNLREEV D HERBURELERE
HIBYRT BENE SR BR R IR IE AN EFT o

() {EERBRBREEM
REHE B ERBLUREE R R
EOBEEZRMNE AEBE LR
TR TANRS BREEENN
Rz zERm T AR PP R
HASE BB E R o OETTRAET
LR AEEgERSEERE
BHNEEREMEER  2EER
Tﬁﬂjxu\d\gﬁ’\]/ﬁﬂiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬂ%
SRBTERKRARIEER

LHE HHEEEERRESRA
ERNEEERUTERM !

TR T AAYSNEE (WEA)
HAEEEFRAERL
TREARRE R ;

s FEEERRHINETHHIER
REBL AINEERER
BHEANEEENIZHE
BAMBIEA0 5

s FWEtEEMEBABRGRE
NAIE FREBI R TS5
ERRNBEAEHTABRT
FME1E ;

02/2FER « BREBERERAR 15/



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

4=AH
177 N =

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

188

B TS ER R MIEE @

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 180 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 240 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
iS more appropriate.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower,

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default (“PD"), loss given default
("LGD") (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is
a default) and the exposure at default (‘'EAD").
The assessment of the PD and LGD is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such
as forward-looking macroeconomic information.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables, lease receivables,
factoring receivables and loan receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through an impairment allowance account.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Modification of financial assets

Where the original contractual terms of a financial
asset have been modified for credit reasons and the
instrument has not been derecognised (an instrument is
derecognised when a modification results in a change in
cash flows that the Group would consider substantial),
the resulting modification loss is recognised in profit or
loss with a corresponding decrease in the gross carrying
value of the asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Modification of financial assets (Continued)

Expected credit loss for modified financial assets that
have not been derecognised and are not considered
to be credit-impaired will be recognised on a 12-month
basis, or a lifetime basis, if there is a significant increase
in credit risk. These assets are assessed to determine
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk subsequent to the modification. In addition to the
recognition of modification gains and losses, the revised
carrying value of modified financial assets will impact
the calculation of expected credit losses, with any
increase or decrease in expected credit loss recognised.

Non-substantial modification of financial assets

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial assets will be calculated at the
present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial assets’ original effective
interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial assets and are amortised over the remaining
term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial asset is recognised in profit or loss at the date
of modification.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by a group entity are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as FVTPL when the
financial liabilities is contingent consideration that
may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

For financial liabilities that are designated as at
FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that
are recognised in other comprehensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, instead, they
are transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition
of the financial liability.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables,
accruals and other payables, borrowing, corporate
bonds and lease liabilities) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or 10ss.
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196

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Modification of financial liabilities

The Group assesses whether the revised terms result
in a substantial modification from original terms taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment
iS not conclusive, the Group considers that the terms
are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including
any fees paid net of any fees received, and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10
per cent different from the discounted present value of
the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
The above said fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the
other’s behalf. Accordingly, such modification of terms
is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or
fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss
on the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of
a financial liability with substantially different terms as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
IFEMRHRERMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated
at the present value of the modified contractual cash
flows discounted at the financial liabilities’ original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred
are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining
term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the
date of modification.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or 10ss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain
financial asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
not separated. The entire hybrid contract is classified
and subsequently measured in its entirety as either
amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
that are not financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single
instrument that are separated from the host contracts
are treated as a single compound embedded derivative
unless those derivatives relate to different risk
exposures and are readily separable and independent of
each other.
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198

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined on
first-in, first-out method.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand,
cash at bank and other financial institutions which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

e MBERMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Except for granting of a licence that is distinct from
other promised goods or services, control is transferred
over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of
following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.
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200

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For granting of a licence that is distinct from other
promised goods or services, the nature of the Group’s
promise in granting a licence is a promise to provide a
right to access the Group's intellectual property if all of
the following criteria are met:

e the contract requires, or the customer reasonably
expects, that the Group will undertake activities
that significantly affect the intellectual property to
which the customer has rights;

e the rights granted by the licence directly expose
the customer to any positive or negative effects of
the Group's activities; and

o those activities do not result in the transfer of
a good or a service to the customer as those
activities occur.

If the criteria above are met, the Group accounts for the
promise to grant a licence as a performance obligation
satisfied over time. Otherwise, the Group considers
the grant of licence as providing the customers the
right to use the Group's intellectual property and the
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time at
which the licence is granted.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the
price at which the Group would sell a promised good or
service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling
price is not directly observable, the Group estimates it
using appropriate technigues such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance obligation
reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to data relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly
with the value of the Group's performance completed
to date, the Group recognises revenue in the amount to
which the Group has the right to invoice.
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202

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation
to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
iS an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified goods
or services before that goods or services is transferred
to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified goods or
services by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified goods or services provided
by another party before that goods or services is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as
an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for the specified goods or services to be
provided by the other party.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FAMGHRRENEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEEHEE =
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Principal versus agent (Continuea) FEAERE (@)

For trading of wine and daily supplies that is incidental MAPZEARSNER (TPE) XERER

to the cultural and entertainment segment in the BRI FEREERmMESZM

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Group SOAEEBEBEBRERNRZFNE

determines if it acted as the principal by considering its EEMX MEEREINETE B kE

primarily obligation in a transaction, e.g. inventory risk EHEENER BEHERSEAE
or latitude in establishing prices and selecting suppliers. EPNG

e Selecting suppliers — the Group performs supplier o EEMHER-—ZAERENREFEARED
due diligence before contracting with the wine THEI A (A% P BB E o
distributors and promoting the wine products to B EETHERERAZ K
the customers. The Group selects the suppliers SEREEERKESEUHEE
based on the unit price and number of purchase EHER-
units.

e Establishing prices — the Group could determine e MHMEEBK—LEBRCTEZRERS
the selling price of the wine and liquors by itself HENBTEEFERBEE
within a range of the suggested selling price. The BotEFMREHNEERBRES
credit period offered by the suppliers is usually 15 158 MAEEBEFRENE
days and the credit period the Group offers to the EAMER - HIb KEBEFX
customers is 6 months. As such, the Group needs EEERR-
to bear the credit risk.

e Inventory risk — the Group stores inventories in s THFEHRARFEEBBREERAD
the warehouse before the wine are transferred to KEEGRGFEGABE K&
customer. Before such transfer, the Group needs BEETEEER T AEERT
to bear the cost of damaged products and has the BRI A MR PREE I EER
ability and is free to direct the use of and obtain ERPRAEEBRENIKATR
substantially all of the benefits from the purchased HEZERBRER WKLHE
wine before it is transferred to the customers. BIFBEPESEREDH e

Management of the Group considers that the Group is REFBEEERA AEFBETES

acting as a principal in the Trading Business because it E¥BNETEN RRARENFERA

obtains control of the wine and liquor and daily supplies BUABEARERER P RIEEE
before they are transferred to customers. Therefore, il 7@20 ALt BZ WA ELLER

trading revenue was recognised in the gross amount of T

consideration.
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204

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit/loss before
tax” because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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206

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to the leasing transaction as
a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net
basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion of
lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or 10ss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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IFEMRHRERMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEMBHRRENEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEEHEE ®
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Retirement benefits cost RAGBAKE

The Group participates in defined contribution KERAESEBE - HFREABIMEES
retirement schemes for its employees in Hong Kong, BIERRMMBRAREE - AEBRES
the PRC and overseas. The Group operates a Mandatory BIER B4 E R FI M AR EME
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under BIIRE > AREBEOHB7TEZREBIK
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance flzBETRAZEERMERFIER
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees B E (MEREE)) -RBEEE
employed under the jurisdiction of the Employment g EBUREAEE Y EEMIE
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The RetE o RiERBEHE BERE
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan BEBESBZEEMBULA Z5%M 58
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF BEFEMHEN ERASAEARWA
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each 30,000 7t 58 18 & 5t 8 R BN 58
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at =R

5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap

of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions

to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations REFEAERS TR RHEG > K
in the PRC, employees of the Group in the PRC EEZHREEZHEPIRAKREFE
participated in the central pension scheme (the (TR guRIREETE) > &R A
“Central Pension Scheme”), which is a defined BEFEE CEMEMREE AEH
contribution plan administered by the PRC government, BREEHEZATEOLERPRE
whereby the Group is required to make contributions PR 51 2 H 7R o 1 75 BUNT 4 B & B &K
to the Central Pension Scheme based on certain EEMAEREEZERERKEE T
percentages of the employees’ salaries. The local FROVRIRE SRR BN o
government authorities are responsible for the entire

pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

Contributions made to the Central Pension Scheme vest

immediately.

During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, there BHEZT="FKRZZEZZFA
was no contributions forfeited by the Group on behalf of —tHIEFE xEETEARILE
its employees who leave the plan prior to vesting fully R EEFE B REENERSR
in such contribution, nor had there been any utilisation WSAE AT (L R S S B R A R R WR =R
of such forfeited contributions to reduce future BREREHER - R _E_=ZFKR_F
contributions. As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, no forfeited ZIERB=1TB > rEEZERIRE
contribution under the retirement benefits schemes FE2IIE T R W R AT R E R
of the Group is available to reduce the contribution KREEZENHR

payable in future years.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date and
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revised its
estimates of the number of equity instruments that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share option reserve transferred to retained profits.

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings/accumulated losses.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or 10ss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basic over the periods in which the Group
recognised as expense the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. A contingent asset is not recognised but
is disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
IFEMRHRERMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEMBHRRENEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEEFHE =
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of EEHE ”A%IEE&E%?#%%”&%IEEH%
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary EfCvERERBRRELREZER
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period EE%E}‘IE%H&Z&E%TNE?I\%%%Z%%
in which they arise, except for exchange differences BEERERERIN HEHE L EFS
on monetary items receivable from or payable to R AR AR ge IR (R I 48 5% &6 2 8 ok
a foreign operation for which settlement is neither EB2WERE)  ZEBRRHEMEZE
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of WER T BB R HERID HER
the net investment in the foreign operation), which are EERBERT AR HEREMN
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and DEEEEo

reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or

partial disposal of the Group’s interests in associates.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial RHE2NEEMBRKR AEEBINE
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's BeBEMBBEHUSREHRFZIR
foreign operations are translated into the presentation TEXMEAXEBRZY G BNE
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using 70) o WA B2 IE B R T IgE
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting EnE  EMEBREEXRRIERS 8
period. Income and expense items are translated at FARGEHZEX -FIELXERESR
the average exchange rates for the period, unless WE) REMEEmWR G PR R
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, FAGZE T ZEREHE GRIE5RE
in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the FEVERR R FE () ©

transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if

any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange

reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal BEHEBNIER BNHEREREIH
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or X RaRHETRKEEE
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary BINEF 2B A GRS E D H
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal EEA@}EEEQ’W& i AEREELZ
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate WINERT 2 BB LHRBE N B 2
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained *L) P KANBHEB ANEHEBmMR R
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange ?EDJrZFﬁEE CEREEMOEEE

differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

E\
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or 10ss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed through
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Discontinued operation (Continuead)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the statement
of profit or loss, which comprises:

the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation and

the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.

Related parties

(i)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;
(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(3) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or a parent of the
Group.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF g a8
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

MBRREREBER
B5ESR &

BT a TIMERFM > RIEEE A
REEE AR

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (i)
following conditions applies:

214

M

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by
a person identified in (j).

a person identified in ()(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
(“CODM") for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the Directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
0n an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
Statements.

Determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or as an agent in trading of goods

Management of the Group considered that the Group
is acting as a principal in this business because it
obtains control of the products sold before they are
transferred to customers. If control is unclear, when the
Group is primarily obligated in a transaction, is subject
to inventory risk, has latitude in establishing prices
and selecting suppliers, or has several but not all of
these indicators, gross amount of the sales and cost of
sales are recorded. In determining whether the Group
is acting as a principal or as an agent, management
is required to exercise significant judgements and to
consider all relevant facts and circumstances of the
business.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. RR# & atEnk{&s+ R EAEA
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION HAZZEEKE =
UNCERTAINTY (Continuea)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the T ABBERRRZ ETERR  UER
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty REPARGFTTHEBRARZHEMEE
at the end of the reporting period that may have a R B e SEEER MMEM BEE
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the HEENRBEREEFHERRE .
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next BAREEE

financial year.

Income taxes FRiG#

The Group is subject to income taxes in various FEEERZERBEBAMNRE
tax authorities. Significant judgement is required in M- AEERERNERERLBERARES
determining the provision for income taxes and the BNSENEEFHEARAE -TH
timing of payment of the related tax. There are certain BEFBERAEE T REEERER
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax BHzRZMAE - cEBERHES
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of EERMBEINRIE Z fh 5t BLTRHAR
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated EEFREBE WILEEEERERT
tax based on estimates of whether additional taxes will ERARYREE &R B AR
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is EERTEFLERMETHEZME
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, M-

such differences will impact the income tax provision in
the period in which such determination is made.

Depreciation and amortisation T EE R 8

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets ME-BREERREBE - TAREEENRE
and intangible assets (see Notes 17, 18 and 19 to the EEE D RESHBIRRMETE7
consolidated financial statements respectively) are 185%19) Thig H{hst ol e A ERAUE
depreciated and amortised on a straight-line basis BEACTRITERBH AEBEF
over their estimated useful lives. The Group annually WMEEEZAFERAFRRERE @
reviews the useful life of an asset and its residual value, B) -l fERAFHRTLIRBEAEE R EM
if any. The useful life is based on the Group's historical BEZBAKRERERER 2 MK
experience with similar assets and taking into account EMET MABEHEAEEELR
anticipated technology changes. The depreciation and Bl g R RIRHAR 2 T E R HRA S
amortisation expenses for future periods are adjusted if HEAEE

there are significant changes from previous estimates.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs (or
group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value-in-use or fair value less
costs of disposal. The value-in-use calculation requires
the management of the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 30 June 2023,
the carrying amount of goodwill was HKS$Nil (2022:
approximately HK$129,032,000), net of accumulated
impairment losses of approximately HK$291,416,000
(2022: approximately HK$162,384,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Determining whether an item of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are impaired requires
an estimate of the recoverable amount of the relevant
CGU to which the asset belongs, which is the higher of
the value-in-use or fair value less costs to disposal. The
value-in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from CGU and
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows, a
material impairment loss may arise.

Impairment of intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of
an intangible asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 10ss
is recognised as an expense immediately. As at 30 June
2023, the carrying amount of intangible assets was
HK$NIl (2021: approximately HK$1,035,000) after taking
into account that the impairment loss of approximately
HK$730,000 (2022: HKS$Nil).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

At 30 June 2023, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$21,000 (2022: approximately HK$$11,149,000) in
relation to the timing differences on revenue recognition
and impairment allowances for credit loss has been
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised on the tax losses of approximately
HK$22,988,000 (2022: approximately HK$9,114,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future taxable profits generated
are less or more than expected, or change in facts
and circumstances which result in revision of future
taxation profits estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

Provision of ECL

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS
9 across all categories of financial assets requires
significant judgement and estimation, in particular,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk and credit-impaired financial assets as well as
the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses. These estimates are driven by
a number of factors, changes in which can result
in different levels of allowances. At each reporting
date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for exposures since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting
date and the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort for
this purpose. This includes gquantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis. Details
of the key assumptions and inputs used are set out in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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220

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Fair value measurements of other financial
instruments

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages an independent professional valuer to perform
the valuation. The Group uses valuation technigues
that include inputs that are not based on observable
market data to estimate the fair value of certain types
of financial instruments. Note 5(c) provides detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in the determination of the fair
value.

The Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on the assumption that the Group will be
able to operate as a going concern in the foreseeable
future, which is a critical judgement that has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. The assessment
of the going concern assumptions involves making a
judgement by the Directors, about the future outcome
of events or conditions which are inherently uncertain.
The Directors consider that, after taking into account of
all major events or conditions which may give rise to
business risks, that individually or collectively may cast
significant doubt upon the going concern assumptions
as set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the capability to continue as
a going concern.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MZEERER
(@) cCategories of financial instruments (@) ERITAER

Financial assets EREE
Financial assets L A T2 2
at amortised cost THEE
— Trade receivables — B EWIE 4,975 28,399
— Factoring receivables —(RIBEWFRIE 168,313 422,145
— Lease receivables —HERWRIE 2,225 16,136
— Loan receivables —EE™R 431 12,174
— Other receivables and —HMEWRIERIZE
deposits 2,730 3,068
— Cash and bank balances —IRE MIRITAEER 2,400 71,758
Financial assets at FVTPL R FEFGIAER D Z
THEE
— Early redemption right from — A BMESIZA O
corporate bonds - 878
— Equity securities listed —-R&EBLEHZ
in Hong Kong AetEE 55 - 269
181,074 554,827
Financial liabilities EHafE
Financial liabilities ARG E
at amortised cost THEE
—Trade payables — B RNMIE 2,573 3,420
— Accruals and other payables —EsTERA K
H e FIB 8,356 7,334
- Borrowing —f&™ 3,235 -
— Corporate bonds —REMEFH 40,671 40,507
— Lease liabilities —HEAa®R 1,155 2,415
55,990 53,676
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

222

The Group's major financial instruments include
trade receivables, factoring receivables, lease
receivables, loan receivables, deposits, other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, financial
assets at FVTPL, trade payables, accruals and
other payables, borrowing, corporate bonds and
lease liabilities. The details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely
and effective manner.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and currency risk. The Directors review
and agree policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties equal to the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

5.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In respect of trade receivables, in order to
minimise the credit risk, the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals. Before accepting
any new customer, the Group will assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and define
credit limits by individual customer. Receivables
due from customers are due within the
settlement period commonly adopted by the
relevant market convention, which is usually
within 90 days except for trading of goods which
settlement is made in accordance with the terms
specified in the contracts governing the relevant
transactions. Normally, the Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancement over
its trade receivables balances. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure the follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

224

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In respect of factoring receivables, lease
receivables and loan receivables from customers,
the objective of the Group’s measure to manage
credit risk is to control the potential exposure to
the recoverability problem. The Group manages
and analyses the credit risk of each of their new
and existing customers before payment terms
and conditions are concluded by assessing the
credit quality of the customer, taking into account
its financial position, past settlement experience
and other factors. Factoring receivables, lease
receivables and loan receivables balances are
monitored on an on-going basis, management
reviews the recoverable amount at each reporting
date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. Interest
income are usually billed on monthly or quarterly
basis. The factoring receivables and lease
receivables are also guaranteed by directors of
the customers as additional security for shortfalls
on collect outs due to dispute or breach of
contract for which the guarantor is liable. Other
monitoring procedures are in place to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks and other financial
institutions which are reputable in the opinion of
management.

5.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Impairment assessment policies

The Group's policy requires the review of individual
outstanding amounts regularly depending on
individual circumstance or market condition.

The management is responsible in developing
and maintaining the processes for measuring ECL,
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9. The
Group applies simplified approach to measure
ECL on trade receivables and general approach
to measure ECL on factoring receivables, lease
receivables, loan receivables and other financial
assets classified at amortised cost. Under the
simplified approach, the Group measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL. Under the general approach, financial assets
migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit risk since initial
recognition: Stage 1. 12m ECL, Stage 2. Lifetime
ECL — not credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime
ECL — credit-impaired.

For such financial assets classified as Stage 1 and
2, the management assesses loss allowances
using the risk parameter modelling approach
that incorporates key parameters, including PD,
LGD and EAD. For credit-impaired financial assets
classified as Stage 3, the management assesses
the credit loss allowances by estimating the future
cash flows expected to arise from the financial
assets.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. BERMEIR @
(Continued)

226

Measurement of ECL

The Group conducted an assessment of ECL
according to forward-looking information and used
complex models and assumptions in its expected
measurement of credit losses. These models and
assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic
conditions and customer’s creditworthiness
(e.g. the likelihood of default by customers
and the corresponding losses). The Group
adopts judgement, assumptions and estimation
techniques in order to measure ECL according to
the requirements of accounting standards such as:

(1) Criteria for judging significant increase in
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B PE R E - RR R fhst i
fig > HIgn

() HerEE R EEEEE N

credit risk 1B
The Group assesses whether or not KEENRZ RS H AT M

the credit risk of the relevant financial
instruments has increased significantly
since the initial recognition at each
reporting date. While determining whether
the credit risk has significantly increased
since initial recognition or not, the Group
takes into account the reasonable and
substantiated information that is accessible
without exerting unnecessary cost or effort,
including qualitative and quantitative analysis
based on the historical data of the Group,
credit rating grade, and forward-looking
information. Based on the single financial
instrument or the combination of financial
instruments with similar characteristics
of credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of default of financial instruments on
the reporting date with that on the initial
recognition date in order to figure out the
changes of default risk in the expected
lifetime of financial instruments.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continueq)

()

Criteria for judging significant increase in
credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial instrument
to have experienced a significant increase in
credit risk when one or more of the following
quantitative, qualitative or backstop criteria
have been met:

° Quantitative criteria: At the reporting
date, the increase in remaining lifetime
PD is considered significant comparing
with the one at initial recognition.

° Qualitative criteria: Significant adverse
change in debtor's operation or
financial status.

For factoring receivables and lease
receivables, the number of days past due
and loan-to-collateral value were used to
estimate significant increase in credit risk.
Other financial assets at amortised cost use
number of days past due as determinant of
credit risk.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continueq)

(i) Definition of credit-impaired financial asset
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Internal rating of the debtor indicating
default or near-default;

Significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the customer;

The debtor leaves any of the
receivables of the Group overdue for
more than 365 days;

It is becoming probable that the
customer will enter bankruptcy or other
financial restructuring;

The credit impairment on a financial
asset may be caused by the combined
effect of multiple events and may not
be necessarily due to a single event.

MBRMRERE @

StERREEGE (@)
/Sg/jﬁ:?nﬂﬁé/ﬁ

zﬂi?z)\ﬁ’]mﬂﬁu?ﬁ&
BnEENIEE
5

BTHABRELEE
R FHREE 5

BHANHEEENE
o] P& ISR TR 281 AR B 8
365K ;

= FRIR P REM E Bl
THMPFFHFEE ;

TMEEHEEER

BAEFERZHESEMF

E’J,ttﬂf’ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬂz ES
v S



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

4= A
17177 g |

HAFRERRMIEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)
(if)  Parameters of ECL measurement

According to whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk and whether there
is an impairment of assets, the Group
measures the impairment loss for different
assets with ECL of 12 months or the entire
lifetime respectively. The key measuring
parameters of ECL include PD, LGD and
EAD. The Group takes into account the
quantitative analysis of historical statistics
(such as internal rating grade, manners
of guarantees and types of collaterals,
repayments, etc.) and forward-looking
information in order to establish the model of
PD, LGD and EAD.

o PD refers to the possibility that the
debtor will not be able to fulfil its
obligations of repayment over the
next 12 months or throughout the
entire remaining lifetime. For factoring
receivables, lease receivables and
loan receivables, the Group estimates
PD by the internal credit ratings. For
other financial assets at amortised
cost the PD is adjusted based on the
credit rating of comparable companies
operating in similar business;
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continueq)

(it} Parameters of ECL measurement (Continued)

LGD refers to the Group's expectation
of the extent of the loss resulting from
the default exposure. Depending on the
type of counterparty, the method and
priority of the recourse, past default
experience and the realisation of
collaterals, the LGD varies. The LGD is
the percentage of loss of risk exposure
at the time of default, calculated over
the next 12 months or over the entire
remaining lifetime;

EAD is the amount that the Group
should be reimbursed at the time
of the default in the next 12 months
or throughout the entire remaining
lifetime.

(Ilv)  Forward-looking information
The assessment of a significant increase in
credit risk and the calculation of ECL both
involve forward-looking information. Through
the analysis of historical data, the Group
identifies the key economic indicators that
affect the credit risk and ECL.

5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
IFEMRHRERMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. BEREEIR »
(Continued)

Credit risk exposure

Trade receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade receivables individually
or based on a provision matrix.

The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customers segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on specific trade
receivables individually. The Group has used
the past due information of counterparties to
assess whether credit risk has been increased
significantly since initial recognition. The ECLS are
estimated based on PD and LGD and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or
effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 #HZE_

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

FRAZ=THIEEE

5.

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continuead)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Set out below is the information about credit risk
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

At 30 June 2023

HERKRER @

(b) MFBEMEIEBRRERK
-
FERRE®RO &)
EZRWHE (8)
TRIBAREEREZ BT

REAEBEENEERRMO
A&k

RZEZ=F/A=1+H

Gross Expected

carrying credit Gross Expected

amount losses carrying credit

excluding excluding amount of losses of
specific specific specific specific Total
Expected trade trade trade trade impairment
loss rate receivables receivables receivables receivables allowance

REAE FHEEER e85 KEES

BIriEeES  (BIREEES FEWFIER FEERIEH
HRHEHEE FEWRIE) FERIE) REAE REEEER AEREEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TF#T TFHRT FHEw F#Ew F#T
Current BNER = - - 14 - -
0-30 days past due HE0E0E - - - 1,903 (774) (774)
31-60 days past due BENEOH = - = 264 (109) (109)
61-90 days past due A1 E0H = = = 346 (177) (177)
91-180 days past due #E91Z1800 - - - 1,651 (829) (829)
181-365 days past due WE181E365H - - - 9,324 (7,602) (7,602)
Qver 1 year past due BEEN L - - - 21,432 (20,468) (20,468)
= = 34,934 (29,959) (29,959)

232 NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MBHRERMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_—E_=F,"BE=1+HILEE
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MBRAKRERE »
(Continuea)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BMAFREEEEBEERBR
and policies (Continued) (#
Credit risk exposure (Continuead) EERMMO &)
Trade receivables (Continued) B Z BN IE (B)
At 30 June 2022 RIZ2ZZHF,A=+H
Gross Expected
carrying credit Gross Expected
amount losses carrying credit
excluding excluding amount of losses of
specific specific specific specific Total
Expected trade trade trade trade impairment
0ss rate receivables receivables receivables receivables allowance
REAE BHEEHE 8% 8%
GrEEES  GIRMEEESR FEWEIER) FEWRIER)
kil ook FEWFE) FElE) RERE BHEEFR AERELE
% HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TER TER TER TEL
Current il 828 4,507 (373 3764 (1,475) (1,848)
0-30 days past due HHZE0H 8.51 1,39 (119) 1,097 (439) (558)
3160 days past due BN EOR 1049 1,602 (168) 1,106 436) (604)
61-90 days past due BH61E0H 16.56 2,409 (399) 2,285 (894) (1,293
91-180 days past due #E91Z1800 2375 6,236 (1,481) 749 (3,066) 4,547)
181-365 days past due WE181E365H 29 1234 (295) 8,489 (4,304) (4,599)
Qver 1 year past due BEEN L - - - 1,015 (794 (794
17,387 (2,835) 25,295 (11,408) (14,243

The impairment of trade receivables included
the amount of specific trade receivable which
is considered in default due to indicators which
showed that the Group was unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amount in full.

R ERERAER R KA EE
FWEHAREECTOETR BR
BB EELVIEE E 57 BUGR
RE T A B 5 BUGRIERE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
ITEEMRHRERMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. WHEBER @
(Continued)
Credit risk exposure (Continued) EERRMA (&
Trade receivables (Continued) ESENFIE (&)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss TRETEME S BUIGRIEE
allowances that has been recognised for trade FE B AR ©
receivables:
At 1 July 2021 RIB_—%+A—H 838 = 838
Changes due to financial RZ2Z—&tHA—H
instruments recognised at BRER T AN
1 July 2021: 23 .
— Impairment losses —BRZBESE
recognised, net #E 4912 9,722 14,634
— Transfer to creditimpaired  — BEEERE (2,829) 2,829 -
— Written-off — MH = (780) (780)
Exchange realignment ERAE (86) (363) (449)
At 30 June 2022 RZEZ"fF
and 1July 2022 NAZTHK
“E-"FtA—H 2,835 11,408 14,243
Changes due to financial RZE-"&#+tB—H
instruments recognised at REMTH
1 July 2022: SHERNEE)
- Impairment losses — (o) /BB
(reversed)/ HEEETE
recognised, net (65) 17,665 17,600
- Transfer to credit-impaired -BEEEHE (2,662) 2,662 -
Exchange realignment QAR (108) (1,776) (1,884)
At 30 June 2023 RIE_=F
~A=1H - 29,959 29,959
Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered HR2019 8 K& F K
by the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") (TCOVID-19 ) & 1E5I-EB AR
pandemic, the Group has increased the expected TIHEAEETE ~AEEERS
loss rates in the current year as there is higher FENFEABEEX FREREH
risk that a prolonged pandemic could lead to BRI EEREEREBAXIE MM
increased credit default rates. B EFfo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

IFEMRHRERMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

At 30 June 2023, the Group had not provided
(2022: approximately HK$2,835,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables based on the
provision matrix and approximately HK$29,959,000
(2022: approximately HK$11,408,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables individually. The
Group has taken actions, including but not limited
to legal actions, to recover the balances. The
Directors considered these trade receivables are
credit-impaired.

Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan
receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on factoring receivables, lease
receivables and loan receivables individually.

The Group's internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following categories:

MHEREEIR @

FERRE®RO &

B S ERIE ()
N_E_=ZFA=+H &&E
EREREEETEMEZE
WEIBEHERERE CE -
£ 1 #92,835,0005% 7T) » M1E Bl Rk
B EKRFTIEIRBEREEDN
29,959,000 (CE - _F ' &
11,408,000 7T) ° ZA~& E B IXE
T8 (BIEEBARREIERTH) K
ClEREHR - EERA ZFE
SEWRIECEEEERHE

IREE[EW A IE ~ T B JEN B R
B EL
AEERBAREEHIEENAE
B RIZEUCRUR S B B UGR
TR W EREITRE T ©

KREEBREE G R D RS
BFELUTERR -

Stage 1 There has not been a significant increase in credit ~ 12-month ECL

risk since initial recognition and that are not
credit-impaired upon origination.

N BB E R AR MBE M A FERITRE 1288 BREEHE
FIEERIE-

Stage 2 There has been a significant increase in credit risk  Lifetime ECL — not
since initial recognition bgt are not credit-impaired  credit-impaired

H2PEEL ViR B EERREEIE MBI RELEFERN L2BBERAGEESRE—RZ
Beo TEERIE

Stage 3 There have been one or more events that have Lifetime ECL

a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cashflow of that asset have occurred.

— credit-impaired

BIPEEL BEEL—HNSHHZEENMGLFRIKRLRERS 2HBEREEBRE-#E
AR ERNEH- EERIE
Stage 4 There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off

severe financial difficulty and the Group has no

realistic prospect of recovery.

SBAREER BRBERARHEARBRRENMHTERE MAER AREAREMS

I 4R B ERUR BB AT AE ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

236

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan
recelvables (Continuead)

The Directors estimate the estimated loss rates
based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort as well as the fair
value of the collateral pledged by the customers
to the factoring receivables, lease receivables and
loan receivables.

As at 30 June 2022, based on assessment by the
Directors, the LGD is low in view of the estimated
realised amount of ultimate disposal of the
collaterals for secured factoring receivables and
lease receivables and the Directors consider
the ECL for the factoring receivables and lease
receivables is significantly mitigated by the
collaterals held. As at 30 June 2023, the Directors
considered the LGD has significantly increased
due to the deterioration in the value of collaterals
held, such as an increase in the credit risk of
those pledged account receivables from secured
factoring receivables as they have past due,
and decrease in the value of pledged plant and
machinery from lease receivables as they are
obsoleted.

At 30 June 2023, the Group provided
approximately HK$337,894,000, HK$15,954,000
and HK$1,117,000 (2022: approximately
HK$26,663,000, HK$3,343,000 and HK$20,000)
impairment allowance for factoring receivables,
lease receivables and loan receivables
respectively.

5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
FEEMFEHRRMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_—E_=F,"BE=1+HILEE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MBRAKRERE »

(Continuea)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BAFEEEEEZEREER
and policies (continued) =)
Credit risk exposure (Continuead) EERMMO &)
Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan (RIE[EINIE ~ 1 BB B K
receivables (Continuea) KB (B)
The following table shows the exposure of ECL for TRIRIRE —REZRIEREI
factoring receivables under general approach: MIENTEREERERE :

2023

—_—_—

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BIPEER oML ER HIMEER 4t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FExT FET THERT TAERT

Gross carrying amount REAE - - 506,207 506,207
Impairment allowance HERE - - 337,894 337,894
Expected loss rate L] EES - - 66.75% 66.75%

2022
_ECCF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FER  BMER FIEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TAT TET

(Gross carrying amount REAE 192,054 - 256,754 448,808
Impairment allowance oRERE 307 - 26,356 26,663
Expected loss rate FHEEX 0.16% - 10.27% 5.94%
As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the impairment RIE_ZER T _F,58
allowance was measured at an amount equal to =—+B BRELEEEREZRE
12m ECL under general approach for factoring FEWGRRIE SN BB B EIRE— R
receivables, excepted for factoring receivables ERRIE R ZAEE 701218
which were credit-impaired. Bl EEHBIB S 2
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.
(Continued)

HERMRER @

238

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan
receivables (Continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for factoring
receivables:

EERRMO &

IRIEfEW 7R T E WA B R
BEWE (&

TR E R RIERE R IERE S
BYRS IR A AR

AL 1 July 201 RZZ-_—F+A—H 468 = = 468
Changes due to financial instruments R ZF-—&£+ A—HEILH

recognised at 1 July 2021: THRslEenes .

— Impairment losses recognised,  — BEAZ BEREFE

net 18 = 27,024 27,042

— Transfer to credit-impaired —-BEEERE (171) = 7 -
Exchange realignment EREE ] = (839) (847)
At 30 June 2022 RIE_"&/A=1+HkK

and 1July 2022 “E-"%tA-H 307 = 26,356 26,663
Changes due to financial instruments #-E - ~"&+HF—H

recognised at 1 July 2022: DEMTESENES .

- Impairment losses recognised, net  —BRZ MBS EFE - = 327,639 327,639

- Transfer to credit-impaired -BEEERE (295) = 295 -
Exchange realignment ERAEE (12) - (16,396) (16,408)
At30 e 2023 R-B=4AA=1E - - 337894 337,89

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group
has renegotiated the contractual terms with 10
factoring arrangement customers to waive their
interest for a three-month period from April to
June 2022 and 1 factoring arrangement customer
to extend the repayment for a three-month period
from June to September 2022. Based on the
assessment performed by the Group, all factoring
receivables are regarded as non-substantial
modification.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan
recelvables (Continuead)

The amortised cost before the modification of
receivables was approximately HK$453,433,000
and the modification loss amounting to
approximately HK$4,625,000 was recorded in
profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2022.

At 30 June 2023, the gross factoring receivables
of approximately HK$506,207,000 (2022:
approximately HK$256,754,000) was classified
under stage 3 -Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) since
the Group assessed the credit risk of customers
who applied for renegotiation have increased
significantly, due to the defaulted repayment
on the factoring interests and their business
operations had been negatively affected as a
result of the COVID-19 outbreak and the ensuing
city-wide lockdown in Shanghai. The Group
has taken actions, including but not limited to
legal actions, to recover balances. The Directors
considered all factoring receivables are credit-
impaired.

5.

HERREIR @

EERRMO &
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BEWE (&
BE_ZT__F/H=1THILF
£ > &3] FEWRRIR A1 BY 8 85 Y &
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$8#94,625,0008 7051 A 18 ©

A B =FBA=1HRE
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(ZZ " : #9256,754,0007%
7o) DA BIME R -2 HATERAE
EfFEE EZEEERE  RREZ
AEBIERBFEFEENES
NiEEREERERERFRER
EMARBIEN HEXKEECR
COVID-19%& 1B K BE = M 2RV £
HEMZIEeEFE - AERLD
REITE (BEBARRRIEET
&) WEI AR R - ERRA P
BEREERWHRELHEEEEER
Ho

02/2FER « BREBERERAR 239
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TR =

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_E_=F,BE=1+HILEE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. WHEBER @

(Continuead)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BAFEEEEEZEREER
and policies (continued) =)
credit risk exposure (Continued) EERKKRO &)
Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan (RIE[EIN A ~ 1 BB B K
receivables (Continued) EREF (&)
The following table shows the exposure of ECL for TRIRIRE—REZZHEEREI
lease receivables under general approach: TIENTEREEEERE

2023

—_—_—

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BIPEER oML ER HIMEER 4t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FExT FET THERT TAERT

Gross carrying amount REAE - - 18,179 18,179
Impairment allowance HERE - - 15,954 15,954
Expected loss rate L] EES - - 87.76% 87.76%

2022
_ECCF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FER  BMER FIEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TAT TET

(Gross carrying amount REAE 8,215 - 11,264 19,479

Impairment allowance AR 4 = 3,339 3,343

Expected loss rate FHEEX 0.05% - 29.64% 17.16%

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the impairment RIE_ZER T _F,58
allowance was measured at an amount equal —t+H BRELEEEREZHE
to 12m ECL under general approach for lease FEWGRRIE SN BB B EIRE— R
receivables from sales-leaseback transactions, ERLEREBAR G 2 HERI
excepted for lease receivables which were credit- BZBEER12E R BHREERR
impaired. ZEHRERTE o
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e MBERMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

5. MZERKER =

Credit risk exposure (Continuead) =ERMHRO @)
Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan RIE[EW I TE  FH B EN A B R,
receivables (Continued) [EREZ (B)
The following tables show reconciliation of loss TRETEMEERWIERER
allowances that has been recognised for lease HE B R -
receivables:
At 1 July 2021 RZE-_—-FtB—-H 57 - - 57
Changes due to financial instruments R ZE-—&£+ A—HRILH

recognised at 1 July 2021: TH3|ENEE .

— Impairment losses (reversed)/  — (&) /HRz

recognised, net AEBETE (37) - 3,429 3,392

— Transfer to credit-impaired —-HEEEERE (16) - 16 -
Exchange realignment ERAE S = (106) (106)
At 30 June 2022 RZE-__&EXA=+AK

and 1 July 2022 “2T"f%tB-H 4 - 3339 3,343
Changes due to financial instruments EA_gi:EtH —H

recognised at 1 July 2022: BTl ENEE) .

- Impairment losses recognised, —ﬁ’é%@iﬁ@@ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ

net - - 13,452 13,452

- Transfer to credit-impaired -BEEERE (4) - 4 -
Exchange realignment ERAE - - (841) (841)
At 30 June 2023 RZBZ=%,A=+H - - 15,954 15,954

At 30 June 2023, the gross lease receivables
of approximately HK$18,179,000 (2022:
approximately HK$11,264,000) was classified
under stage 3 — lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) since
the Group assessed the credit risk of customers
have increased significantly due to their default
repayment history. The Group has taken actions,
including but not limited to legal actions, to
recover the balances. The Directors considered
all lease receivables from sales-leaseback
transactions are credit-impaired.

A —E_=FXB=+H'#HE
FE UL =R IE\@%E”TIS 179,000 75
(ZTE -5 911,264,000
)ﬁ+ﬁ%%35 SEy— 2 HATRAR(E
BB (BLEEEREBE) > RER
AEEFHEANEERRKRER
HIf R IBREE e m ARG A0 © A&
EEEHEIWTEH (BFEERRR
ERTH) WEIBRAEER - ES
R FMEEREERZZHEE
FEWHRIBE B EEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TR =

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_E_=F,BE=1+HILEE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. WHEBER @

(Continuead)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BAFEEEEEZEREER
and policies (continued) =)
credit risk exposure (Continued) EERKKRO &)
Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan (RIE[EIN A ~ 1 BB B K
receivables (Continued) EREF (&)
The following table shows the exposure of ECL for TRIRIRIE—REZZERER
loan receivables under general approach: MIEHRE BB R

2023

—_—_—

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BIPEER oML ER HIMEER 4t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FExT FET THERT TAERT

Gross carrying amount REAE - - 1,548 1,548
Impairment allowance HERE - - 1,117 1,117
Expected loss rate L] EES - - 72.16% 72.16%

2022
_ECCF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FER  BMER FIEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TAT TET

(Gross carrying amount REAE 12,194 - - 12,194
Impairment allowance HERE 20 - - 20
Expected loss rate FHEEX 0.16% - - 0.16%
As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the impairment RIE_ZER T _F,58
allowance was measured at an amount equal =+ B BRELEEEREZEK
to 12m ECL under general approach for loan BRI REBERE—RER
receivables, excepted for loan receivables which FEWE R IZEER12E B FBHAE
were credit-impaired. BB SRS
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan
receivables (Continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for loan
receivables:

5.

HERREIR @

EERRMO &

IRIEfEW 7R T E WA B R
BEWE (&
TRETEMEREREDE
BEENR

At 1 July 2021 R-E-—#+E-A 3 - - 3
Changes due to financial instruments i ~E - —&+F—H
recognised at 1 July 2021: REMTESENES .
- Impairment reversed, net —BEZAERE (16) - - (16)
At30June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RZE-"FXA=+HK
_E-_F#tH—H 20 - - 20
Changes due to financial RZE__F#tA—H
instruments recognised at REMTA
1 July 2022: SHERNEE)
- Impairment losses — (Bo) /HER2
(reversed)/recognised, net BEEERTHA (7) = 1,104 1,097
- Transfer to credit-impaired -EBEEEHE (13) = 13 =
At 30 June 2023 RIEZ=F,A=1H - - 1,117 1,117

At 30 June 2023, the gross loan receivable of
approximately HK$1,548,000 was classified under
stage 3 - lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) since
the Group assessed the credit risk of customer
has increased significantly due to the default
repayment history. The Group has taken actions,
including but not limited to legal actions, to
recover the balance. The Directors considered the
loan receivable is credit-impaired.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
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Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

For the other receivables and deposits, the
Directors make periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of the other receivables
and deposits based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information. The
Directors believe that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12m ECL under general
approach.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
cash and cash equivalents. The Group accounts
for its credit risk by appropriately providing for
expected losses on a timely basis. In calculating
the expected loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of the other
financial assets and adjusts for forward-looking
macroeconomic data.

At 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Group assessed
that the ECL rate is immaterial under 12m ECL
under general approach. Thus, no loss allowance
for other financial assets was recognised.

5.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_—E_=F,"BE=1+HILEE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MBRKBER @

(Continuead)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) BAFEEEEEZEREER
and policies (continued) #
Liquidity risk BN R R
Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be mEETREARBELIESES
available to meet liabilities as they fall due, and it MEZMEfAzaBzRAR ME
results from amount and maturity mismatches of BHREERBEZREKRIIEAE
assets and liabilities. The Group will consistently TEACFTE - NE B — WM BEEE
maintain a prudent financial policy and ensure that RIFBEMBEBR > WHERER
it maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity TrRREUENERBERMN
requirements. Eo
The Group’s financial liabilities are analysed KEBZEMEBENRAGHAX
into relevant maturity groupings based on the BIRIBEME  RENRSEER
remaining period at the end of the respective EHARESOINAHZ G TEAD
reporting periods to the contractual maturity date, DAEEIEAEARNDT -
using the contractual undiscounted cash flows, as
follows:
As at 30 June 2023 MRZEZ=F,B=+H

Weighted
average Total
effective Carrying On Within undiscounted
interest rate amount demand 1year 1-2 years  2-5years cash flows

mETH AURRE
S fREE BEX - -E2E C"EIf  hEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAn T#n TAn Thn TEn TAn

Trade payables ERENTE N/A RER 2,573 2,573 - - - 2,573

Accruals and B EAR
other payables HHEMTE N/A RER 8,356 8,356 - - - 8,356
Borrowing (e 3.80% 3,235 - 3,235 - - 3,235
Lease Liabilties HEBE 10.39% 1,155 - 1,200 - - 1,200
Corporate bonds AEEF 10.41% 40,671 2,980 41,415 - - 44,395
55,990 13,909 45,850 - - 59,759
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

(Continued)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. HEBER =
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEnE Rk (E)
As at 30 June 2022 A TET_EFSA=1H
Trade payables ERENTIE N/A FEH 3420 3420 - - - 3420
Accruals and EHERR
other payables HHEMATE N/AFRER 7,334 7,334 - - - 7,334
Lease Liabilities HE&E 10.39% 2415 - 1,440 1,200 - 2,640
Corporate bonds RARS 1041% 40,507 2,620 38722 - - 41,302
53,676 13,374 40,162 1,200 = 54,736
Interest rate risk = E b
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk AEEEHERECEREER
in relation to fixed coupon rate corporate bonds BESFUKEEERNATEF
and lease liabilities. The Group is also exposed to ERE AEBEITEHERASE

246

cash flow interest rate risk relating to the Group's
variable-rate bank balances.

The Group's exposure to interest rates on bank
balances is considered insignificant and the
interest rate on corporate bonds is shown in the
liquidity risk section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for financial instruments at the end of the
reporting period. A 50 basis points (2022: 50
basis points) increase or decrease represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonable
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2022:
50 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s loss
before tax for the year would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$213,000 (2022: decrease/
increase by approximately HK$144,000).

Currency risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi (“RMB”). Currency risk
arises from the foreign currency denomination
of commercial transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group has no significant direct
exposure to foreign currencies as most of the
commercial transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency same as the functional
currency of each entity of the Group.

5.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.
(Continued)

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

(i) the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market
prices; and

(i) the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with net assets value or Hull-
white model.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount
of other financial assets and liabilities carried
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_—E_=F,"BE=1+HILEE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. WHEBER @

(Continuead)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial (c) EMIARAZATEHNE @
instruments (Continuead)
Fair value of the Group's financial assets that BEBEREEDURTFEFEZSR
are measured at fair value on a recurring EETHEEZLAFE
basis
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured REREHFR AEBE T/
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. BEEMUAFESZE TRITZ
The following table gives information about EEMBEELTEETHFAZE
how the fair value of these financial assets are i} o
determined.

Fair value Fair value
as at asat
30 June 30June Fair value
Description 2023 2022 hierarchy Valuation techniques
RZIEZ= A S—

—_ == —=

~NB=tHz | "B=THZ

it ATE NFE AFERBR A ERAM
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET

Financial assets

ERMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL
BATESABRZEHEE
- Early redemption right from - 878 Level 3 Hull-white model
corporate bonds
—REMEFIRAIERLE F=4 AR R
- Equity securities listed in Hong Kong - 269 Level1 N/A (2022: Quoted bid prices in an
active market)
—REBLMZRESRS £ REH(CEZZ&F  PERHIBHR
BRNEAE)
During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, BE_ZT="FRIZTTITER
there were no transfer of between Level 1 and B=1THILFE  F—HRHEFZ
Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3. iRz B A R E A
HE=4Kke
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_E_=F,BE=1+HILEE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. UBRAKRERE @
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial (c) EMITRAZAFENE @
instruments (Continuead)
Fair value of the Group's financial assets that BEBEEEYURTFEFEZSR
are measured at fair value on a recurring EETHMEEZATE #E)
basis (Continued)
Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value RIBEFE=ZMEAFEAEZEE
based on Level 3: HER :
Early
redemption
right
RHIEE
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 July 2021 RZB-—F+tA—H 1,717
Loss on change in fair value NTEEE BB (839)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RIS _ERAA=+HER-E-__F#tHF—H 878
Loss on change in fair value NTEEFZ BB (878)
At 30 June 2023 RZE-_=%,A=+H =
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_—E_=F,"BE=1+HILEE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. MZERKRER @

(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial (c) EMTERAZATEHA=ZE ®
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (Continued)

REEEEUATEAEZS
EETRMEEZATE B

BZMATEFERBZHER
MRMABBMT

The valuation techniques and inputs used in Level
3 fair value measurement are as follows:

Effect on
Significant fair value
Valuation unobservable for increase Fair value as
Description technique inputs of inputs at 30 June
BEARAHE BB
o fhER BB HATEZ¥E WAB=+BZAYTE
2023 2022
—E°= =S
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T THET
Early redemption right ~ Hull-white model  Interest rates 18.55%-18.61% Decrease - 878
from corporate bonds (2022:9.00% -10.17%)
(Note i)
ARRFRABEE  BEESEL AE 1855%F1861% A
(FizEi) CE_Z&:
9.00%£10.17%)
Note: et

The Group appointed Peak Vision Appraisals Limited
("Peak Vision") to determine the fair value of early
redemption right using the Hull-white model. The Hull-
white model predicts the evolution of short rate using
multi-factors such as time to maturity, prevailing interest
rates, mean reversion and volatility of rate changes, etc.
If the interest rate of the early redemption right from
corporate bonds held by the Group had been 10% higher
and all other variables were held constant, the loss before
tax would have been increased by HKS$Nil (2022: loss
before tax would have been increased by approximately
HK$145,000); 10% lower and all other variables were held
constant, the loss before tax would have been decreased
by approximately HK$Nil (2022: loss before tax would
have been decreased by approximately HK$147,000).
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

252

Fair value of the Group's financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (Continued)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost are not materially different from
their fair value as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.
The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes
was made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the year.

5.

NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23

HERMRER @

RICEREDUATEFEZSR
EETRMEEZATE @B

BEIAE N_T_=FK_FT
TIERB=1+H HEEMAK
ARNEMEEREMEERT
BEEEANTETEEAER-

FEFREAEEZHZ2ARER
EAEEFECE 2N RMER
BEZEARLT WX EHER
ERREARREBE -TEES
HEEERRECEEE RIS
WHEFHEE  BEFTNFE
BEXRRE AEERGHEN
FTREZRERE -REBEELT
IRERE TG - R Wi
HEMEEEARZ B BRI
RFIEHEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. WHEBER @
(Continued)
(d) capital risk management (Continuead) (d) BEFRRAMEGER @
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, AEBUEBAEELEER BER
which is total debts divided by total assets. The PR EE) ERERBER &
Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a EBRCZERERERGRLEXE
reasonable level. The gearing ratios at the end of FREEKE - REREHERZ
each reporting period are as follows: EXRBELERNT
2023
—EB=HF
HK$'000
FHET
Total debts HBEFS 43,906 40,507
Total assets HEE 183,121 703,583
Gearing ratio BAREELEE 23.98% 5.76%
Note: Total debts comprise of borrowing and corporate Wat : REFHEEERRABES  HE
bonds which are disclosed in Notes 35 and 36 to the REr & IR R MI5E35/36
consolidated financial statements.
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEIEF
Business segments EHEDER
Information reported to the management of the Group, MERDE KT ED I RIBMEAE
being the CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation BEEERE BNXTERERKSE) BR
and assessment of segment performances focuses on BRI 2 R R A ER -

types of services provided.

The operating and reportable segments are as follows: KERBTRESDEWT -

Continuing operations FEREER

Cultural and Operation of cultural and entertainment XIbRREE RKEXERBREEZESES

entertainment comprehensive services platform, including REFE BiEREE

brand management, solution and consulting B R B B REAR
services, contracting services and B R BRE IR %R
entertainment equipment solution, trading of BRAFEZ - ERES
goods and products promotion services I E i ERTS

Financing Provision of money lending, finance leasing & REHRE - REHRER
and credit factoring services EERERS
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_E_=F,BE=1+HILEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 7EPEH @
Business segments (Continued) EBDE @)
Discontinued operation BARIEKEER
Exhibitions and Organisation and sponsorship of trade shows, BESREIE EMAEHESTRE
events exhibitions and events, provision of event BEgEE) BIEE
planning, sub-contracting, management and BRI D -BERK
ancillary services BCEARTS
Segment revenue and results 7 ERUN EE R AR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and REBZWAREGREATREDE
results by reportable segments: paXi TR 1N

For the year ended 30 June

BEAA=+HLEE

Continuing operation Discontinued operation
RESEEE BRIEEEEE
Cultural and Total for Exhibitions
entertainment Financing Continuing operations and events Total
prd(ndvt s REICEEBRT BEERED st
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
CSCCF B R F B D= F B — D= R D = F S
HK$'000 - HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$000 HKS$'000 = HK$000 HK$'000 = HKS000 HK$'000 = HKS000
THET TET THET FER FET TR FET TR FET TET
Revenue 5
Segment revenue DEpkE 9,918 61,159 31,301 55,329 41,219 116,488 - - 41,219 116,488
Inter-segment revenue 3 EBRIE = (4,327) = = - (4,327) = = - (4,327)
Revenue from external  REMNBES ZIE
customers 9,918 56,832 31,301 55,329 41,219 112,161 = S 41,219 112,161
Results E3
Segment results YRS (155,675)  (113398) (315,626) 16,192  (471,301)  (97,206) 371) (1242)  (471,672)  (98.448)
Unallocated netlosson AT EFTA
financial assets at FVIPL %2 $HEEZ
ROEEEFE (830) (803)
Unallocated impairment ~ EBEEEZ
loss on right-of-use assets R AECHIERSE (970) =
Unallocated impairment ~ FB#RE B BET
loss under ECL model, BFZRERE
net of reversal 5518 (0FRAE) = (580)
Unallocated income and KA EMAK
other gainsand losses ~ EtEREE (746) (3,433)
Unallocated corporate KRB EBER
expenses (12,339) (13,549)
Finance costs B A (3,914) (4,828)
Loss before tax WRIRATES R (490,471)  (121,646)
Taxation piR| (16,026) (1,221)
Loss for the year EEFBE (506,497)  (122,867)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_—E_=F,"BE=1+HILEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PEEH @
Segment assets and liabilities ITHEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and KEBCEERBBERBATRS DD
liabilities by reportable segments: DWW
Cultural and
entertainment Financing Total
X{bRigg i it
2023 2022 2023 2023 2022
= _E°C —E-=HE ZETZE | 25—
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#n | TR TR FH% | TAR
(Restated)
(i E7))
Assets BE
Segment assets DNYEE 6,629 172,305 172,428 520,969 179,057 693,274
Assets of a discontinued operation BRIELELKEE 324 596
Unallocated corporate assets RPBREEEE 3,740 9713
Total reportable segment assets BYRENUEERE 183,121 703,583
Liabilities afk
Segment liabilities HEEE 13,109 10,733 1,824 3,407 14,933 14,140
Liabilities of a discontinued operation BRIELELEERE 53 117
Unallocated corporate liabilities APELEEE 43,135 43,408
Total reportable segment liabilities BAYRESNEBLE 58,121 57,665
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance MERDBRBEURESHBZME
and allocating resources between segments: DEERME -
e all assets are allocated to reportable segments e KREXBEIINFMBEEE
other than corporate assets; and PEEBTRSDE ; &
e all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments e KX EINPFBEAEE
other than corporate liabilities. PEEBTHREDEL -
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_E_=F,BE=1+HILEE

6.

256

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 30 June

Depreciation of praperty,

plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Capital expendture
Net loss on financial

assets at FVTPL
Write-off of property, plant

and equipment

Impairment losses under ECL model,

net of reversal
Impairment loss on goodwill
Impairment loss on

right-ofUse assets
Impairment loss on

intanglble assets
Amortsation of

intangible assets

% BRRRENE

RREAERE

BRER

RAVEH ARG
SHEEZFRIE

NS BRRAE

BREAPRESETZ
HERE (N8R
EEREDR
FRBREAENR
EVAERER
EVAERH

Cultural and
entertainment
XERSBS
23
ks
HKS'000
T
(43) 80
- 152
(51) (16
(176000 (14634
(128598) (111419
(730 =

(265) (1153

6. DEEH =

Hithr 8 EFk
BEARA=1+HLEE

Continuing operations
FREEER
Total for continuing
Financing Unallocated operations
BE FAE FREEEERET
2023 202 2023 2023 202
ZEIZE | Z3TTE CIICE - Jtt
HK$'000 HKS000  HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEn AR TEn FEn
(6) (74) (69) (1,230 (123) (1.484)
- - (1,163) (1,164) (1,163) (1.316)
- ) (59) - (59) 71
- - (830) (803 (830) (803)
o - ° @ (51) (18)
(341,893) 30418) c (580 (359,493) (45,632)
(434) = - - (129,032) (111418
= = (970) = (970) =
- - - - (730) -
- = - = (265) 11539

Discontinued operation
BREEERE

Exibitions and events
RESRED

2023 02

ZEIZE | Z3TE

HK$'000 | HKSI000
TEn

Total
&5t
2023
=

—F_=

HKS'000
Fin

(123)
(1,163)
(59)
(830)
(51

(359,493)
(129,032)

(970)
(730)

(265)

1487)
(1330)
[}
(803)
()

(45632)
(mag)

(1153
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_—E_=F,"BE=1+HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuec) 6. FHEHE ©
Geographical segments #h (& 53 3F

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location
of the assets.

REBNWEBUNEBRPE-

ERAEEREINEELHRZNE
BIhRBEEEMBES - ARAER
IERBEENE R IRIEE EHIE
B2

Revenue from
External customers

Non-current assets

R BMEBE R EREEE
Year ended 30 June As at 30 June
BESB=1tHLEE ®ARB=+H
2023 2022 2023 2022
—_E-= =BT —_E-= =2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET F#&T FET
Hong Kong &8 339 1,593 89 2,232
The PRC e 40,880 110,568 106 1,263
41,219 112,161 195 3,495
Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill, financial instruments and W&t ERBEEFAEIERNE - SMITAKREL
deferred tax assets. RIBEE-
Information about major customers BEREXEERZEH

There was no customer of the Group whose
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's
revenue for both the years ended 30 June 2023 and
2022,

2022/23F FHR o HEREBERABRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

7. REVENUE 7. Wi

(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) W=aIEIS

258

Revenue from contracts with ZERA#UE :
customers:
Brand management miEEE 1,699 4,932
Promotion and consulting services ¥ B K s& 50 IR 7S 2,498 17,053
Trading of goods mmES 5,721 34,847
9,918 56,832
Interest under effective BREAFZETHE
interest method:
Financing income RE WA
— Credit factoring services —EERER 30,302 48,295
— Finance leasing services —RERER 660 5,441
- Money lending services —ERRTS 339 1,593
31,301 55,329
Total st 41,219 112,161
Timing of revenue recognition: B aE 2z BERE -
At a point in time RE BRI 2, 6,306 38,604
Over time ¥ S S 3,612 18,228
Revenue from contracts with ZERAHWE
customers 9,918 56,832
Revenue from other sources H fth 3R Uk &5 31,301 55,329
Total 4mst 41,219 112,161

NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

7. W= @
(i) EREANEANEE

7. REVENUE (Continuead)

(ii) Performance obligation for contracts

with customers
Promotion and consulting services

The Group provides promotion and consultancy
services to alcoholic beverages suppliers, bars,
restaurants, lounges and others. Revenue is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Brand management and related services

The Group provides brand management services
to bars and restaurants. Revenue is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Trading of goods

The Group sells wine and liquor and daily supplies
to entertainment stores and NOD Union members.

HER A RS

A& E R AR EERS A

B~ BRI B R ERE

K5t 58 AR 5 o WK am % 12 M AR 5 B
=7

an b TR T AR A AR 75

7 & [ 160 8 VB K & B R 1 an 1

EEIRES o Wi m i R AR TS By b

=7

i mE 2

7 55 [ 7] YR B4 P 5 e 5 6 B B
SEEHEFEAEENKRAE

Revenue is recognised when control of goods was B MmN mmEh EER
transferred, being at the point in time when goods B BPRERENETHERZ
were delivered and accepted by the customers. GRS R R

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HlgA

2023

—_— ——

HK$'000

FET

Non-refundable trade deposits forfeited BUNAFIEEE Fid - 411
Government grants (Note) BT fea A (B 53) 919 2,203
Dividend income &S WA 17 10
Interest income FEUA 7 61
Sundry income MW A 10 208

953 2,893

P EE © BT 4 R 151 & 18 U &8 P U 2 B9 78 B
WA ER e T AEBTEEBRTRENSE
THIE R BRI EERE

Note: The government grants represent subsidy income received
from various government authorities as incentive to certain
subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_E_=F,BE=1+HILEE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. M&#MAiEsIE

REFBEEEEFZFRATEETL
bR/ Gt A) IR IERED

Loss before tax from continuing operations has been
arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2022
HK$'000
TFAET
(RENEIED))
(feE 7))
Staff costs: BT :
Employee benefits expenses BEEBFIMAX
(including directors’ emoluments) (BREEEMND)
- Salaries, allowance and other benefit —#rs BB R EMEFR 11,596 15,016
- Retirement benefit scheme —IRIRTEH]ET B
contributions 1,390 2,390
12,986 17,406
Other items: HthIEH :
Amortisation of intangible assets mpEEERH (E19)
(Note 19) 265 1,153
Depreciation of: E -
— property, plant and equipment —ME - -BEKREE
(Note 17) (M33E17) 123 1,484
— right-of-use assets (Note 18) —FERAREEE (1:18) 1,163 1,316
Auditor’s remuneration 12 S B B
- Audit services —BIZR 800 1,150
- Non-audit services —IEBIZART 240 240
Cost of inventories recognised REHERARPRER 2
in cost of sales FEMA 5,394 30,640
Lease expenses on short-term leases fEHAFAEZHERS 831 969
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 9. RIRAIEE @

2023
—m— =

—_——

HK$'000

FTET

Other (gains) and losses: Hth (Waas) RE548 -
Net loss on financial assets at FVTPL: AV (&t AIEH
SREEZBEFE
Realised gain on fair value change of & AFEFFAERZZ
financial assets at FVTPL (Note 29) ETHREEZATEES)
2 BERWE (H:329) (48) S
Unrealised gain on fair value BAFESFABRZ
change of financial assets at ETHMEEZATEE
FVTPL (Note 29) ZARERWE (HEE29) - (36)
Loss on fair value change of early eI B AT EES 2
redemption right (Note 29) 518 (F5E29) 878 839
Net loss on financial assets at FVTPL R AF(ET AEBHE 2
SRHEEZBIEFE 830 803
Net exchange gains PE &2 Ut 2 7% B (506) (2,166)
Write-off of property, plant and WEEY %~ BB KR B
equipment 51 18
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries  sEEHMIB AT 2 B8
(Note i) (M 5Ei) = 173
Gain on early redemption of corporate  1RHIEELIABIES 2 NG
bond (Note 36) (MF5E36) - (387)
Loss on non-substantial modification of AT f&E&HIEEAEFT
corporate bond (Note 36) 518 (Mf5E36) 3,198 4,700
Loss on modification of factoring loans {RIEEFET 2 E518
(Note 25) (M$5%25) - 4,625
3,573 7,772
Note: Bk -
0] The amount represents the cumulative reserves included in 0] ZRIEIE S IE I BB A B B AR PR OE SRR A ~

exchange reserve, other reserve and statutory reserve released HitnEE A EHEEME N Rt fEE -

upon deregistration of subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TR =

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_E_=F,BE=1+HILEE

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER ECL 10. EEAEEEERIETZRE
MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL {EA518 (J0pR#ELE)

2022
S —

— T ——

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THBIT

Impairment losses FESR, () BEEE
recognised/(reversed) on:

- Trade receivables (Note 24) — B EWERIE ([5E24) 17,600 14,634

— Other receivables (Note 28) —HthE U ERIE (f15E28) - 580

— Factoring receivables (Note 25) —RIBREWGRIE (15E25) 327,344 27,042

- Lease receivables (Note 26) —HEEWFIE (F5E26) 13,452 3,392
- Loan receivables (Note 27) — R ER (MEE27) 1,097 (16)
359,493 45,632

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. MR A
2023 2022
—E-= ==

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Guarantee fee on a borrowing B ERE 14 -
Interest on a borrowing ERZFE 81 -

Effective interest on corporate NEESFZERAIR

bonds (Note 36) (M35E36) 3,734 4,525
Effective interest on lease liabilities HEaGECERFE 180 306
4,009 4,831
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

11,188

(547)

(10,691)

(50)

Current tax: BNERAfRIE ©
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B EFTER
Underprovision/(overprovision) in B FERELRE
prior years: (BBEERME)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B EFTER
Deferred tax expense/(credit): REFRIERS (K S%) -
— Current year (Note 23) —AREFE FIEE23)
Income tax expense/(credit) from TREKEER 2
continuing operations Friginmx, (&%)
Income tax expense from a BARILREEE .
discontinued operation PSR

Total income tax expense

PRSI sz 4B 2R

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made since the
Group had no estimated assessable profits for the years
ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries of the Group in the
PRC is 25% for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

Pursuant to the EIT Law and its implementation rules,
dividends declared in respect of profit earned by the
PRC subsidiaries, and royalty receivable by non-PRC
corporate residents from the PRC enterprises are
subject to a withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless
reduced by tax treaties or arrangements.

1,271
1,221

RIFEFSRBARE cEREEERE
E2,000,00078 70 BY 7% F1| $28.25% 5 »
#83E2,000,00078 7T BY @ F) #216.5%1
Mo ARFEFESRMAHTESNESR
ERNENEELFE—TRE16.5%
BR -BARAERRBEE_ZT_=

CEC _HFANA=tHILFEETE
HETERRER B ERE B E
FRETIR o

RFEREEEMERE (TEEMRFR
&) REEFREREBRIGD > K&
EhENBATERNBE_S_=FK
B _HFARA=THILEEEMNRE
#3525%©

BEBEEEMMBREREBHREM >
o B B /8 7 B P B B 2 0 A T B K
ZRE > RIFFEEEERBEWSE
2 HriE B AIZ10%R KB Fail
M BRIFIRIRTS W E S L HER S ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

12. TAXATION (Continuea) 12.

A reconciliation of the taxation applicable to loss before
tax using the statutory rate for the location in which

Statements (continued)

RIE =

ERARAB IR M = PRER MR 20K
EREFSBBERRGRABEZRE

the Company is domiciled for tax purpose to the tax HRBERREAE 2NEBERASZ 2 H
expense at the effective tax rate are as follows: RaE

264

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FAT
Loss before tax from continuing BEREER
operations PRI7 AR 1B (490,100) (120,404)
Loss before tax from a BARIEREEE
discontinued operation PRI ARS8 (371) (1,242)
(490,471) (121,646)
Tax expenses at the Hong Kong Profits 12 & BHIEIRIE16.5%
Tax rate 16.5% STEMRIERY (80,928) (20,077)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  FAEJHIRMEAL 2R £
for tax purpose 83,508 35,133
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERRINAZRBEZE
tax purpose (133) (6,514)
Tax effect on temporary differences RS %E%#%Ez
not recognised M 8,383 (11,668)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIEFIIRIER B 2
Mg 2,514 843
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BB R FERIRIER 18
recognised = (4)
Tax effect of withholding tax on the ZIS;%@EPW%’&EZ
distributable profits of the Group's DE&)&&%UZE‘E?D Mz
PRC subsidiaries %ﬁi‘% wE = 1,205
Effect of tax concession MBERRZFE (224) (260)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEE#EE
subsidiaries operating in other SE B AT
jurisdiction NG s =% 1,472 2,918
Underprovision/(overprovision) in BEEERETIR
respect of prior years (FBEE#EE) 1,434 (367)
Income tax expense for the year FEMSRMAZ 16,026 1,221
Income tax expense/(credit) from FREREEB ZER
continuing operations X (&%) 16,009 (50)
Income tax expense from a BARILREEE
discontinued operation PSR 17 1,271
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

REMBHRRME @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 #HE_Z_=F,\B=1HILFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group
ceased and classified its Exhibitions and events
business operation as a discontinued operation due
to deterioration of operating results and financial
performance. The analysis of the results of the

13. BRI ESETE

BHE_E_—FXXBE=+tHILEFE"
AEBRKEXEAMBREEEM
RIFrHRESRIHEB 2 EE T
BEDEABRIELEER - B&IE
REEBEEDOMAOT !

discontinued operation is as follows:

2022

-
HK$'000
TFAET
Other income Ha A 95 16
Other gains and losses HhW iz R E518 — (36)
Selling expenses HERRS — Q)
Administrative expenses THREZ (466) (1,221)
Loss before tax PRIRAIES I8 (371) (1,242)
Taxation I8 (17) (1,271)
Loss for the year FERE (388) (2,513)

RECRIEKEXBZFERIESRE
DUF&IE !

Loss for the year from the discontinued operation
includes the following:

2023 2022
—— = N

—_—— e e

HK$'000

HK$'000
FHT FHBIT

Staff costs: BT :
Employee benefits expenses (including 1EE®@F B (B

directors’ emoluments) EEWE)
- Salaries, allowance and other benefit —%r< 285 & EMER] 230 849
- Retirement benefit scheme —RIREHFFT B
contributions 24 140
254 989
Other items: HiEH :
Depreciation of: TE .
- property, plant and equipment —ME - -BERRE - 3
- right-of-use assets —FREEE = 14
Lease expenses on short-term leases fEHAfHEZHEBS 69 53
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &HE_Z_=F,\B=1+HILFEE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 14 EEENRETUREAR

DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID = E S £

EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS

(i) Benefits and interests of directors () EFEFARELS

(@) Directors’ and chief executive's (a) EFRESTHASME

emoluments
The aggregate amounts of emoluments FR ARBRENESE KR
payable to directors and chief executive of BITHBABZME4EEET
the Company during the year are as follows: IS

2023 2022
—E=5F CECF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFAET
Fee e 993 1,027
Other emoluments: HABE
Salaries, allowance and e RN EY
benefits in kind Fz 1,268 1,269
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL 1,000 -
Retirement benefit scheme BRRENET B HR
contributions 42 46
Total st 3,303 2,342
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

14. “$?Eﬂﬁ@ﬁlx&£%%

= ®

(i) Benefits and interests of directors (i) EFwRAKER @)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive's @) EFERESTTHAEME

-

RIBEEBRERHISE383(1)
RRATE KEEMESE
FZERD) REIFE28 BER
RESITERASZME M

emoluments (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of directors) Regulation are as BUT:
follows:
2023
k- ok
HK$'000
TER
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Deng Zhonglin BB (ffsteRi)

(Note e and f) - = 611 469 1,000 s 2 8 1,632 67
MrWongYukLunAln  EERRGAE - S 600 600 - = 18 18 618 618
Mr. Lam Wai Hung (Note &) #1554 (HfsFa) - - 57 - - - 3 - 60 -
Non-executive director JEH{TEE
Ms. Huang Chian Sandy ~ &E#H %+ 240 240 - - - - - - 240 240
Independent BUkHTES

non-executive

directors
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki BRHEKLE 240 240 - - - - - - 240 240
Mr. Choi Hung Fai (Note b) &85 4 (f3tb) 240 20 - - - - - - 240 20
DrWorgkongTn, b ETEMLAT4L 240 20 - 5 - s = s 240 20
Mr.Qiu Peiyuan (Note ¢~ fhsiie e (Hiskc) - 67 - - - - - - 61
Mr.To Chun Wai (Note ) #3R B 55245 (Hfsd) 33 - - - - - - 33 -
Total remuneration FlES 993 1,027 1,268 1,269 1,000 - 42 4 3,303 2342
Notes: Pt -

(@  Mr. Lam Wai Hung was appointed as the executive (a) MEBLENR_ZT_=F/N
director of the Company on 6 April 2023. BRNBEZREARRBNT

BEo

(b)  Mr. Choi Hung Fai resigned as the independent b))  RIEEEENR ST =Ft
non-executive director of the Company on 16 July B+7NHEEEAABBILIE
2023. HiTES-

() Mr. Qiu Peiyuan resigned as the independent non- © ohRskER - —F+
executive director of the Company on 11 October B+—HEEERABBILIE
2021. HiTES-

(d  Mr.To Chun Wai was appointed as the independent @ HIREBEER-SE_=FH
non-executive director of the Company on 12 May BT+HEZEABEAREE
2023. UIEMITES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

4=AH
177 N =

B TS ER R MIEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

268

(@

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ and chief executive's
emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e) During the year ended 30 June 2023, discretionary
bonus of HK$2,500,000 was paid to an executive
director of the Company, Mr. Deng Zhonglin. Except
this, during the years ended 30 June 2023 and
2022, no bonus was paid to the other directors of
the Company. In addition, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to the executive directors
and independent non-executive directors as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or
as a compensation for loss of office.

() During the year ended 30 June 2023, Mr. Deng
Zhonglin waived discretionary bonus of an
aggregate amount of HK$1,500,000. Except this,
during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, no
director waived any emoluments.

(g Share options were granted to directors in respect
of their services to the Group, further details of
which are included in the disclosures in Note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the
Directors received retirement benefits
of approximately HK$42,000 (2022:
approximately HK$46,000).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the Directors received any
termination benefits during the year (2022:
HKSNil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the
Company did not pay consideration to any
third parties for making available directors’
services (2022: HK$Nil).

14.

EM‘HHHf
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Information about loans, quasi-

loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporates
and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 30 June 2023, there
was no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of the Directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected
entities of such Directors (2022: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Company's
business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2022: Nil).

The five highest paid employees of the Group
during the year ended 30 June 2023 included
two (2022: two) directors, details of whose
emoluments have been set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2022: three)
individuals are as follows:

muniaw

Salaries, allowance and

#e R ARBEYAN m

E BRI R R AR E B
7 1 1 B

EEME =

() BRUESR -AMESRZR
EHZBRMERRERR
mAZER EERREAM
RAEZEHR

BE_E_=,A=+
HIEEE TENEERA
REE 2 ZEGAE KA
BERASTDAZER #E
BERREMRZSZH (CF
T THFE ) o

() BEERRZ -ZHAEHZ
EDN 5

KRB A EET LN FERK
FREARFBEEFEZHE
ARIZEBAEMEBEEE
BeBERAREEEX
B Zikx% ZHRE
WCEZZF 18| -

BE_SE_=—F,\BA=1tHLHE
E-AERLLRSHEECRE
ME (CEZF  mR) ES
HMSHBEER L&t 26k
=% (CEIF =) A2
BNEI0F

2023

—_———

HK$'000
FHET

benefits in kind 1,085 1,904
Discretionary bonus P IBTEAT 70 106
Retirement benefit scheme BRIREH EHEHR

contributions 30 54
Total 4Est 1,185 2,064
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e MBERMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 14.

DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who
are not the directors and the chief executive
officer of the Company whose emoluments fell
within the following bands is as follows:

MW

EFETIRERUR AR
#EESME @

BRI LUT BN BRI 2 SFE S AR
NERBITHBABZRSHME
EABINT:

2023
—=E-=

HK$NIl to HK$1,000,000 AT E1,000,0008 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T E

1,500,000 75 - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 1,500,001 E

6,000,00078 7T - -
Total HESt 3 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during years ended
30 June 2023 and 2022.

In prior years, share options were granted to non-
director highest paid employees in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which
are included in the disclosures in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the consolidated financial
statements for the current year is included in
the above highest paid employees’ emoluments
disclosures.

15. DIVIDENDS 15.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 30 June 2023 (2022: HK$Nil).

REE_ZE_-"FRr"ZT"—
NBZ+THIEFE REBE N E
ERERCIETEZEF=E N ul- R |
O EARSIHEMBARERY
IR REHEABETEE-

RBEFE  XABMIFEER
BBl e 8 2 2~ = B AR 5 B 1K
SRHBRE BZFBEEHA
R M B ERARMEEIBRIIREE R
W HEABREN AT ETRS
RN R m R RS AT ER
RO BHERE ™ ﬁkﬁﬁﬁé
B RROVBERTHIN LR

ﬁMEEM%%W%%ﬂW°

(35

EEURRARABRE_S_=
AE=+ELFEZRERE (CF
I BB °
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4= A

e ARTEREME @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 #HE_Z_=

16. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

FRAZTHIEEE

16. SiRES1E

TABHEAANBLEEREAREEES
Bt EER LT8R -

2022
—E-
HK$'000
TFAET
(RENE] L))
(B&E5)
Loss E518
Loss attributable to owners of EABHEE ANEILER
the Company
From continuing operations REFEREE 506,109 120,354
From a discontinued operation KE RIS 388 2,513
506,497 122,867

Number of shares K& R
Weighted average number/number of FBRstEEREARK

ordinary shares for the purpose of BEHEE 2 ZER

basic and diluted loss per share MEFEHEE &8 1,943,894 1,855,903
For the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, the BE_ZS-—FRIZZZFXA

computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options as the exercise prices of the share options were
higher than the average market price of the shares of
the Company. The basic and diluted loss per share were
the same for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

=+ HLEEE BREREZITER
BRARBRMDFHEHE FILstE
ERBEHEERIBRREAQBRTT
FHNBREETFE - BEZZT =
TECEXB=tHILEEZS
REAR R EEEAER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ME - -BE KRG

Cost A
At 1 July 2021 R_B-—&

tB—H 2,534 2,891 263 6,731 12,419
Additions e 71 - - - 7
Write-off bi/Gie = (308) (75) - (383)
Exchange realignment BB R 55% (65) (62) ) - (130)
At30June2022and M-TZ_&F

1July 2022 AA=+ER

“EICHF

tB—H 2,540 2,521 185 6,731 11,977
Additions e - 59 - - 59
Disposals HE - (84) - - (84)
Write-off %lff—] (101) (424) (18) - (543)
Exchange realignment ER B (185) (162) (8) - (355)
At30June 2023  RTBTZfF

~E=1H 2,254 1,910 159 6,731 11,054
Accumulated B MERRAE

depreciation and

impairment
At 1 July 2021 R_B-—&

tB—H 2,349 2,496 246 5,561 10,652
Charge forthe year EEZH 153 154 10 1,170 1,487
Write-off b6 = (292) 71 = (363)
Exchange realignment ER:B%E (65) (58) (3) - (126)
At30June2022and M_ZB__&
1July 2022 ~AA=+ER
ZEICHF
tB—H 2,437 2,300 182 6,731 11,650
Charge for the year EEH (i59)

(Note 9) 59 63 1 - 123
Disposals HE - (84) - - (84)
Write-off b6 (101) (373) (18) - (492)
Exchange realignment ER:B%E (184) (146) (8) - (338)
At 30 June 2023 RZEZ=fF

~A=+H 2,211 1,760 157 6,731 10,859
Carrying amounts ERE{E
At 30 June 2023 RIEZ=F

~NA=1H 43 150 2 - 195
At 30 June 2022 A_ETTF

~NA=1H 103 221 3 - 327
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. (EFFHIESE

2023
—E-=
HK$'000
F#ET
Carrying amount FREE
Properties leased for own use BEREEYE - 2,133
For the year ended 30 June HEANB=1tHLEE
Carrying amount at beginning of REYZREE
the year 2,133 3,463
Depreciation (Note 9) e (FE9) (1,163) (1,330)
Impairment recognised in profit or loss MR iE& R ZIRE (970) -
- 2,133
Expenses relating to short-term leases  E255HAFA EABRERIRE 2 900 1,022
Total cash outflow for leases MEREMHAREE 2,340 2,640

For both years, the Group leased various offices for its
operations. Lease contracts were entered into for fixed
terms of 1 year to 3 years, but may have extension and
termination options as described below. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group has not early terminated leases for
properties for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

PREFER ZEEHERERA
ERREBEE -FIIUMEENZERE
RPN F—FEE=F BaEEFEET
Xtz 3E R R 4 1 B o FHE MR
ML E R EARETER S8
A MG RR B2 1 4 o 78 28 TE AR HA Ao 5T A
FRIHESHENEER  AEEREA
BHANERTEE SN RHEIHITH
AARS o

BE_Z_="FR-ZFTZ_F<A
=S+HEFE AEBTERANKL
YFEMEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BSEE
Cost 7S
At 1 July 2021 W2 —F+H—H 30,118
Exchange realignment E R A% 791

At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RIEZZFRA=1HK

- "FtHA—H 29,327
Exchange realignment e R AR (2,328)
At 30 June 2023 RZE2_=F,BA=+H 26,999
Accumulated amortisation and Rt iR E

impairment

At 1 July 2021 A _E_—Ft/F—H 27,908
Charge for the year FEZH 1,153
Exchange realignment B % (769)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 R_E_"FA=1THK

2 _F#+tBA—H 28,292
Charge for the year (Note 9) FEXZEH (W:H9) 265
Impairment recognised in profit or loss RIBm R 2 RE 730
Exchange realignment B R A% (2,288)
At 30 June 2023 R_E_=F,B=+H 26,999
Carrying amount IREE
At 30 June 2023 RZIEZ=FB=+H =
At 30 June 2022 RE__F#,xB=+H 1,035
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e M B EmRREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continuea)

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis

over the following periods:

Trademarks and brands

37 - 116 months

Particulars regarding impairment testing on intangible
assets are disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated

financial statements.

20. GOODWILL

19. B EE &

tErEERBARERAER =&
EERTLEEREBRENUTHBE R

AR fah#

I7ENGER

ERETEERENRZFBREGS

PA SRR EE2 14 B8 o

20. &

Cost 3%
At the beginning and end of the year ~ REHKRER 291,416 291,416
Accumulated impairment losses  E:itiE{EEE
At the beginning of the year REA] 162,384 50,966
Impairment loss recognised in RIBmER 2 R ERIE

profit or loss 129,032 111,418
At the end of the year RER 291,416 162,384
Carrying amounts IREE - 129,032

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill
are disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.

ERmBRENSZFENGESHH

RRMIEE214R R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

21.

276

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and
intangible assets that generate cash flows together with
the related goodwill set out in notes to the consolidated
financial statements have been allocated to four
individual CGUs (2022: four), comprising subsidiaries
in Fortune Selection Group cash generating units
(“Fortune Selection CGU") engaged in provision of
brand management and related services, subsidiaries
in Cheer Sino Group cash generating units (“Cheer
Sino CGU") engaged in provision of promotion and
consulting services, subsidiaries in the CIS Group (“CIS
CGU") and subsidiaries in Hananhal Group (‘Hananhal
CGU") engaged in provision of financing services. The
carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets (net
of accumulated impairment losses) as at 30 June 2023
and 2022 were allocated to these CGUS are respectively
as follows:

21. HEREREERERNR

MABEBARMES EERERENH
EBNETEEUKRGES M HRKRM T
FrEl BRI EmEE D Eaimﬁﬁﬁifﬁ
TELBMU(CEI4E C OEE)
f&EFortune Selecﬂon%lﬁﬁéi%fﬁ
RIBKTE A B (TFortune Selectionif &
EEEA) WEREAREERE
RIRRTS) ~ESEEBIRESEE B UMK
B e ((ESHREEEENM) (KF
IR E LR ~ W EE K
Brw (REREEEEM)) REL
FEENNBAR (MELXEREELE
Bfi)) (WHREMRERRE ﬁ?:ﬁ
CEERIBEZ_S,XB=+AH"
@B%Eﬁfﬁﬁéfﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁi&ﬁﬁ/
BE HREFHRERRE NEREAED
AT

2023 2023

k-t - —EC=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET

Fortune Selection CGU Fortune Selection

REELEQ - 2,087 - 1,035
Cheer Sino CGU ESREELEN - 126,511 - =
CIS CGU UHREEL SN - 334 - -
Hananhal CGU ERERSELEN - 100 - =
Total st - 129,032 - 1,035
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
IFEMRHRERMEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

21.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2023, with reference to
the professional valuation performed by the Peak Vision,
the management of the Group has determined that
an impairment loss of approximately HK$129,032,000
(2022: approximately HK$111,418,000) arose in relation
to goodwill allocated to certain groups of CGUs. There
were no material changes in the methodology and
sources of market data applied in the valuation between
2023 and 2022. After reviewing the performance of the
CGUs in 2023, the management of the Group revised
the carrying amounts of the CGUs downwards based
on cash flow forecasts. The cash flow forecasts, growth
rates and discount rate as at 30 June 2023 have been
reassessed taking into consideration higher degree of
estimation uncertainties due to the impact brought by
the COVID-19, the temporary suspension of businesses
due to the implementation of lock-down measures in
Shanghai and weakening of business economies in the
Mainland China.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs were determined
based on a value-in-use calculation with the assistance
of the independent professional qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. The calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the management. Assumptions were used in the
value-in-use calculation of the CGUs for the years
ended 30 June 2023 and 2022. The major underlying
assumptions on which management has based in
the preparation of cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill are summarised below:

Discount rate per annum — the discount rates used are
post-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs.

21. BERERSE

EREN @

BE_ZSZ_=ZF\A=tHLEE:
RB2EZIBRETHNEEHER K&
BEEEEERTE nkkEETREE
B4R E@ﬁﬁﬁié"]m‘? 032,000
Bt (ZTE 8 1 49111,418,000%8
)Mﬂ@%ﬁom_v__ﬁ&_
B F - ARGEENAERTIEE
R EEAEBL KBFR[M_T
T CERSESBAUNKEBER KE
EEEEREFERESRETER > THIR
CELEMNEEE - R_2-=

ANE=ZtHR REREEHBEX
KARIREEEH T R EEIE
COVID-19% 2R F £ BB MEE
BHES | B0 £ = 5 P o dth s 2
HEREMEE RS2 E Gt g
EME o

REeELEEANTWEEEEEHEAK
EEEBANBIIEXESREEMNG
BTRECHEGESEMET &t
BEREREEEMEZMBEREY
BErsBll Rt E_ZE =
FRIZEITFERA=ZTHILEFEW
ReELEANTEREEREERAR
HR-BIEENRRNIREMETENLUE
ﬁﬁ%/ﬁﬂﬁ R 5 B P o 1 B9 3= 2 AR B
BT

SEMBRER-FAEANMRRT KR
HEBRBEEZER BT ERIR
TELEBAURFERBZREBRNXK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

21.

278

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Budgeted revenue and budgeted profit margin —
management determined budgeted gross margins
based on past performance, existing sales contracts and
management expectations for the market development.

Terminal growth rate — the rate used is with reference
to the long term average growth rates and expected
market development.

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period, and at a discount rate
of 13.80% (2022: 13.06%). Since there was no positive
cash flow at terminal year, terminal growth rate is
not applicable (2022: Cash flows after the three-year
period were extrapolated using a 2% growth rate, after
considering the economic conditions of the market).

The trademarks and brands were assessed by the
Directors for impairment as part of the impairment
assessment of the brand management services as
the trademarks and brands belonged to the Fortune
Selection CGU for impairment testing purpose.

For the year ended 30 June 2023, impairment 0SS
of approximately HK$2,087,000 (2022: approximately
HK$29,749,000) has been provided as the budgeted
average revenue reduced to approximately
HK$637,000 (2022: approximately HK$2,204,000), and
the recoverable amount of this CGU was reduced
to HK$Nil (2022: approximately HK$3,122,000), and
impairment loss of approximately HK$730,000 (2022: no
impairment loss) has been allocated to intangible assets
with carrying amount HK$Nil (2022: approximately
HK$1,035,000). The impairment loss on goodwill arose
as a result of the less than satisfactory past and
expected performance of the Fortune Selection CGU.

21.

BEREREERENR @

REWRD KA EN X -EEERE
BEXE - RAPESOREEREN
TS ERERNTARUEEEREEN K

REERE-FIEANFRDESE
RIPFIHERRLFAIHTHER -

@ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ?r%@ﬁﬁ ERNEEE#ME
EHHEZL?z%E%ZEE%MLE%E
B'J » BHIRE A13.80% (Z&E -
13.06%) ° I ??@EFImEfﬁﬁ
e RIEREEXI A EA (—7——
FIREREMHEEANE  BH2%
EEDHE = FHEZRERE) °

MREBANRMES AR EENRREE
FAFortune SelectionIR= E4 B
EECHBERGBETRENS
AR EERDT BEFGHN—
ﬁo

BE_EZ_=—FA=1+tHLEFE>
BN EE U & R ZE £9637,00058 7T
(ZTEBZZHF 42,204,000 7T) » B
*?IﬁﬁﬁiﬁijTuﬁ@ﬁgﬁaﬁﬁ
TEIT (T2 TTHF 493,122,000
7T) E&Euﬂm,mﬁéﬂa%@z,osszooo%
TT (T 1 #929,749,000787T) »
BRI E/1EA730,000E T (ZEBE -
FIEBAERR ESEEEEES
THEIT (TETTF 491,035,000
7o) NEFEEE mEREBEDAR
Fortune SelectionIR&EE BB ER
FEHARIR N (EFT R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

21.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period, and at a discount rate
of 13.80% (2022: 13.06%). Since there was no positive
cash flow at terminal year, terminal growth rate is
not applicable (2022: Cash flows after the three-year
period were extrapolated using a 2% growth rate, after
considering the economic conditions of the market).

For the year ended 30 June 2023, impairment loss of
approximately HK$126,511,000 (2022: approximately
HK$81,669,000) has been provided as the budgeted
average revenue reduced to HK$Nil (2022:
approximately HK$22,559,000), and the recoverable
amount of this CGU was reduced to HK$Nil (2022:
approximately HK$126,511,000). The impairment loss on
goodwill arose as a result of the less than satisfactory
past and expected performance of the Cheer Sino CGU.

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period, and at a discount rate
of 17.20% (2022: 15.23%). Since there was no positive
cash flow at terminal year, terminal growth rate is
not applicable (2022: Cash flows after the three-year
period were extrapolated using a 2% growth rate, after
considering the economic conditions of the market).

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the management
of the Company determines that impairment loss of
approximately HK$334,000 (2022: HK$Nil) was provided
on CIS CGU as the budgeted average revenue reduced
to HKS$Nil and the recoverable amount of this CGU was
reduced to HK$Nil. The impairment loss on goodwill
arose as a result of the less than satisfactory past and
expected performance of the CIS CGU (2022: There
was no impairment on CIS CGU as the recoverable
amount was significantly above the carrying amount.
Management then believed that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
result in impairment).

21. BERERSE

EREANR @

FTREEFEERENEEEHE
Z = EHH%L?z%E%ZEE%MLE%E
Al BEIRE 513.80% (ZE -

13.06%) ° HX ??@EFImEfﬁﬁ
e RIEREEI A EA (—7——
FIREREMHLEANE  BH2%
RPN - FHECRERE) ©

BE_E_-—FXB=-+tHILFE"
HREETFHRERES ST (CE
T #922,559,000% 7T) c BZRSE
EEBUZOWESEEREST AT
(ZTEBZZ4F : #9126,511,00057T) >
2 5HR R E RS 18 49126,511,0008 75
(ZBT T £981,669,0007T) °H
EREREITENESRSELSEN
BEKTEHRRIBKEPTE

FTREEFEERENEERE#E
Z-_EFHEEEECRESRE=TE
A BRIREA17.20% (B2
1523%) EEﬁAﬁxiﬁ‘fEF“jtﬁﬁIEfE‘i\
e RRIEREXTAEA (CE-Z
F . REEMSKBENRRE  FEH2%
BEXDIHE - FHEZIRERE) °

BHE_ T -G B=THLFE"
ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬂ@%i’mmﬁﬁﬁﬁw
HWREERTT BZRsELEENY
BB EERES BT WA
IR B A4 BB i 5T R E A5 18 49334,000
BT(CEIZE TET cBHERE
BEDERNYHREEEEUBRER
FEHRBRAEMR(CEZZF #R
AUk El&3EE SR EREE » I E
VHIREESXEMNTRBE RAILE
BERA TRZERZ2EMNEE
ASEEBH A EEBURE) ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

21.

22.

280

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The value-in-use calculation used cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period, and at a discount rate
of 16.84% (2022: 16.18%). Since there was no positive
cash flow at terminal year, terminal growth rate is
not applicable (2022: Cash flows after the three-year
period were extrapolated using a 2% growth rate, after
considering the economic conditions of the market).

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the management
of the Company determines that impairment loss of
approximately HK$100,000 (2022: HKS$Nil) was provided
on Hananhal CGU as the budgeted average revenue
reduced to HK$Nil and the recoverable amount of this
CGU was reduced to HK$Nil. The impairment loss on
goodwill arose as a result of the less than satisfactory
past and expected performance of the Hananhal CGU
(2022: There was no impairment on Hananhal CGU as
the recoverable amount was significantly above the
carrying amount. Management then believed that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not result in impairment).

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s significant subsidiaries as at
30 June 2023 are set out as follow:

2023
_ECCE

Dazhi Ruoyu Entertainment Information ~ The PRC Registered capital
Technology (Hainan) Co,, Ltd. * (Note (i) RMB50,000,000
AEEREEHS (58 ARAT HE FHERARE
k() 50,000,007
Faithful Progress Limited BVI Ordinary US$1
Faithfl Progress Limited EBRUHE L@En
Furuida Financial Leasing (Shenzhen) The PRC Registered capital
Co, Ltd. * (Note (i) 15$10,000,000
RRERERE () BRAF HE S EA10,000000% 7
k)
Great Getter Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1
NEERAT &k LRAT

21.

22.

BEREREERENR @

@ﬁﬁf‘;@?r%@ﬁﬁ ERNEEEHME
= FH Eﬁ“ﬁ%zfﬁ%mg%ﬁ
/EJ ) BRIRE 416.84% (ZE -
16%% EKE%EFimEﬁﬁ
e RIEREEI A EA (— = —
FRERMBKBRRE  EH2%
BEXDEE =FHRBZRERS)

BHE_ZE _—HFA=1+HLEE:"
AREIBEEETE ANEEFEHK
mAEZSET BZREELE N
JWRESEERES BT WL E
ZERETELBEMIRABERERY
100,000 7T (ZEZ—F : THBT) °
HEREEEITENEZEREESE
BUBERERRREXIERR (T
“IF  EHRYKREIEREESNRRE
B IR ELEREELEE (Ut

EAE RILERERA  ERS
BRI SR RS H TG
RE) ©

EFEMB AT ZEH#1R

KA _E_=ZF,"B=+HZ=*
BB AR ZEBEHINMT -

2023
_ECCE

- 100% 100%  Trading of goods, provision
of promotion services

BAmEs REEERS

Provision of bar brand
services
RAGELRIBRE
Provision of finance lease
services
RAEREHERE

= 100% 100%

= 100% 100%

- 100% 100%  Provision of operating
Services

TRt R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_—E_=F,"BE=1+HILEE

22. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 22. FEMBATIZEE @
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and fully Percentage of equity and voting power
Place of paid ordinary attributable to the Group
incorporation/ share capital/ SEEELRERRRZRAN
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
BREARER
WEAT AT AL/ BEHE  BEREL/ERES E# i TEEH
2022
- Sl
Greatest Best Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 = = 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEERAT Y ER1En REZR
Great Wisdom-entertainment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - = 100% 100%  Provision of promotion
International Limited services
AEERERERAR Y ER1En REEERE
I-Lend Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 = = 100% 100%  Provision of loan and
financing
RAEHHERAR Y E1000087 REETRHE
Mega Entertainment & Fair Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 = = 100% 100%  Organisation of exhibitions
(Hong Kong) Limited and events
BRRLREE (F%) 5RAT Y £11,000,000E 7 BRREENED
Nod (Shanghai) Culture Development The PRC Registered capital - = 100% 100%  Provision of brand identity
Ltd. * (Note () RMB1,180,000 design services
% (L8) EERARAR () & HRERARE R RIER SRR
1,180,0007
Nod (Shanghal) Management The PRC Registered capital = = 100% 100%  Provision of bar and club
Communication Co, Ltd. * US$1,500,000 membership, wine
(Note (i) and liquor promotion,
event planning and
comprehensive consulting
services
#E (L) PEEREHARAT HE FHAEAR1,500000% 7 RUBRREMER HE
() REEER ERIR
SEAARE
NOVA (HK) Yachting Limited® Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 = = = 100%  Investment holding
HEBRELBERAT Y ER1En REZR
Phebe (Shanghai) Brand Management The PRC Registered capital - = 100% 100%  Provision of brand
Limited * (Note () RMB1,180,000 management and related
downstream services
FRE (LR RBEBERAT (H:0) & ARERARE RUSRERRIEE TR
1,180,0007 &%
Shanghai Chongya Business Development  The PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Trading of wine and fiquor
Co, Ltd. * (Note (i) RMB10,000,000
TERTHEEREREMAD () +& HRERARE BEHERER
10,000,007
Shanghai Dazhi Ruoyu Information The PRC Registered capital - = 100% 100%  Provision of software and
Technology Co., Ltd. * (Note (i) RMB15,000,000 technology services
LEABERERREARAR (M=) hE HRERARHE AR REARY
15,000,007
Shanghai Lin Yun Exhibition Service The PRC Registered capital = = 100% 100%  Organisation of exhibition
Limited Liability Company * (Note (i) RMB1,000,000 and trade shows
TEBRECERBEERELAR (M) +& ARERARE FHREERESRY
1,000,0007c
Shanghai Phebe Food & Beverage The PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Provision of brand
Management Co,, Ltd. * (Note (i) RMB5,000,000 management and related
downstream services
LEEREARERERAT HE EHERARHE REDBERRER TR
(F3EG) 50000007 ey
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

22. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 22. FEMBATIZHE @

SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

2023
Z8Z=

Shanghai Shouxin Commercial Factoring ~ The PRC Registered capital -
Co, Ltd. * (Note (i) RMB100,000,000
FETEBLEREERAR (k) P& HRERARE
100,000,000

Shenzhen Qianhai Yuanchen Culture The PRC Registered capital -
Development Co,, Ltd. * (Note (i) RMB10,000,000
REETRXEEEERAR HE HMERARE
() 10,00000075

Yamiao (Shanghai) Cultural Development  The PRC Registered capital -
Co, Ltd. * (Note (i) RMB10,000,000
D5 (L8) VEEBEREAAT HE FRERARE
(B3HG) 10,000,00070

- The English names of these companies represent management’s
best efforts at translating the Chinese names of these
companies as no English names have been registered.

L The subsidiary had been deregistered during the year.
Notes:
(i) Limited liability company registered in the PRC.

(if) Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group,
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of all the subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive lengths.

The Group had no subsidiaries which have material
non-controlling interests for the years ended 30 June
2023 and 2022.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding during both years ended 30 June 2023 and
2022.

2023
—ECZE

- 100% 100%  Provision of credit factoring
services
RECERERE

- 100% 100%  Provision of contracting and
entertainment equipment
solution services

REAORBEZERR
FERS

- 100% 100%  Provision of contracting and
entertainment equipment
solution services

RERORREZERA
LES

* HRZERAR L BB LA WZE
RYLBHEEERBETIXLBRENE
=,

E ZWB AT R EREN-
R
(i) REEMARSEAT

@iy  HPEEMzIEEE R

ERFAIIHZAEBWB AT JHE
ERR/EEERZEENEEEFEKXR
FEE-BEERXR L ERENER
BZE gTERBN IR

RBE_E_=FKR_ZT__F;<AH
=t+HEFE AEBRTENB AR
BERERIFERERD

NHE_ZE-= TET KA

=t+HRLEMEFE ZEWB LM
BEMBREBEZEHES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

23. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 23. REMBEEE
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year BRERBEERFEANES B RA
are as follows: IS.c
At 1 July 2021 RN_E_—F+tF—H 809 - 809
Credited/(charged) to the BEFEHFSER

consolidated profit or loss A (05

for the year (724) 11,415 10,691
Exchange realignment ER AR 1 (352) (351)
At 30 June 2022 and S

1 July 2022 ANB=tTHK

—E-F
+tHA—H 86 11,063 11,149
Charged to the consolidated ~ BEE&F&1BmFMRG

profit or loss for the year (fFzE12)

(Note 12) (61) (11,063) (11,124)
Exchange realignment QA (4) = (4)
At 30 June 2023 RZEZ=%

~NB=+H 21 - 21

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had unused estimated N _E - ZFEXA=+H ~EEW
tax losses of approximately HK$22,988,000 (2022: RE) A A F R IEE1E4922,988,000/8 7T
approximately HK$9,114,000) available for offset T/ T 499,114,000% 7T) B A
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been IR R AR A o 7 R 2K i F1) 2R R
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit RO FEH] B R RS IR IR TEE E o
streams.

Deferred tax assets for impairment allowance for credit HRESEIRARBEZS_=F/A
loss was derecognised as the Directors considered =+ HIEFERKOIES BHEER
it is not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be A PR RRERIBE E 0 WELE
available to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilised BEFEERERER LEDIRLERIER
during the year ended 30 June 2023. Eo

02/2FER « BREBERERAR 080



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TR =

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_E_=F,BE=1+HILEE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. B R EWKFIE
2022
=
HK$'000
FET
Trade receivables from contracts REFEFEHNNES
with customers FEU IR 34,934 42,642
Less: impairment allowance A RERE (29,959) (14,243)
4,975 28,399
The Group has a policy of allowing trade customers rEBZHEARNEZERIEH®ZE
with credit terms of normally within 90 days except for BH—RABBE0R  tHREE 2
trading of goods which credit terms are normally 1 to EEH—RAB1E6ER - &NRIEBT
6 months. Settlement is made in accordance with the RRREERERZ 2640905 BE K
terms specified in the contracts governing the relevant AT AEE I ENH B 5 UK
transactions. The Group does not hold any collateral BERFEEAERREMEERA
or other credit enhancement over its trade receivables B c B ER SR RIBIRERS
balances. The ageing analysis of trade receivables net of Bif, #ZHRLY 2 85 rEEIE
impairment allowance as at the end of reporting period, (bR EREE) ZREDTWOT ¢

based on dates on which services rendered/invoice
dates, is as follows:

2022

—E-C
HK$'000
FAET
0-30 days 0Z30H 144 1,880
31-60 days 312 60H 147 546
61-90 days 61290H 175 252
91-180 days 91ZF180H 1,021 7,596
181-365 days 181&E365H 1,527 16,365
Over 1 year 1= E 1,961 1,760
4,975 28,399
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TR =

For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_—E_=F,"BE=1+HILEE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cortinued) 24. BHEWTRIE @
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables which are BREHAEEKNEZEZRWRIEZ
past due but not yet impaired is as follows: IREQDITINT -
2022
 HK$'000
FHBT
0-30 days 0&30H 1,129 1,937
31-60 days 31E60H 155 2,103
61-90 days 61E90H 168 3,402
91-180 days 91E180H 822 9,188
181-365 days 181&2365H 1,723 5,124
Over 1 year fii=picy kS 964 221
4,961 21,975
As at 30 June 2023, in respect of those included in A _E_=FXB=Z+H RBFA
the Group’s trade receivables with carrying amount of FEBBZRUARBEREERN
approximately HK$34,920,000 which are past due, the 34,920,000 Ttz BEBEEARIEM S » &
Group has taken actions, including but not limited to EEEHREITE (BEERRRIER
legal actions, to recover the balances. The Directors 178) WEIEREER - EER R Z2F
considered these trade receivables are credit-impaired. B EWHEE S EERE.
The movements in impairment allowance on trade B RWFERERE 2 ESWT

receivables are as follows:

2022
 HK$'000
TFAT
At the beginning of the year REH) 14,243 838
Amounts recognised during FAEDERFEE
the year, net 17,600 14,634
Amounts written off EE =8 — (780)
Exchange realignment FE R AT (1,884) (449)
At the end of the year REXR 29,959 14,243
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables BB 5 RWRIER BT G 255 1EH
are set out in Note 5(b) to the consolidated financial RER &M FBHRMIEE5(D)
statements.

2022/23F FHR o HBEBMERAMRAT 2685



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_E_=F,BE=1+HILEE

25. FACTORING RECEIVABLES 25. (RIBFEURTRIE
2022
—E-—
HK$'000
FHBT
Factoring receivables RIBFEFRIE 489,383 447,695
Interest receivables from factoring RIEFEWERIB Z FEWLH 2
receivables 16,824 1,113
Less: impairment allowance A RERE (337,894) (26,663)
168,313 422,145
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis HERSHR REBEENIHEBRZRF
of factoring receivables, net of impairment allowance, BERIE FOBRBERE) 2 RERD
based on the maturity dates of the contracts, is as W
follows:
2022
s —fF
HK$'000
FHET
0-30 days 0Z30d - 39,729
31-90 days 31E90H - 114,842
91-365 days 91E365H - 267,574
Overdue BHA 168,313 -
168,313 422,145
The factoring receivables granted to customers are BT 5PN RIERYRIE R 3H A
measured at amortised cost and generally for a period FE —RAHONEARAE=F KT
of 4 months to 3 years. The effective interest rates of ET=FRA=1TH RERKIE
factoring receivables as at 30 June 2023 ranged from HNEBEFEFNENF2.11%E5.72% (=
2.11% 10 5.72% (2022: 8.57% t0 17.06%) per annum. BT TF I 857%E17.06%) ©
As at 30 June 2023, all of the Group’s factoring RIE_=FB=+8 > xE£EFT
receivables have defaulted in payments of either BRIERUERIEHIER M E 3K
interest or principal and the Group has taken actions, > MAEESHEITE (BEERR
including but not limited to legal actions, to recover ERITE) BB RAARR - EHT
the balances. The Directors considered all factoring Ao FMERERKMEBEHEZEEEE
receivables are credit-impaired. VERIER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

4= A

A REMEE 6

For the year ended 30 June 2023 #HE_Z_=

25. FACTORING RECEIVABLES (Continuec)

For the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group has
renegotiated the contractual terms with factoring
arrangement customers to waive their interest or
extend the repayment. Based on the assessment
performed by the Group, all factoring receivables
are regarded as non-substantial modification. The
modification loss amounting to approximately
HK$4,625,000 was recorded in profit or loss for the year
ended 30 June 2022. During the year ended 30 June
2023, factoring arrangement customer who extended
the repayment had fully settled the balance.

The movements in impairment allowance on factoring
receivables are as follows:

FRAZTHIEEE

25. (RIBFEURTRIE ()

BE_T__HFAXA=tHLEHFE"
AERRFREZHEREMEDS
MR U RF S SHIERER R
BAREBRETZHE PRERERIK
MIEARERIFEREST - BE_T
“TEARNB=+tHLEFE  EFIEE
#94,625,000B Tt ARm B E_—F
“ZEARBZ=THLEFE EHREN
WREZHIE R EERE IR

RIBRUWRIHRERE . SSHMT !

2022

 HK$'000

FHET

At the beginning of the year REH) 26,663 468
Amounts recognised during the year, net &£ (N R £ 28,548 327,344 27,042
Exchange realignment PE % (16,113) (847)
At the end of the year REXR 337,894 26,663

Details of impairment assessment of factoring
receivables are set out in Note 5(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

B RRIEEWRIE 2 R BT 2515
IR G M B EHRARMTEESD) °

26. LEASE RECEIVABLES 26. THEEWFIE
2022
=
HK$'000
FAET
Lease receivables from sale-leaseback &1 LA HZZHE
transactions FE U Zh1E 18,179 19,479
Less: impairment allowance AR ERE (15,954) (3,343)
2,225 16,136
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

26.

288

LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
lease receivables from sale-leaseback transactions, net
of impairment allowance, based on the maturity date of
the contracts, is as follows:

26. THEEUTNIE &)

RESHR REGHIHANER
B 5 2 A E R IRIE GO E
B ZIREDFUT

2023

HK$'000

FET
0-30 days 0ZF30H - 2,718
31-90 days 31E90H - 3,119
91-365 days 91&2365H - 10,299
Overdue 7w HA 2,225 -
2,225 16,136

All leases are denominated in RMB. Lease receivables
from sale-leaseback transactions are measured at
amortised cost and generally for periods of 3 years. The
effective interest rate of the lease receivables from sale-
leaseback transactions as at 30 June 2023 was 2.78%
(2022: ranged from 7.17% to 10.00%) per annum.

As at 30 June 2023, all of the Group's lease receivables
from sales-leaseback transactions have defaulted in
payments, past due and the Group has taken actions,
including but not limited to legal actions, to recover the
balances. The Directors considered all lease receivables
from sales-leaseback transactions are credit-impaired.

The movements in impairment allowance on lease
receivables from sale-leaseback transactions are as
follows:

FIEHEUAREHE EREMAR
SZERWARIBIREHN A2
—RAME - R-ZE-=FXA=+
BrE80EXZ2HEERRRIEZ
BREENKAE278% (CB__F /T
F7.17%=10.00%) ©

A B =FENA=+H AEE
BEROEX S 2 HERKZIESEHE
RASR B MAEBEBRETH

(BIEEREREARTE) WEIEME
ER-EERA MBERLOERS
ZHERKRRIELEBEEERE

EREIER 5 2 HERWRIENREE
BENEHNT

2023

HK$'000

FAT
At the beginning of the year REA] 3,343 57

Amounts recognised FRHEDEERFEE

during the year, net 13,452 3,392
Exchange realignment fE R R EE (841) (106)
At the end of the year REFR 15,954 3,343
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

26.

27.

LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Details of impairment assessment of lease receivables
are set out in Note 5(b) to the consolidated financial
Statements.

Leasing arrangements

There was no unguaranteed residual value in
connection with lease arrangements or contingent lease
arrangements of the Group that needed to be recorded
as at the end of the reporting period.

26.

THEFEWFRIE &)

10 E PR IE R E ST RIS B B 4R
BRI AMEESD) o

HERHF
RREMHR AEETEFREER
ﬁ%g?ﬁﬂgﬁﬁFZﬂ%%{%%ﬁﬁfﬁ

LOAN RECEIVABLES 27. FEWE =
2023
—E=5F
HK$°000
FET
Loan receivables e E RN 1,500 12,000
Interest receivables from loan EWERZ EWFIE
receivables 48 194
Less: impairment allowance AR ERE (1,117) (20)
431 12,174

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
loan receivables, net of impairment allowance, based on
the maturity date of the contracts, is as follows:

RESHAR RESGHIHAZEBIK
B (ORI ERR) REDRWT

2023
“E=HF
HK$'000
FAT
0-30 days 0Z30Hd = 90
31-90 days 31&290H = 103
91-365 days 91E365H = 11,981
Overdue B 431 =
431 12,174
Loan receivables granted to customers are measured BYFERNEI i‘f#?ﬁzféﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁxﬁr
at amortised cost and generally for 12 months. The loan 2 —RPBANER - R _E_=
receivables were unsecured with an effective interest FRB=TH EBRERASEIEH
rates at 2.22% (2022: 8.00%) per annum as at 30 June BREMNEKEH222% (ZE__F:
2023. 8.00%) °
During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group’s loan BHE_Z_="F,A=+HIEFEE"
receivable from a customer with principal amount of WIS 3%8 000,00078 7t =z 2~ £ (& FE UL
HK$8,000,000 had been repaid HK$6,500,000. As at —%%Jf'ié B 183486,500,00078 7T ©

30 June 2023, this loan receivable has defaulted in
payments and the Group has taken actions, including
but not limited to legal actions, to recover the balance.
The Directors considered this loan receivable is credit-

impaired.

2022/23F FHR o HEREBERABRAR

\_7_—¢/\H +TH ZEWE
RIS R 2 T AS 5 B 3 BRER AT &) (’j
1 B R IR A 17 8) WD) Bk

%%JE% ZEWERBEEHERE Dz
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_E_=F,BE=1+HILEE

27.

28.

290

LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 27. BRE®R @
The movements in impairment allowance on loan FEWE BB ERFENEZSHNT -

receivables are as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= . ——
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFAET
At the beginning of the year REH) 20 36
Amounts recognised/(reversed) FERHRT, (BE) £58 575
during the year, net 1,097 (16)
At the end of the year REXR 1,117 20
Details of impairment assessment of loan receivables FEWER R ETENEBHN e
are set out in Note 5(b) to the consolidated financial IR FMIEES(D) ©
statements.
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 28. JAfIRRIE « e R H YR
OTHER RECEIVABLES I8

2022
BT F
HK$'000
TFAT
Current assets MBEE
Prepayments TEfTRIB 719 815
Deposits BmE 647 515
Other receivables (Note) HahpEuwEIa (M) 2,083 2,111
3,449 3,441
Non-current assets ERBEE
Rental deposits HEEe - 442
Total st 3,449 3,883
Note: Pt -
As at 30 June 2023, included in other receivables was an amount due AR =FA=+H HtEWEIASERE
from a director of approximately HK$2,039,000 (2022: HK$Nil) which is U — 2 B ERIEL2,039,0008 7T (CE__F :
unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand. TET)  ARIKF - RERBEREREER
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_—E_=F,"BE=1+HILEE

28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 28. FA(IFRIA « 375 K H th FE UL TR
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) I8 ®
The movements in impairment allowance on other HMEWRIBENREREGENESW
receivables are as follows: TS <
2023 2022
—E=F -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year REH) - 8,006
Amounts recognised during FAEDERFEE
the year, net - 580
Amounts written off iE & 28 - (8,586)
At the end of the year REXR = =
Details of impairment assessment of other receivables H IR IE R E T s B E N 4R
are set out in Note 5(b) to the consolidated financial BB FRMIEESD)
statements.
29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 29. E'AEF{E%ME&ZEEEE
2023 2022
—E=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Early redemption right of NEMEFIRRIERE#
corporate bonds - 878
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong &R LhZ R#EESH - 269

- 1,147
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 &HE_Z_=F,\B=1+HILFEE

29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL continved)  29. AT HEETAIEE ZEME

E#®)
Details of financial assets at FVTPL are as follow: BB ATEFABR L THEE Y
FEIBUWT
Early
redemption Equity
right of securities
corporate listed in
bonds Hong Kong Total
PEESF REBLHZ
2 5 BB [0 1 IeHESE 55 4act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHETT
At 1 July 2021 A _EBE_—F+tH—H 1,717 233 1,950
(Loss)/gain on change N EEE (58) /
in fair value W (839) 36 (803)
At 30 June 2022 and ATE T
1 July 2022 ~A=+HEK
“E-"F+HB—H 878 269 1,147
Disposal HE - (317) (317)
(Loss)/gain on change in RTEES (BE) W@
fair value (Note 9) (PE9) (878) 48 (830)
At 30 June 2023 AE=HE
A~NA=1+AH - - -
Details of fair value measurement are disclosed in Note EREATEFENFEBER G HER
5(c) to the consolidated financial statements. R E5(CIRE ©
30. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 30. TR PITLHEER
2022
 HK$'000
FET
Cash and bank balances REMIBITHER 2,400 71,758
Less: restricted bank balance (Note) B 2 IRHIERITAE AR (M ED) (57) -
Cash and cash equivalents in FEHERERANIRS
the consolidated statement of RIEEEMEIER
cash flows 2,343 71,758
Note: FiE -
Among the bank balances of the Group as at 30 June 2023, AEBR_ZZ=FB=1+HZRTEH+T"
approximately HK$57,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB53,000) was #957,00074 7T (FEE R A AR 153,00070) EafFzh
restricted by the bank due to litigation which is set out in Note 44 to the (B4R & TSR KRMI5E44) T BRI TR

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_—E_=F,"BE=1+HILEE

30. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)  30. IRERIRITEEER @

At 30 June 2023, the Group's bank balances and cash AR =ZFSA=Z+H KER
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately UAREBAENRITERERE
HK$532,000 (2022: approximately HK$65,900,000). #A%9532,0008 T (ZTE-"F 1 4
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject 65,900,000/ 7t) - AR IERIRAINE
to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations A ST E B SN B E IR R R A B
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of EEMITESERE
Foreign Exchange Regulations.
Bank balances carry interest ranging from 0.01% to IRTEMREEK0.01%E1.0% (Z=F
1.0% (2022: from 0.1% t0 0.35%) per annum. T F I 01%E0.35%) 5t R
31. TRADE PAYABLES 31. BB ERIA
2022
T F
HK$"000
FHBT
Trade payables B S ENRIE 2,573 3,420
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables BERSHAR BRBEZERHHAZIZ
presented on the basis of the dates of the invoices at BIENRIBEZRE DA :

the end of reporting period:

0
=S -
HK$'000
FHET
0-30 days 0&E30H 20 1,455
31-60 days 31E60H - =
61-90 days 61E90H - =
91-180 days 91ZE180H - =
181-365 days 181&365H 744 14
Over 1 year HBiE1E 1,809 1,951
2,573 3,420

The average credit period ranged from 0-180 days. FHEERNFOE180H Z M e
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_E_=F,BE=1+HILEE

32.

294

REMBHRRMEE @

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

. BHER

2022
S —

— T ——

HK$'000
FHBT

Brand management and oh B 1R R AR RE AR 75
related services 733 1,370
Trading of goods EmE S 162 178
895 1,548

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities and how much relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior
periods.

TRITREFEEREEGNE AR
SO U ok S BE R P B T HARSI B B 2 AR
BAE RS AI R 28

2022
T F
HK$'000
FAET
Revenue recognised that was REFStASHER
included in the contract liabilities BRI BRI E
balance at the beginning of the year
— Brand management and related — e B IR AR RARR TS
services 649 4,252
- Trading of goods —HmE S 14 108
663 4,360

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Brand management and related services

The Group receives upfront lump sum payments from
the customers before the commencement of use of
license and monthly fee in advances for the brand
management services rendered from the certain
customers at the beginning of each month. The upfront
lump sum and advance payment result in contract
liabilities being recognised.

W RSN AESEER TSN —
BRI T

an h% B 38 K A8 R AR 75

REBERERR AEBREF K
W—ZBENRIR kIR SRR
R EER A T &P WETRN
RE - —TBRARBRRBMNRER
EBENEaR-
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_—E_=F,"BE=1+HILEE

32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 32. SEAaE W
Trading of goods HmE 5
The Group receives upfront lump sum payments from RERERERFPA AEERET
certain customers before the goods are transferred to ERWE—RIBFEMRIB —RIBTE
customers. The upfront lump sum payments result in NRESHEIENEE BEEE SR
contract liabilities being recognised until the control of HEFEEER BmReXPIEe
the goods has been transferred, being the goods has EEPES) Bl
been delivered and accepted by the customers.

33. LEASE LIABILITIES 33. iiG&fE
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRIIAKAREMRAEERRES
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of B RFENEEBER

the current reporting period:

At 30 June 2023 At 30 June 2022
RZE-_=%,-A=1H RZB-__F#,B=+H
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease

payments  payments payments payments
RIEHAE RIEHAE REHEE REHE
fIRRE (AL IHRE (g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TET

Within 1 year —ERN 1,155 1,200 1,260 1,440
After 1 year but within —FL HERBBME
2 years - - 1,155 1,200
1,155 - 2,415 2,640
Less: total future interest B RRFSES R
expenses (45) (225)
Present value of lease liabilities FEE&ERE 1,155 2,415
The incremental borrowing rate applied by the Group BE_Z_-"FRIZZZFA
was 10.39% per annum for the years ended 30 June =t+BHLEFEE - AEBECRAZIEE
2023 and 2022. EREFZEZ10.39%
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 &HE_Z_=F,\B=1+HILFEE

34. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

34. [Est B AR HE &G RIE

2022

HK$'000

FHET

Accruals FEstE M 2,476 2,740

Other payables (Note) HpEMRIE (5 5,880 4,646

8,356 7,386

Note: BEE

As at 30 June 2023, included in other payables were an amount ﬁ’:‘_v__ﬁ/\}% +H > EfEMRIERER

of approximately HK$3,380,000 (equivalent to RMB3,000,000) for a
compensation due to breach of contract term as a result of litigation
which is set out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements..

BRMERMESE Z Tk @RS M BRE
Mﬁzam) BE{E £ 493,380,000 7T HEER AR
3,000,0007T) ©

35. BORROWING 35. f&™
2022
s —fF
HK$'000
TFAT
Bank loan RITEM 3,235 -
As at 30 June 2023, the bank loan of RMB3,000,000 RIEZ=ZFXB=1+H RITEMR
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,235,000) is interest A E #3,000,0007t (18E 72 493,235,000
bearing at an interest rate of 3.8% per annum, which is HBIT) BMEFFEI3 8% B A EILIF
unsecured, guaranteed by a director of the Company HARBE —REBEEMHEBERKREA
and his spouse, and repayable within one year. —FREER
296 NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

4= AH
177 N =

B TS ER R MIEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

36. CORPORATE BONDS

36. AFIESH

The carrying amount of corporate bonds recognised NI EARET 2 ABESFREES
at the end of the reporting period was calculated as qor

follows:

At 1 July 2021 \ZTEZ—FtHBE—H 2,895 952 1,966 60,952 66,765
Redemption f&[o] (3,000) = (2,000 (24,000) (29,000)
Gain on early redemption REBR W& - = = (381) (381)
Loss on non-substantial FERBIT 2 EE

modification - - - 4,700 4,700
Effective interest expenses EEFEHY 293 104 52 4,076 4,525
Less: interest paid B BAFE (188) (62) (18) (5,834) (6,102)
At 30 June 2022 and R_E-_FB=+H

1 July 2022 E_EBE__F#tA—H = 994 - 39,513 40,507
Redemption f&[o] - (1,000) = - (1,000)
Repayment of handling fee BEFEE - - - (360) (360)
Loss on non-substantial FEERET 2 E18 (MiE9)

modification (Note 9) - - - 3,198 3,198
Effective interest expenses EERA SR (H:E11)

(Note 11) - 14 - 3,720 3,734
Less: interest paid BERE - (8) - (5,400) (5,408)
At 30 June 2023 A ZEZ=FXA=1H - - - 40,671 40,671
Notes: L
() In June 2018, the Group issued an unsecured corporate bond @ RIE—NERA AEEBTAEE

(“Bond 1”) with principal amount of HK$3,000,000, carrying
interest at the rate of 6.25% per annum payable annually for a
term of 4 years, which will be due on 11 June 2022. The effective
interest rate is 10.21% per annum. The Company has the right
to redeem the outstanding principal amount at agreed time
before the optional redemption dates, which are 11 June 2019,
11 June 2020 and 11 June 2021 with at least 7 clear business
days written notice, but the bondholder has no right to require
the Company to redeem the corporate bond. The redemption
right is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements
since the Directors consider that the probability of exercise of
the redemption right is remote. The Directors have considered
the fair value of the redemption right at initial recognition is
insignificant. Accordingly, the fair value of the redemption right
was not accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
as at 30 June 2022 and 2021.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group has fully
redeemed the Bond | with principal amount of HK$3,000,000.

2022/23F FHR o HEREBERABRAR

#3,000,0008 w2 |IKW A EES (&
Hl1) 6. 25% 2 FRIEHE  BEFZ
—% > FHRANF N2 Z"FAH
+—BEI - BREFEA10.21% KA
BEEPNEEEELRBR 22 —N%F
/\54’ H-ZE-"Z2FB+—HKZ
E_—FXBt—HRZEECRBE B
BEVCEREEXR CERBHER
HARBEZ AT BESFEAEREE
KRARQBBEEIARES - BRI G4
EUBRERAER RRAZESIAITE
EO#Z O REEEM - EERANRT T’
REFELEZ AFENLREK - ALL B
@%z@?@ﬁxﬂ_ﬁ::ﬁﬁ:g

—EXRNAZTHZEEMBEHRENT]
iRo

BHE_Z__F,BA=1tHIEFEEN &
E BB YERLES|» A% 7643,000,000
BITe
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36. CORPORATE BONDS (continued) 36. AFIES »®

298

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

In August 2018, the Group issued an unsecured corporate bond
through a placing agent with principal amount of HK$1,000,000,
carrying interest at the rate of 6.25% per annum payable semi-
annually for a term of 4 years, which will be due on 16 August
2022 (“Bond II"). The effective interest rate is 10.46% per annum.
The Company may at any time before the maturity date of the
bond, redeem the bond by giving not less than 10 business
days’ prior written notice at 100% of the principal amount of
such bond together with payment of interest accrued thereon
up to the date of redemption. Subject to the conditions of the
bond instrument, the bondholder shall not have the right to
request the Company to redeem the bond prior to the maturity
date of the bond. The redemption right is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements since the Directors consider
that the probability of exercise of the redemption right is remote.
The Directors have considered the fair value of the redemption
right at initial recognition is insignificant. Accordingly, fair value of
the redemption right was not accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group has fully
redeemed the Bond Il with principal amount of HK$1,000,000.

In August 2018, the Group issued an unsecured corporate bond
through a placing agent with principal amount of HK$2,000,000,
carrying interest at the rate of 6.25% per annum payable semi-
annually for a term of 3 years, which will be due on 23 August
2021 ("Bond IlI"). The effective interest rate is 9.13% per annum.
The Company may at any time before the maturity date of the
bond, redeem the bond by giving not less than 10 business
days’ prior written notice at 100% of the principal amount of
such bond together with payment of interest accrued thereon
up to the date of redemption. Subject to the conditions of the
bond instrument, the bondholder shall not have the right to
request the Company to redeem the bond prior to the maturity
date of the bond. The redemption right is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements since the Directors consider
that the probability of exercise of the redemption right is remote.
The Directors have considered the fair value of the redemption
right at initial recognition is insignificant. Accordingly, fair value of
the redemption right was not accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements as at 30 June 2022 and 2021.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group has fully
redeemed the Bond Il with principal amount of HK$2,000,000.

I

(b)
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RZB2-N\FNB  AEEEBICERE
1T AREE 41,000,000 7T 2 MILAA
BIfEZF  #6.25% 2 KB AEFEF
XN —T FHAOF RIBEZ_FN
BHRBEE (MEFHI) - BREMNERD
10.46% ° A A B AT &S5 B 8 B AT B
B BBERF DR HEEXAZEAE
BB A RESF AT 2100%  ZEFSZ
NEEE=E) ISV =EI PR
BEEXBHREZRRT  BEFEARR
ERARBAREFEHE A BOES-
BORTENFEEMBRERNES RE
REERRTEBEREZIIELEEM-E
ERRNV L EDEHERE AT EL
FEX-RIL - BRIEZ AFEIL R
R FRIBITHFRAZTHZER
BYBRENTR

BE_T_-—HFAXA=THLEER
FEBHETHBERESI ETED
1,000,000 7T ©

RIB2-N\FNB  AEEEBICERE
BTN £ 28432,000,00074 70 2 KA AE)
&5 16.25% 2 FHKF B AEBFFEX
= FRR=F R_Z°-—FN\A
Z+=a28# (MEFHI) - BREFER
9.13% ° A B AT &S EIHA B AT (A B
B BBERF DR HEEXAZEAE
BB A RESF AT 2100%  ZEFSZ
& =D B AR 27 REREIES 7
BEEXBHREZRRT  BEFEARR
ERARBAREFH B A BOES-
BORTENFEEMBREAES RE
REERRTEEREZIELEEM-E
ERRNY L EDFHERE AT EL
FEX-RIL - BRIEZ AFEIL R
B _EFRIBIFRAZTHZER
BYBHRENTER

HE_TS-_HEXA-THLEFEE £&
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36. CORPORATE BONDS (continued) 36. AEIEE =

Notes: (Continued)

(@

In November 2018, the Group issued unsecured corporate
bonds through a placing agent with principal amount of
HK$300,000,000, carrying interest at the rate of 15% per annum
payable quarterly for a term of 2 years, which will be due on
7 November 2020 (“Bond V"). The fair value of the bonds at
the date of issue was approximately HK$330,620,000. The
effective interest rate is 10.41% per annum. The Company may
at any time before the maturity date of the bonds, redeem the
bonds by giving not less than 10 business days' prior written
notice at 100% of the principal amount of such bonds together
with payment of interest accrued thereon up to the date of
redemption (“Issuer's Early Redemption Right"). Subject to
the conditions of the bond instrument, the bondholders shall
not have the right to request the Company to redeem the bond
prior to the maturity date of the bonds. The fair value of the
Issuer’s Early Redemption Right at the date of issue amounted
to approximately HK$30,620,000. The embedded derivatives
derived from lIssuer’s Early Redemption Right is classified as
current asset and carried at fair value. Any changes in fair value
will be recognised in profit or loss

On 11 September 2020, the Company executed a supplemental
deed poll for the unsecured corporate bonds with the
outstanding principal amount of HK$270,000,000 to modify
the maturity date from 7 November 2020 into two maturity
dates, 7 November 2020 and 7 November 2021. Based on
the assessment performed by the Group, the modification
is regarded as non-substantial modification. The loss on
modification of corporate bond of approximately HK$12,908,000
is recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.

On 5 November 2021, the Company executed a supplemental
deed poll for the unsecured corporate bonds with the
outstanding principal amount of HK$36,000,000 to modify the
maturity date from 7 November 2021 to 7 May 2022. On 6 May
2022, the Company executed a supplemental deed poll for
the unsecured corporate bonds with the outstanding principal
amount of HK$36,000,000 to modify the maturity date from 7
May 2022 to 31 December 2022. Based on the assessments
performed by the Group, the modifications are regarded as
non-substantial modifications. The losses on modification
of corporate bond of approximately HK$3,225,000 and
HK$1,475,000 are recognised in profit or l0ss at each of the dates
of modification respectively.

On 30 December 2022, the Company executed a supplemental
deed poll for the unsecured corporate bonds with the
outstanding principal amount of HK$36,000,000 to modify the
maturity date from 31 December 2022 to 30 June 2023. On
23 June 2023, the Company executed a supplemental deed
poll for the unsecured corporate bonds with the outstanding
principal amount of HK$36,000,000 to modify the maturity date
from 30 June 2023 to 30 June 2024. Based on the assessments
performed by the Group, the modifications are regarded as
non-substantial modifications. The losses on modification
of corporate bond of approximately HK$1,216,000 and
HK$1,982,000 are recognised in profit or loss at each of the dates
of modification respectively.

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the Group has
early redeemed part of Bond V with principal amount of
HK$24,000,000.

I

()]

&)

RIZ—N\F+—F > XEEEBRER
18 317 2N £ 8 /300,000,000 7T =~ i
BATES  B15%2 FRRABBS
SEIN—X FHARME RIZTZZ
FE+—AtHIEE ((EHV)) -BHFRE
T BHIR A F{E49£330,620,000/8 7T ° B
PREEF)ZEA10.41% © QB A FMEH EIHA
HEEAERE ZBBEHF DR HEZE
BzEAhE@mENUEBHESASEZ
100% > EREZ A E M0 B kst 2 A 8
ERES (M7 ARAIELEE) -EES
SEEGEZIRBE T EEFE AEEER
RABIES R Z AT B (E S o i 8
THE BT ARELNEZ AFENS
30,620,000/ 7T ° 1T AIRAIBEREIEZ R

FUER ° AFEREREB B m AT -

R-TZZTFNAA+—H ARBFER
B8 A% %8270,000,0007% 7t 2 BIKIR A
AfEFR UM BRI LSRR
“E2TEF+—AtHETAMEZEA
B=B2_2HF+—AtAR-_B_—
F+—RBtR) -RIEREMETZETE
BT RABIFERES] - REEFETHBE
#912,908,000 7Tt E 5T H BRI 18w A FE

=
B ©

RIEZ—F+—BHEH > ARBHEER
B8 75 %8 7%36,000,00058 7T 2 FEIKIF A
BESEIMABELE BIHHET
T —F+—BtHABHIAZZSC

EFAtBH-RIEBE-__E#HRANH &A
B 7 18 SR B 1B AN £ 38 4336,000,00058 7.2
EIXFABIBES B UMTBELE B3
HHE-_Z-_—_FHEAtHAEBIAZ
CIE+ T A=+—H -REXEEF
ER Z 57 BRIMETIRAIEERBE -
BT ABESH 2 E518493,225,000% 7T K
1,475,000 700 B ST B8 & ke

Sl
B ©

RIEZ-F+ZB=+H>xAAHE
KRIEB A £ FE%36,000,00078 7T 2 K 15
NEEFEUBTEELE  BIHEE
HIE--F+“A=+—H®EsTIAZ
EI=—FRA=Z1+H-RIZEZ=F
BZ+=ZH ARBMEREELERE
#36,000,0008 7t 2 IR A BB S B
BREBLE BIPER_ZS_=F
NA=+HEITAZE_MEA=+
H o WRIBAEBATER Z 515 BREST
HAIEEKRET BT ABES 2B
1,216,00078 75 K2 1,982,00078 70 72 B R & 1&
STHR BT o

BE_Z__H/A=tHILEEFE &
SECRFBRLOABOESFV FERER
24,000,00078 7T ©
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SHARE CAPITAL 37. IRZs
Authorised: EE -
At 1uly 2021,30 June 2022, HRZB-—F+tH—H-:
1July 2022 and 30 June 2023 T _FB=+
BT TEER—
HRZZEZ=%F/,8
=+H 0.002 5,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: E',éé &E%%&E 5
At1July2021,30 une 2022 R-E-_—F+t/—A"
and 1 July 2022 “E- &A=t
HRZZEZZFtH
—H 0002  1,855,903,277 3,712
Placing of shares (Note) P ERD (i) 0.002 198,250,000 396
At 30 June 2023 RZBZ=%F
NA=1A 0.002 2,054,153,277 4,108

Note:

On 30 December 2022, the Company entered into a placing agreement
(the "Placing Agreement”) with a placing agent pursuant to which the
Company had conditionally agreed to place, through the placing agent
on a best effort basis, up to 371,180,000 placing shares (the “Placing
Share(s)") of the Company at a placing price of HK$0.073 per Placing
Share to not less than six placees who are professional, institutional
or other investors that are third parties independent of the Company
and its connected persons. The Placing Shares would be allotted and
issued pursuant to the general mandate approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
2 December 2022. On 20 January 2023, a total of 198,250,000 ordinary
shares were issued pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Placing
Agreement.

PEE

RIBE-_—E+"A=+H > xATHARER
B Ui S (REHED BIb AA75E
BUREEBRERERB|HESRE  REER®
SREERH (BERH)) 0.0738BTER LR
NBEARA (BEE - EBERHEMEEES TVE
IRARNBDEREBEATZE=ZH) BERS
371,180,0008% & A B]EL & B 15  BL & D IR IR
TR CHE+RBARGFZAATREBE
ARG LERNTRREHEZ — RIS READ 3 R 88
F-RBE_=F—A-+0 ' EREEEH=S
ZNERR R AR 3597 & $£198,250,0008% S48 AL ©
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The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share ARBRERENR_E—=F+A
Option Scheme”) by a resolution in writing passed by +N\BRBZE@MAREZRMN—IER
the shareholders on 18 October 2013, for the purpose et S (TEERGREETE))) > BEEWSI
of attracting, retaining and rewarding eligible persons HMERREBEERAT UHREER
and to provide the eligible persons an incentive or ATHANEBEHZ SR FREIN
reward for their contribution to the Group. RE o

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme include BERESIZAERALTBIEES
Directors, employees, consultants or advisers, providers EBE -BEMIEHA HmI R H
of goods or services, customers, holders of securities EE-FEPR - ANEBREABFRET
issued by the member of the Group and any other BHEZFBARSAEBREHERZ
person who has contributed to the Group (“Eligible EREMALT (EERALY
Persons”).

The subscription price of the share options shall be a EREZAEBEAEZTGETZE
price determined by the Board of Directors and shall be o BVBEATIREZRSE ()&
at least the highest of (i) the closing price of share as DR B HBEMAFMESHREBRR
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on FlzWmE (NVRONREBEZRELNEH
the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing price per FTAEEXHEBMIERRERM
share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation 5z FHUTHE ; SNl mEE-e

sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; or (jii) the nominal value of the share.

The Eligible Persons shall accept the offer at the date BERATEBRERELN HHRES21
not later than 21 days from the offer date or otherwise HAZMEL > SRIRIEEEEEH
be deemed to have declined it. An option may be BN -BRETNRESZEEKRAE
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share BAEARAZHE RIBERES 2K
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be MERTE ZPETRERELE
determined and notified by the Board of Directors to KE2HBHRE BEEEABRIT
each grantee, which period may commence on a day AR H BB B R SH10FE R4
after the date upon which the offer for the grant of R MR RIR B ST B IR RUIR AT AR
options is made but shall end in any event not later than IE-BRIFEEERITEE AN ERE
10 years from the date of grant of the option subject HEBERERERARARE THIE
to the provisions for early termination thereof. Unless BEREET & AR T RN TR A
otherwise determined by the Board of Directors and RFBEZRAEHRE-

stated in the offer of the grant of options to a grantee,
there is no minimum period required under the Share
Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it can
be exercised.

2022/23F FHR o HEREBERABRAR
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302

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme. After the
refreshment of the limit of the Share Option Scheme
with the approval of the shareholders on 10 May 2019,
the maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of the refreshed limit of 146,290,000
options (being 10% of the issued share capital on 10
May 2019) together with all outstanding options as
at the date of this annual report carrying the right to
subscribe for 12,000,000 (2022: 26,630,000) shares is
158,290,000 (2022: 172,920,000) shares, representing
approximately 7.71% (2022: 9.32%) of the total number
of shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

Details of movements of the share options granted
under the Share Option Scheme for the years ended 30
June 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

38. IBIRIESTE @

RIRRE R 2R 2 A B
%ﬁ@ﬁ'ﬁﬁj%é&ﬁﬂﬁf’%@%pé;&

BEARERETSEREZRH
Eﬁ’*ﬁﬁzfﬁ,ﬁ%‘@10% KRR ZE
—NERR+ A EEHERETE
2 PREE®Z  EE FHTPREE146,290,000
HERE HER_Z—HLERA
+HZEETREAZ10%) ERP
7 ¥ B HA Y A5 0] 58 B8 12,000,0000%
(ZT| -4 :26,630,0000%) B&H
2R ZEZEERITEBREET
FEZBERT AFETZROES
#E 7158,290,00088 (& _ 4 :
172,920,0008%) > HEE R A~ FE ;R B &7 E
BITRMHBRHNTT1% (CB__F
9.32%) ©

ﬁ:‘:—v ——ﬂz&—v ——ﬂE/\E
=SHHUEFERBEBRESSREZ
BRESHFENT :

Outstanding Grant Outstanding
at 1 July during Cancelled/  at 30 June
2022 the year Exercised Lapsed 2023
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
RZEZZf RZBZ=
=l REEE ~NA=+H
R 1T Bt BiTfE EBR#/%X WA
T T T T T
(Note b)
(KfzEb)
Executive director
HTES
Deng Zhonglin 1 June 2018 1.89 31 December 2018 to 12,000 - - - 12,000
31 May 2028
b ZE-\EFrA-H ZE-N\E
+ZA=+-HE
BT0\E
fB=1+-H
Employees 1 June 2018 1.89 31 December 2018 to 14,630 - - (14,630) -
31 May 2028
B8 ZE-\ErA-H ZE-N\E
+ZB=+-HE
BT0\E
fB=1+-H
26,630 - - (14,630) 12,000
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 38. H@RgfEsTEl @
Executive director
BTESR
Deng Zhonglin 1June 2018 1.89 31 December 2018 to 12,000 - - - 12,000
31 May 2028
il “2-\F/RA—H —Z\%
+ZB=+-HE
“BTN\E
IB=+-H
Employees 1June 2018 1.89 31 December 2018 to 14,630 - - - 14,630
31 May 2028
B8 “2-\F/RA—H —Z\%
+ZB=+-HE
“BTN\E
IB=+-H
26,630 = = = 26,630
Notes: Bk -

(a) The vesting of the options is conditional upon the fulfiment of
certain performance targets relating to the Group. All the share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme are subject
to the following vesting period: 25% of the share options are
exercisable from 31 December 2018 to 31 May 2028, 25% of
the share options are exercisable from 30 June 2019 to 31
May 2028, 25% of the share options are exercisable from 31
December 2019 to 31 May 2028 and 25% of the share options
are exercisable from 30 June 2020 to 31 May 2028.

(b)  The share options were cancelled due to resignation of
employees during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted
was HK$0.794 per option. The fair value of share options
at grant date is assessed by Peak Vision using the
Binomial Option Pricing model that takes into account
the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of
dilution (where material), the share price at grant date
and expected price volatility of the underlying shares,
the expected dividend yield, the risk free interest rate
for the term of the option and the correlations and
volatilities of the peer group companies.

(@) BREATEHAEEZETXRHER
BERE HERB - REBERESEIR
HZ 2SR R BRI T | 25%H9 88
BRER_E—-N\E+_B=+—HEZ
E_NFERB=Z+—HEBAFTITFE
5% BRENR —_S—NFEB=+HZE
ZEN\FHRA=+—HHEAFITE
5% EERENR _E—NE+_A=1+—
HEZZ-_NFRB=1+—HHBAIF
THERSUNEBRER S _ZTFRA
=t+HEZE-_N\FER=+—HHMH
A FiTfEe

b REE_E_=FK_ZFT__F,XAH
=+HIEFEE BREEHT BRED

ERNZBRENEK T BB E
AT ERESRHERE079AHE T REE
ER-_BEAEREEEBRATERE
RENRHBHANAFE ZRAE
BITHEE BRENER BENTE

(HEBEX) &t BHANRERERH
R RITREAER KRB  FEEA AR B ek
K- BREFRZANERBRX
DU B 48 & B A B B9 B 2 1R B R

& o
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuead)

The inputs used for the valuation of the options granted

. fBhetEstE @

ARERHZBREZGEZH AR

included: BEIE
Grand date EHBEH 1 June 2018
—E-N\F
~A—H
Expiry date EHAA 31 May 2028
“ETNE
EB=+—H
Spot stock price (HK$ per share) BPEARGE (B AT 1.85
Exercise price TEE 1.89
Expected price volatility (%) TEHA BRI 18 (%) 33.02
Risk-free interest rate (%) = B BRI 2 (%) 2.21
Expected life of options (year) B TERRSER (B 10

On 1 June 2018, the Company granted an aggregate
of 100,000,000 share options under the Share Option
Scheme, at an exercise price of HK$1.89 per share.
The share options granted to each grantee shall vest
conditional upon the fulfilment of certain performance
targets.

The Binomial Option Pricing model requires input of
subjective assumptions such as the expected volatility.
Change in the subjective input may materially affect
the fair value estimates. The expected volatility is
determined by calculating the historical volatility of the
share price of listed companies with similar business as
the Group.

RZE-N\FARB—H ' EATRE
f5 iz 1 51 81 & H£ 9% 11100,000,00017 f&
i TRERERISIEIT @K
RARLZERERAGETRERR
TR T P ER I

—RABEREEERIAS ATRR
&= (WFEHIKRE) - THEABIBRES
AREHRAFEGAEEEATE R
HIRBE BT F A S EEALIES
ZEHRB 2 EEREMIEETE
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_—E_=F,"BE=1+HILEE

39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 3. EEBFREEAFEZHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lease Corporate
Borrowing liabilities bonds Total
B HESER - QAFEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET FHExT FHExT
(Note 35)  (Note 33)  (Note 36)
(B#zE35) (Pi3E33) (PizE36)

At 1 July 2022 RW_Z2__F#+tHF—H = 2,415 40,507 42,922
Financing cash (outflows))  REZEIRE (Rd) /
inflows: A
Capital elements of BNHEEREZ
lease rentals paid EEN:iba - (1,260) - (1,260)
Interest elements of BNHEEREZ
lease rentals paid IS5 - (180) - (180)
Interest paid BAF S (81) - (5,408) (5,489)
Redemption of BOARES
corporate bonds - - (1,000) (1,000)
Repayment of handling fee BEFEE - - (360) (360)
Proceeds from a borrowing  f&mRFR1SIE 3,221 - - 3,221
Other changes: Hh&s)
Loss on non-substantial FEREITABES
modification of Z B8
corporate bond - - 3,198 3,198
Finance costs B 95 180 3,734 4,009
At 30 June 2023 RZE_=%F
~B=+H 3,235 1,155 40,671 45,061
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 HE_E_=F,BE=1+HILEE

39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 39. IS EEBIFREE BB ZHIR

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued) (#)
Lease Corporate
liabilities bonds Total
HESRE NEES 1B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
(Note 33) (Note 36)
(F45£33) (Ff5E36)
At 1 July 2021 A —E - —FtH—H 3,726 66,765 70,491
Financing cash outflows: MERSRH
Capital elements of ENHEREY
lease rentals paid BEXRE D (1,312 = (1,312
Interest elements of ENHEEREZ
lease rentals paid MEZ S (306) = (306)
Interest paid BEEHE - (6,102) (6,102)
Redemption of B EES
corporate bonds - (29,000) (29,000)
Other changes: Hthgg .
Loss on non-substantial FEREITRBES
modification of 28
corporate bond - 4,700 4,700
Gain on early redemption of ~ IRFREREIAGESHZ
corporate bond Wz - (387) (387)
Exchange realignment [EREE 1 - 1
Finance costs MM A 306 4,525 4,831
At 30 June 2022 i —
A~NE=+H 2,415 40,507 42,922

40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS

40. S KA A XS

(@) Balance with a related party (a) EARAEES 2 456R

2022
———

— =

HK$'000
TET

Amount due from an executive BN —2HITESRIE

director
— Mr. Deng Zhonglin (Note)

— S e (&) 2,039 -

Note: st -

As at 30 June 2023, the amount included HK$1,500,000 A ZEZ=FA=+H ZREBE

306

waived discretionary bonus and RMB500,000 (equivalents
to approximately HK$539,200) advanced payment which is
unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand.

1,500,000 T B MEBBTEA R AR
500,0007T (tHE 1 #9539,20077t) BITE(T
IR A EIRT R RERERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4= AH
177 N =

HI TR R MIEE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTIES
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management

personnel

Details of the balance with related parties at 30
June 2023 is set out in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Save as disclosed elsewhere to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had entered into
the following related party transactions, which in
the opinion of the Directors, were carried out in
accordance with terms negotiated between the
parties and in the ordinary course of business of
the Group.

Remuneration for key personnel management,
including emoluments paid to the Directors and
certain employees of the Group, as disclosed in
Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements,
are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits

40. E KRR

X5 #)

RIZE :_ﬂf/ B=+H R
2B IBREN GRS BRE
Kﬁuﬂ8°

PRiR S M B R EME D P E
FN > AREBEET I LT REEE S 3L
HoMEFRR BERAXZIRE
SN PERZ IR EREREZ
AEXBBRETET

EEEESZHM (BEXNTF
ESkAERETREREZME
(LN #R & W BB R R P EE14P 32
B)mTr:

2023
—EC=HF

HK$'000
FH&T

% R EMAS

in kind 3,962 4,200
Discretionary bonus B IEAL 1,070 106
Retirement benefits scheme RRfEF T EIH R

contributions 93 100
Total compensation paid to key MEEEEESZNZ

management personnel A2 s A 5,125 4,406

41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS a1. IRINEE

No equity securities listed in Hong Kong classified as
financial assets at FVTPL are placed in margin accounts
with a regulated securities broker (2022: approximately
HK$269,000). No margin facility was utilised as at 30
June 2023 and 2022.

2022/23F FHR o HEREBERABRAR

BMEIBARATFTESABRZS
MEEZEBLDZ2RESRSS (CTF
T 1 #9269,000% ) BERI—
R RENBSRLAZRBEIER
N R ZE_=ZFKR_E__F,8
—t+HR IEHEFRESEELE.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

42. ERBZMBIRRR

2023
HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZKRE 65,966 228,908
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables BT 7B K H A E U R IB 1,829 269
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B /B A B 318 1,190 304,046
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAEBR L
EREE - 879
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEER 213 4,026
3,232 309,220
Current liabilities RENEE
Accruals and other payables FEST & A R H I RIE 1,402 1,814
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETI B AR I8 138,579 143,200
Corporate bonds NEMESH 40,671 40,507
180,652 185,521
Net current (liabilities)/assets e (AR BEFE (177,420) 123,699
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (B8R BEZE (111,454) 352,607
Capital and reserve BARRK#EE
Share capital [N 4,108 3,712
Reserves (Note 43) R (P5E43) (115,562) 348,895
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)/ (BAE4) R
TOTAL EQUITY (111,454) 352,607

MBRNRKBEEFEN T _=FN
Bt A B ERRETEE W HEMU
TEEARRE !

The statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29
September 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Deng Zhonglin Wwong Yuk Lun Alan

I e iy = R
Director Director
EZE EF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)
TEEMBHREREE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 &EZZ_=FXA=+HILFE

43.

44.

RESERVE OF THE COMPANY 43. AT 2 [#E
As at 1 July 2021 RZE-_—£tA—H 506,123 21,145 (105,938) 421,330
Loss and total comprehensive FEEBREARTER

expenses for the year - - (72,435) (72,435)
As at 30 June 2022 and RIZZZERA=1HK

1 July 2022 _E_"FtB-H 506,123 21145 (178 373) 348,895
Loss and total comprehensive TEFBREZAERTAER

expenses for the year - - (477,663) (477,663)
Placing of shares EERR 13,206 = - 13,206
Share options lapsed during the year EE BAMERE - (11,617) 11,617 =
As at 30 June 2023 RZEZ=F5A=+H 519,329 9,528 (644,419) (115,562)
Note: Bk -
Distributable reserves Al IR

Under the Companies Law of Cayman lIslands, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to its shareholder provided that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The application of share premium is governed by the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

LITIGATION

On 2 November 2022, a judgement from litigation
was made by Shanghai Jing'an People’s Court that
a subsidiary of the Group should pay approximately
HK$3,380,000 (equivalent to RMB3,000,000) as
compensation for breach of contract term to a
supplier of the Group. On 6 June 2023, the supplier
commenced a civil action to restrict the bank balance
of such subsidiary of the Group. As at 30 June 2023, the
outstanding compensation has been recorded in other
payables and bank balance of approximately HK$57,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB53,000) was frozen by
the bank due to the litigation.

44.

2022/23F FHR o HEREBERABRAR

RIFHSFESREE AAFRMEBERT DK
TR EEBRLNDKEAREERR £
AASENINBEEHBRETEZER-

ROBEZRAZARE-NN—FQ8ZE &
1E5]) #HE o

i

R_E__F+—B”"H > LBEMF
Z& ARABRIEHTFRYIR  HIEAR
EE-—RBHBARERAEERE —%
fHFE 75 2 19 493,380,000 70 (FBE R
AR #£3,000,0007T) FELBEES o
R _E T ZFERXANE HEFIRE
EEFfsd EXREHIAEBZHBR
SAMNERTEG R _SE =% /\A
=+ H  RTEESESTAEMER
FRIE > #4957,00078 T FHERHO AR
53,00070) BYERITAS BR AR AW IR TR

+
#ho
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continuea)

ma M B mRRE @

For the year ended 30 June 2023 EEZZ-_=FXA=+THILFE

45. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform with the presentation for the year.

46. APPROVAL FOR CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29
September 2023.

47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There is no significant event affecting the Company that
have occurred since the end of the year.

45.

46.

47.

[LE&HF

ETHEBRUFEEMDEUTELRE
EZ2575 -

HEE S MBRER

g S -_=F#rB_-_+AH
HER BT SRS ERE-

BEMRER

BARFERUR BEFEZELRD
BINEXRES-
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Five-Year Financial Summary
T FHRHEHE

For the years ended 30 June
BEAB=THLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
B “E-"F “E-—F# “EEE “BE-HE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET TET TET TET
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)

(&EH)  (&BY) (KEH) (=)

Revenue from continuing REFESEEK 2 W
operations 41,219 112,161 227947 504,815 541,846

(Loss)/profit before taxation from R BB E 552 BRiRa
continuing operations (E518) /a7 (490,100)  (120,404) 66,925 214,833 178,916
Taxation sl (16,009) 50 (41,286) (59,728) (84,146)

(Loss)/profit for the year from  REFELEEKZ FE

continuing operations (&518) /57 (506,109)  (120,354) 25,639 155,105 94,770
(Loss)/profit for the year froma  REBRILREE£H 7 FE
discontinued operation (§518) /& (388) 2,513) (31,086) (12,935) 11,283
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (518 /57 (506,497)  (122,867) (5,447) 142,170 106,053
Attributable to:3 BUR A FEA
Owners of the Company AREEBAN
- from continuing operations ~ —REREREER (506,109)  (120,354) 25,639 155,105 94,770
—from a discontinued ~RECKILREER
operation (388) 2,513 (26,461) (18,008) 11,481
Non-controlling interests R
—from continuing operations  — AR BEELE £ ~ - - - -
—from a discontinued ~RECKILREER
operation - - (4,625) 5,073 (198)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8 /&F (506,497)  (122,867) (5,447) 142,170 106,053
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Five-Year Financial Summary (continued)
LFMHBEHRE @

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE

At 30 June
R7A=t+H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

ZTIzZF ZZZCHF T ZZIZF ZThAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TET TER TER TET

Total assets nEE 183,121 703,583 882,122 1,157,370 1,172,372
Total liabilities =L (58,121) (57,665) (99,205) (459,717) (629,674)
Non-controlling interests R - S S (5,172) 4,168

Total equity attributable to ANRBE NELEER
owners of the Company 125,000 645,918 782,917 692,481 546,866
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